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VISION
To Be the Benchmark in Financial Strength, Stability and Success.

MISSION
To provide a diversified range of financial products and services 
focusing on capital markets, SME sector and the housing and 
property sector, in an efficient, professional and ethical manner, 
thereby creating entrepreneurship and wealth in society.
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Nation Lanka Finance PLC is a Public Limited Liability Company  
incorporated in Sri Lanka on 15th July 1987 under the Company's 
Act No. 17 of 1982 and Re-registered under the Companies Act 
No.07 0f 2007. The Company is also a Finance Company regulated 
by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka with a rich heritage of 25 years. 
Nation Lanka Finance has built its reputation on strong  
connections with local communities. A deep understanding of  
sustainability means we're extending this commitment to a broader 
range of stakeholders and interests. With 22 branches throughout 
Sri Lanka, NLF is well placed to support our communities at a local 
and national level. Our strategy is built around our customers,  
putting them at the centre of everything we do and helping them 
realize their potential. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2012/13 2011/12 Change
LKR 000's LKR 000's %

Financial performance

Revenue  568,957  363,876 56%
Gross Interest Income  509,714  265,279 92%
Net Interest Income  197,419  74,891 164%

Total Operating Income 259,750 171,888 51%

Operating Expenses  423,506  246,642 72%

Total Comprehensive Income  (170,256)  (106,687) (60%)

Financial Position

Accommodations (adjusted for Impairment)
Lease  173,507  138,789 25%
Loans  339,209  330,687 3%
Hire Purchase  301,845  253,590 19%
Micro Finance  706,778  286,024 147%
Pawning  145,801  15,075 867%
Other Assets  1,774,479  1,716,084 3%
Total Assets  3,441,619  2,740,249 26%

Public Borowings  2,640,181  1,984,023 33%
Bank & Other Borrowings  227,301  123,424 84%
Other Liabilities  285,229  173,639 64%
Total Liabilities  3,152,711  2,281,086 38%

Information per Ordinary Shares

Loss Per Share Rs.  (0.77)  (0.48) 60%
Net Assets Rs.  1.16  1.84 (37%)
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PRODUCT WISE

Interest Income 2012/13 2011/12 Change
LKR 000's LKR 000's %

Lease  52,041  29,760 75%
Loans  348,307  130,543 167%
Hire Purchase  78,427  81,849 -4%
Pawing  21,908  1,394 1472%
Other Lending  9,031  21,732 -58%
Total Assets  509,714  265,278 92%

Asset Growth      26%
Increase in  Net Interest Income                         164%
Deposit Base Growth    33%
Lending Base Growth    63%



Annual Report 2012/134
THREE YEAR SUMMARY

In LKR 000'

2011 2012 2013

Deposit Base  2,123,399  1,984,023  2,640,181 

Lending Base  497,369  1,024,165  1,667,140 
Total Assets  2,157,041  2,740,249  3,441,619 
Turnover  552,146  363,876  568,957 

Deposit Base

2011 - Promissory Notes     

In LKR 000'
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From strength to strength 
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CHAIRMAN'S  
MESSAGE

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives 
me great pleasure in presenting to you 

the Nation Lanka Finance (NLF) Annual Report 
and Audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended 31st March 2013.

GLOBAL ECONOMY
The global macroeconomic environment  
continued to be challenging in 2012 and the 
growth remained slow.  Unemployment levels 
remained high in the US and most parts of the 
peripheral Eurozone. This global economic 
outlook in the short term will have an impact 
on the economic progress of Sri Lanka.  Even 
on the global political front, there were many 
leadership changes including those in China, 
France, India and Russia. Since Sri Lanka is 
tied to world events in a considerable way, the 
impact on the above issues on our country is 
yet to be seen.

SRI LANKAN ECONOMY
Sri Lanka’s overall economic growth remained 
resilient growing at 6.4%p.a. after the  
consistent 8% growth registered in the  
preceding years of 2011 and 2010. This year 
too, Tourism, foreign remittances and  
infrastructure development contributed  
significantly to GDP growth. Looking ahead, 
a growth of 7.5% has been targeted for 2013 
largely on expectations of improved  
performance in the agriculture and service  
sectors, and the continuing ongoing  
infrastructure development.

The financial sector turned in a healthy  
performance. It should be also mentioned that 
the initiative taken by the Government of Sri 
Lanka to support financial institutions in raising 
long term funds from international markets 
was commendable. As regards to regulations, 
Finance Companies were issued with several 
Directions that covered aspects such as  
business conduct, market practices and  
operations.

It is thereby intended that the financial system 
be further strengthened safeguarding  
institutions as well as customers. A significant 
change in corporate reporting during the year 
under review was the convergence with  
International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS). Conversion to IFRS results in  
presenting the Company’s financial statements 
on the same basis as overseas counterparts 
making comparison easier and facilitating  
access to international capital markets when 
the need arises.

COMPANY AND GROUP PERFORMANCE
The Turnover of the NLF group increased to 
LKR 1,212mn an increase of 35% from  
LKR 896mn in the previous year and  
LKR 569mn for the Company as against 
LKR 364mn in the previous year, which is an 
increase of 56% over the previous year. The 
Deposit base of the Company grew by 33%.  
Our Operational costs increased by 72% during 
the year under review. A significant Loan growth 
of 63% was recorded during the year under 
review which can be mainly attributed to the 
increase in the Micro lending. 

At the group level too the performance was 
commendable,where the largest contribution 
came from the fully owned subsidiary of the 
group, Messrs. Millenium Housing & Dev. Co. 
contributing LKR97mn to the bottom line.The 
financial review report provides an analysis of  
business and financial performance of the 
Group during the year under review. Our branch 
network grew from 13 in 2012 to 22 in 2013.

APPRECIATIONS AND BOARD CHANGES
Mr. U. Palihakkara & Mr. Sahabandu stepped 
down from the Board in January 2013 in  
keeping with the Corporate Governance  
Direction No. 3 of 2008 and Mr. Bede Fernando 
also stepped down from the Board in March 
2013. I would like to express our thanks to 
these Directors for their invaluable contribution,  
not only at Board level but also for their  
contributions made to the Audit Committee and 
the Integrated Risk Management Committee. 

I would also like to welcome Mr. Victor  
Ramanan, as an independent Non-Executive 
Director, who joined us in October 2012. 

May I conclude by expressing my gratitude to 
the Governor of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka 
and the officials at the Department of  
Supervision of Non- Bank Financial Institutions 
for their continued support and guidance, my 
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fellow Directors on the Board for their guidance, the CEO, the Management and 
staff at all levels for their steadfast commitment and loyalty in taking the  
organization to new heights. Last but not least – the shareholders,  
customers and all our stakeholders for their continued support and the  
confidence placed in NLF.

Jayantha Dharmadasa 
Chairman

The Turnover of the NLF group 
increased to LKR 1,212mn an 
increase of 35% from  
LKR 896mn in the previous year 
and LKR 569mn for the  
Company as against LKR 364mn 
in the previous year.  
The Deposit base of the  
Company grew by 33%.  

29th August 2013
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The year ended has laid a strong  
foundation for the Progress of Nation 

Lanka Finance PLC (NLF) which is facing a 
paradigm shift since the arrival of new  
management spearheaded by a team of like 
minded board of directors, two years ago. NLF 
started off as a relatively small-scale finance 
company but changed direction under new 
management, spearheaded by our Chairman 
Mr. Jayantha Dharmadasa and our largest 
shareholder Mr. Asanga Seneviratne to give it a 
new beginning for a lucrative future. There are a 
few success stories to mention and they are the 
result of prudent financial management, sheer 
discipline in handling public funds, offering 
attractive products and services, commitment 
of the staff and visionary guidance by the board 
of directors.

In March 2012, it was a major milestone for the 
company when it obtained Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka’s finance license, which propelled the 
finance company towards medium-scale entity 
status by end of the financial year 2012/13 with 
group assets surpassing the LKR 4bn mark. 
Moreover, the granting of the state-endorsed 
finance license established NLF on firm footing 
– creating the much needed institutional make 
up for the company to access a wide girth of 
public funds. The dividends in obtaining the 
financial license was immensely seen in year 
ended 2012/13. Our deposit base has leaped 
from LKR 1.9bn to LKR 2.6bn representing 
33% annual growth. During the financial year 
2012/13, NLF has also improved its asset base 
by 26% or over LKR 700mn. Similarly, NLF  
witnessed a 63% growth in the lending  
portfolio and crossed LKR 1.7bn by the year 
end. 

NLF also emerged as just a handful of 
companies in the original Ceylinco group to 
have started paying back money to distressed 
depositors – so far having paid out as much 
LKR 1.4bn representing more than 90% of such 
legacy deposits. The proven track record,  
versatile background and esteemed trust of 
NLF directors have been instrumental in  
steering the company towards its current 
heights. With nearly LKR 3.5bn in assets, 
some 400 staff, and 22 branches located island 
wide, NLF has set a new target to surpass – to 

achieve LKR 10bn in assets within the next few 
financial years. To rein in the asset-goals the 
company will focus on expanding its branch 
network to include more than 80,000 customers 
over the same period from the current base 
which is in excess of 45,000. 

Unsurprisingly, micro financing will continue to 
be a key product. It is all about enabling and 
empowering entrepreneurship at the grass root 
level in order to stimulate economic growth. 
The microfinance operations are carried out in 
a modified Grameen joint group lending model 
with aspects extracted from the ASA model. 
Highly-trained micro finance experts at NLF not 
only give financial assistance but are also  
pivotal in assisting and advising clients on 
managing and operating respective business 
entities. It has become not only a prudent 
investment for us but a social service of great 
magnitude through which the rural  
entrepreneurs are empowered and necessary 
financial assistance given. Two CSR programs 
 “Dinavamu Lanka” and “Denumen Ediriata ” 
continue to benefit the target groups. 

The financial year ahead is going to be 
challenging, yet the organization possess a 
significant level of agility to face the challenges 
in the market. The dynamic culture inculcated 
in the organization will be a key element in 
achieving the goals set out for the year ahead. 
We are certainly ambitious and to all intents and 
purposes confident that we will be able to reach 
the goals within the period. Our prime long-term 
target is to achieve a 5% market share in the 
lending segment by 2018. In the short term, our 
goal is post significant growth in all departments 
and not only to post healthy levels of profits 
but also to give something back to our valued 
investors and shareholders.

Above all, as we have done in the past, we 
guarantee our commitment towards public 
funds and integrity towards managing our 
depositors’ and investors’ money in a prudent 
manner that will benefit all stakeholders.  
Transparency and accountability are two main 
traits on which NLF will evolve around and 
corporate governance will be further enhanced 
assuring fairness in all what we do.  
Conforming to mandatory/Statutory regulations 

CEO'S  
REVIEW
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is considered as paramount importance and we 
have demonstrated our steadfast commitment in 
previous years. 

NLF just received a fresh rating by ICRA Lanka, one 
of the three recommended rating agencies by the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka, which will change our  
future prospects. The new B credit rating with a 
stable outlook that was awarded by ICRA unveils a 
new horizon for the company – positioning us on a 
clear path to seek a diverse range of long-term  
international funding sources. The latest credit 
rating will add to the health of our financials as it 
improves our funding cost and our standing in the 
international market. 

It is a very exciting time for all of us in the coming 
years and look forward to the challenge to make the 
quantum leap to take NLF in to a mid-cap total  
financial provider excelling in customer service 
whilst rewarding our shareholders. 

A special tribute goes to our entire staff for their  
passion and exceedingly high standard of work  
ethics and principles, for which I am truly grateful.  
I would like to also thank the Chairman and the 
board of directors for their commitment, dedication 
and most importantly the strategic direction  
extended to the company to ensure financial 
strength, stability and success of NLF. 

All-in-all the year ahead is going to be promising 
and the brave new age of thinking that fuels the 
future of the organization, resounding market  
success together with the winning formula employed 
by Nation Lanka Finance PLC - the experienced top 
management and rated financial backing – are set 
to truly Redefine the Future and become a finance 
sector benchmark in Sri Lanka. 

Charith Amarasekara 
Chief Executive Officer

29th August 2013



Annual Report 2012/1312
BOARD OF  
DIRECTORS

Appointed to the Board on 11th March 2011. He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Certified 
Professional Managers. A distinguished self-driven business personality with an impressive and 
amazing track record of successful business management over 37 years of experience in  
Executive Business Management and 27 years in Health Care Industry, he is currently the Chairman 
of Nawaloka Holdings (Pvt) Ltd, which consists of over 17 Companies under its umbrella. 

Mr. Dharmadasa has been appointed as the Honorary Consul General for Singapore in Sri Lanka 
and also a Board Member in multiple organizations including Sri Lanka Telecom PLC as an  
Independent Non Executive Director, since May 2010, and serves as a Director of SLT Visioncom 
(Pvt)  Ltd, SLT Manpower Solutions (Pvt) Ltd and Galadari Hotels (Lanka) PLC. 

Jayantha Dharmadasa 
Chairman (Non Executive)

Asanga Seneviratne  
Non Executive Director 

Jayaprakash Rudra
Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 11th March 2011. He is a well established businessman. Currently he 
serves as the Managing Director of “Senses Holiday” and “Canthus Management Services (Pvt) 
Ltd”. He has wide experience especially in the property development sector. 

Appointed to the Board on 11th March 2011.  Mr. Seneviratne’s experience and expertise in the  
field of Finance, Investment and Capital Management extends nationally and Internationally for  
over 2 decades.  He was the Director/CEO of Asia Capital PLC, the largest Listed Investment  
Bank with the CSE.  

Mr. Seneviratne pioneered on-line trading enabling direct access to CSE and has been involved in 
key capital market, private direct investments deals from high net-worth individuals and large  
foreign Financial Institutions in Sri Lanka over the last 22 years.  Currently he serves as the  
Managing Director of Asia Fort Asset Management (Pvt) Ltd, Anilana Hotels and Properties Ltd  
and Investor Access Equities (Pvt) Ltd and as a Director in many Companies including the  
Colombo Stock Exchange.  
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Harshith Dharmadasa
Non Executive Director 

Lalith Karunaratne 
Non Executive / Independent Director 

Victor R Ramanan
Non Executive  Director

Victor Ramanan is a Sri Lankan born British national residing in London appointed to the board in 
October 2012. Being educated in Sri Lanka and the UK, Victor is a B.Sc Graduate and also holds 
a Diploma in Software Engineering, Business Admin & Sales Techniques (UK). He is a versatile 
marketer and administrator with more than 25 years of hands on experience working in many 
countries including United Kingdom, Kuwait, Dubai, Bahrain, Germany, France, USA and Sri Lanka. 
He has worked in areas such as IT, HR, marketing and business development of which more than 
15 years has been in the fields of oil, gas, & logistics sectors. Since 1992 he is working with Raith 
Engineering & Manufacturing Co. WLL (Kuwait) and presently heading the logistic operations and is 
a Director for the following subsidiary companies.
•   Raith - CTS Logistic - Sales & Marketing
•   Jetstream Europe Ltd (UK)
•   Jetstream Hochdruck - Losungen - GMBH (Germany)
•   RCS Contracting (Germany) - Managing Director

Appointed to the Board on 11th March 2011. He is an Associate Member of the Institute of Certified 
Professional Managers. A young business personality with over 20 years experience in Executive 
Management. He has acquired extensive experience in the fields of trading, manufacturing and 
construction sector.

He also served as a Director during the period 2003/2004 in the Export Development Board of  
Sri Lanka and Sathosa Retail Ltd. He currently serves as a Director of Nawaloka Holdings  
Companies and all other Companies under its umbrella, including Nawaloka Hospitals PLC.

Appointed to the Board on 11th March 2011. He is an Associate Member of the Institute of  
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and holds a Postgraduate Degree in Business Management 
(MBA) from the University of Sri Jayawardenapura. He also possesses 22 years experience in 
senior financial management positions in both private and public sectors
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Joined the Company in 1991 and served as the General Manager from 1996. Appointed to the 
Board in January 1998 and as the Executive Director in year 2000. Holds a Bachelor of Science 
(Hon’s) Degree in Natural Science from the University of Colombo and is an Associate of the  
Institute of Bankers. He counts 29 years in Commercial Banking, Development Banking and  
Financial Services including Stock Broking and Primary Dealership. Prior to joining the Company,  
He served at Bank of Ceylon as well as at the DFCC.

Bede Fernando
Director 
(Resigned on 28th March 2013)

MBA (Aston), PG Dip Econ Dev(Col), PG Dip Int’l  Affairs (BCIS); JDip MA(UK). 
FCA(SL),FCCA(UK),FCMA (UK), CGMA) ACCS(SL);APB(SL)  

Joined the Board in November 2010 with more than 35 years of post-qualifying experience in  
Accounting, Auditing, Finance, Consultancy, Development, Banking/Merchant/Investment Banking, 
Education & Training, General Management, Project Implementation & Management, Project  
Rehabilitation, Marketing & Promotion, Privatization, Sector Studies etc. During his professional 
career he has worked in a number of Private Sector and Public Sector Organizations in Sri Lanka 
and overseas which includes: Chairman, Acland Insurance Services, Deputy Chairman, Ceylon 
electricity Board, Director/ General Manager People’s Merchant Bank, Deputy General Manager 
DFCC, Financial specialist common wealth secretariat (CFTC). He has also worked in a number 
of Projects funded by the World Bank (WB), Asian Development Bank (ADB), African Development 
Bank (AFDB), International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD), Commonwealth Secretariat 
and JICA etc.

He had been the Past-President of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the 
Sri Lanka Branch of Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA), and the Chartered 
Association of Certified Accountants (ACCA).; He was a Council Member of the Securities Council 
of Sri Lanka for 4 years, Post Graduate Institute of Management, Open University of Sri Lanka, and 
the Central Cultural Fund, National Institute of Business Management, CINTEC, etc. He was the 
President of the Organization of the Professional Associations (OPA) in Sri Lanka (2010/2011). 

Uditha Palihakkara
Non Executive / Independent Director  
(Retired with effect from 9th January 2013)

Mr K M Sunil Kandegedara has a Diploma in Tax Administration at California, USA, and  
successfully completed Hons. Degree in Mathematics and Chemistry at the University of  
Peradeniya.

He worked as Commissioner General in the Department of Inland Revenue. He joined  the  
Department in September 1976 as an Assessor (Executive Staff) and served 34 years as a  
Assessor, Senior Assessor, Deputy Commissioner, Commissioner, Senior Commissioner and 
Deputy Commissioner General in various divisions such as Kandy, Negombo, Rathnapura regions 
and Head Office. He has completed “Double Taxation Agreements" is with several Countries. He 
has also worked as a Mathematics Lecturer at the University of Peradeniya (1974 – 1975). Mr Sunil 
Kandegedara has been appointed as a Consultant to the Government of Maldives. 

Sunil Kandegedera
Non Executive / Independent Director

Appointed to the Board on 19th May 2009.He graduated from the University of Ceylon Peradeniya 
in 1966. He Joined Bank of Ceylon as Staff Assistant in 1968 and Peoples Bank in 1973 as Branch 
Manager. He was appointed to the Executive Management in 1989 and was appointed as the  
General Manger/CEO in 1998. He retired from Peoples Bank in year 2000. He has gained  
experience in all aspects of Banking. He was a Member of the University of Peradeniya Council 
from 1997 up to 2006.

Chandra Sahabandu
Non Executive Director / Independent  
(Retired with effect from 9th January 2013)
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TOP MANAGEMENT

Madhawa Edussuriya - General Manager (from left), Prasanna Habaragamuwa - Chief Financial Officer, Ms. Shubhani Jayawardana - Chief Operating Officer, 
and Charith Amarasekara - Chief Executive Officer
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Lakmal de Silva - Head of Credit (from left), Ms.Preethi Katulande - Head of Leagal, Ms. Sewwandi Wijesekare - Head of Human Resources,  
Mangala Udawatta - Head of Recoveries, and Dilan Wasantha - Head of Investments 

Corwin Fernando - Manager Marketing (from left), Suranga Fernando - Manager Administration & Compliance,  
Ms. Shenika Mathangaweera - Head of Customer Relationship Management, Pradeep Balasooriya - Head of Micro Finance,  
and Prasad Polwatte - Head of Internal Audit
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BRANCH MANAGERS

Rukshan ThilakarathneN. SureshkumarMithila Ranasinghe Kalana Gunarathna

REGIONAL MANAGERS

F. Amalas                                                               
Chunnakam

S. Deshpriya  
Embilipitiya  

Thushan Peiris
Kotahena

Janaka Rajakaruna
Anuradhapura

W. K. G. T. Ariyarathne
Dambulla

K. H. Sudantha
Matara

Tissa Silva
Matugama

T. M. C. D. B. Tennakoon
Kurunegala

Jeewan Athukorala
Ratnapura

Priyantha Ganga
Panadura

 Batticaloa 

 Galle 

 Kandy

 Kegalle

 Kuliyapitiya

 Mannar

 Matale

 Negombo

 Nelliady

 Trincomalee

 Vavuniya

Other Branches



From strength to strength 
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The global economic situation improved in 
2012, as short-term risks for the stability 

mitigated with decisive policies adopted by 
advanced economies, especially the  
commitments by European members to  
defuse concerns over the integrity of Euro 
area and the decision by the United States to 
avert “fiscal cliff”, the policy package to raise 
taxes while curbing expenditure. 

The pace of growth in the emerging market 
and developing economies was relatively 
strong in 2012 with solid policy actions, even 
though economic prospects of advanced 
economies deteriorated by several  
downside risks; large stocks of government 
debt, soaring unemployment rates, high  
financial fragmentation and weak bank 
balance sheets, which made their growth 
vulnerable.

Among the crucial policy actions taken by 
Euro members are the European Central 
Bank (ECB)’s Outright Monetary  
Transactions (OMT) or the programme to buy 
short-term bonds of the member economies 
in the secondary market, establishment of 
European Stability Mechanism a  
permanent international financial institution 
that assists in preserving the financial stability 
of the European monetary union by providing 
temporary stability support to Euro members, 
single supervisory mechanism and the bailout 
programme to Greece. 

However, advanced economies relied more 
on unconventional monetary policies in 2012, 
given the OMT by ECB, the quantitative  
easing a programme to purchase treasury 
bonds directly by the Federal Reserve of 
the United States and bold monetary policy 
framework of the newly elected Japanese 
government to quit deflation and to achieve 
higher inflation within two years. Although the 
near-term results seem to be favourable, the 
risks to the financial stability in the future need 
close monitoring. The high-performing  
emerging economies like China, India, Brazil 
and South Africa were also affected by  
shrinking exports to advanced economies as 
slowdown continued and by high oil prices 
related with geo-political uncertainties in oil 

producing economies and the embargo on 
Iranian oil. Based on the speed of recovery, 
the IMF observes the world recovery as an  
emergence of a “three-speed” global economy 
for 2013, namely the first speed group  
consisting of the economies that are doing 
well, the second speed group of economies 
who are on the mend and the third speed 
group comprising the economies that still 
have some distance to travel. The first speed 
group, especially emerging market and  
developing economies are projected to grow 
at higher rates with an average of 5.3% in 
2013 than the growth achieved in 2012. 

The key challenges of these economies are 
loose monetary policies that might affect the 
handling of capital flows and exchange rate 
pressures together with creating high asset 
prices alongside rapid growth of credit and 
disturbances to macroeconomic and financial 
stability due to the volatility in capital flows. 
The defensive policies on strengthening 
banking regulation and supervision, limiting 
credit growth, imposing capital requirements 
and monitoring foreign exchange exposures 
should be among the priorities of policy 
makers.

The second speed group consists of the 
economies that are exhibiting positive  
developments in addressing crisis led policy 
issues. For example, the United States 
economy is satisfactorily recovering with the 
reviving private sector demand amid the  
largest fiscal adjustment in a single year 
within past three decades; the sequester or a 
range of spending cuts which is estimated to 
cut half of the GDP away. 

Reduction of government debt to a  
sustainable level along with budgetary  
savings and extra revenue could further  
support the revival in private demand. The 
third speed group includes Euro area and  
Japan, the economies that have to travel a 
long distance. The daunting challenges to be 
faced by the crisis hit European Union in 2013 
are country level fiscal consolidation  
measures, stimulation of economic growth 
and employment, building firewall against  
contagion, restoring confidence in the  
European banking sector and further  

MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS

Global economy 
recorded a  
modest 3.2% 
growth in 2012  
bolstered by the 
higher than  
anticipated growth 
of 2.2% of the  
United States  
and revival in  
activities in  
emerging market 
and developing  
economies  
generating a 
growth of 5.1%. 



Annual Report 2012/13 21

The country’s per 
capita income 
reached near 
US$3,000 levels in 
2012, underscoring 
sustained positive 
movement in the 
per capita growth of 
US$1,200 in 2005.

extension of monetary easing. The arduous 
way towards achieving them lies in the midst 
of mounting public debt levels, declining 
investments, rising unemployment  
and financial fragmentation. The Japanese 
economy is heading a growth drive by fiscal 
and monetary stimulus together with structural 
reforms. Necessity to take prudent decisions 
to lower the debt in medium-term is further 
emphasized.

SRI LANKA
Amidst such challenges, the Sri Lankan  
economy generated a 6.4% annual growth 
in 2012 pursuant to an 8% annual growth in 
the two preceding years. This moderation of 
growth in 2012 was the combined outcome of 
subdued external demand, tightened domestic 
policies and the effects of adverse weather 
conditions that impacted agriculture and hydro 
power generation. 

The severe drought in the second and third 
quarters of 2012 limited agriculture sector 
growth to 5.8%. The services sector growth 
moderated to 4.6%, despite the expansion 
in tourism and related services mainly due 
to lower domestic and external demand. The 
industry sector performed well in 2012 largely 
supported by the thriving construction  
activities. The development strategy of the 
Government continued to focus mainly on the 
development of maritime,energy,aviation,edu
cation,tourism,agriculture,rural development 
and export industries without allowing them to 
suffer from short term adjustment effects. 

A significant expansion of productive capacity 
has been created through the development of  
infrastructure facilities, which have already 
been completed or nearing completion  
including 3 new sea ports, several fishery  
harbors, a new international airport, power 
plants, new roads and irrigation schemes, to 
support continued economic expansion.

As per World Bank's Doing Business Survey 
2013, Sri Lanka further improved its position 
to the 81st from the 89th position in the  
previous year underpinning the continued 
progress in the creation of a supportive  
business environment in the country. 

The gross investment/GDP ratio exceeded 
30% in 2012, after remaining at low levels for 
3 decades. The disparity between the urban 
and the rural further narrowed. 

The overall poverty level declined from 15.2% 
in 2006/07 to 6.5% in 2012 (provisional), with 
a rapid decline in multifaceted poverty  
demonstrating that the rural centric  
development strategy of the Government has 
been effective. With continued economic  
expansion, the unemployment rate also  
declined further to 4% in 2012. despite price 
adjustments, the monetary policy was able to 
curtail the growth in money and credit  
expansion and contain the annual inflation at 
around 8%. The single digit inflation achieved 
was further strengthened by the agriculture 
policy of the government that recognizes 
food security as an explicit objective and also 
encourages generation of a greater surplus in 
food production.

The country's per capita income reached near 
US$ 3,000 level in 2012, underscoring  
sustained positive movements in the per 
capita growth that was witnessed since 2005, 
in which year the per capita income was US$ 
1,200. increasing domestic demand, along 
with expected improvement in the global 
economic outlook, prospects remain strong to 
return to a high growth path of 7.5 – 8% in the 
medium term. Hence, the year 2012 can be 
reckoned as the year in which the economic  
transformation that is in place in Sri Lanka 
was facilitated having put in place the required  
adjustments towards securing stability, to 
ensure reaching the upper middle income 
economy status by 2016, without  
compromising the US$ 4,000 per capita 
income target.
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OPERATIONAL  
REVIEW

Nation Lanka Finance PLC is a Public  
Limited Liability Company incorporated 

in Sri Lanka on 15th July, 1987. We are a 
Registered Finance Company regulated by 
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka and Public 
Quoted Company listed at the Colombo Stock 
Exchange. The Company is engaged in  
leasing, hire purchase, loans, pawning and 
micro financing. 

REGISTERED FINANCE  
COMPANY BY CENTRAL BANK 
OF SRI LANKA
The swift and prudent initiatives taken by the 
management to gear the Company for  
renewed growth was commended by the  
Central Bank which granted Nation Lanka 
Finance the license to operate as a Registered 
Finance Company with effect from 5th March 
2012. This vote of confidence in the Company 
will enable us to mobilise deposits and  
introduce savings products to add to our  
existing portfolio of products and services.

NLF commenced soliciting public deposits on 
5th March 2012 after obtaining the Finance 
Company license. During the 3-4 week period 
up to 31st March 2012, NLF mobilized LKR 
188mn. NLF’s current deposit base has 
surpassed LKR 2.6bn representing staggering 
growth during the post take over period. 

ENHANCING  
PRODUCT PORTFOLIO
The Company has been engaged in the  
provision of leasing, hire purchase and loan 
products and services. During 2011, the  
Company widened its portfolio by adding 
pawning and micro financing products and 
services, which reflects the depth of skill and 
capability of the Company’s resources.

During the period under review, the loan  
portfolio expanded as a result of a series of 
lending initiatives backed by the newly raised 
capital via the rights issues. Micro financing, 
proved to be the winning product as it was 
whole - heartedly embraced by the target 
group. During the year, the company has 
introduced premier financial products such as 
Consumer Finance Loans for financing Home 
appliances.
 

FIXED DEPOSITS
NLF commenced soliciting public deposits on 
5th March 2012 after obtaining the Licensed  
Finance Company license. NLF’s current 
deposit base has surpassed LKR 2.6bn  
representing a staggering growth during the 
post take over period. Fixed Deposits are  
available in all of the branches and are offered 
at competitive rates. 

MICRO FINANCE (MF) 
The philosophy of Microfinance is the provision 
of finance to those who have no access to 
traditional sources of finance such as banks, 
in order to enable them to establish or develop 
their micro business enterprises. NLF is 
committed to providing Microfinance services 
through the establishment of the most efficient 
client servicing process in the industry, thereby 
enabling the customers to alleviate poverty 
by promoting economic empowerment for a 
sustainable livelihood.

Venturing into Micro Finance under the name 
“Dinawamu Lanka” was a collective decision 
of the new Board of Directors, as it was felt 
that with the expansion in economic activity 
throughout the country the resources and 
talents of the rural sector too had to be made 
use of. NLF’s customers largely comprise of 
lower-end SMEs and self-employed  
individuals. NLF’s microfinance operations are 
carried out in a modified Grameen joint group 
lending model with aspects extracted from the 
ASA model with an objective of maintaining 
and maximizing the operating efficiency and  
productivity.

NLF MF has disbursed more than LKR 2.2bn 
over 40,000 customers island wide. The most 
important factor of the NLF MF program is 
the managing of recovery and collection ratio 
which amazed 98.9%. This is probably the best 
recovery rate among the competitors in the 
country and also the region. 

NLF MF operates a traditional branch based 
sourcing/ operation model and currently is in 
the process of implementing Mobile Banking 
solution to its MF customers in the near future 
with the collaboration of Epic Lanka, a  
pioneering mobile bank solution company in 
Sri Lanka.
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ESTABLISHING A  
DISTINCTIVE IDENTITY
The Company has established a distinctive 
identity with our newly built flagship office 
at, 28, Dickman’s Road with our impressive 
Company logo and colours. A refurbishment 
and relocation of our branches were under 
taken. All the branches were refurbished with 
the central company colours and logo theme 
with the intent of improving the corporate image 
while lending a more high profile quality to the 
brand.

Nation Lanka Finance PLC now has its  
presence in 22 locations across the country 
and has upgraded its infrastructure both  
physically and virtually, to deliver a better 
experience and service to its customers. The 
branch net work comprises of Colombo head 
office, Kotahena, Panadura, Mathugama, Galle, 
Matara, Rathanpura, Embilipitya, Negambo,  
Kurunegala, Kuliyapitya, Kegalle, Kandy, 
Matale, Dambulla, Anuradhapura, Vavuniya, 
Batticaloa, Mannar, Chunnakam, Nelliyadi and 
Trincomalee. NLF is one of the only companies 
in its size that has presences around the  
country covering each and every province.

SUBSIDIARIES
Nation Lanka Equities (NLE), the stock broking 
arm of Nation Lanka Finance PLC is one of the 
largest stock brokers in Sri Lanka. They have a 
full member status in the Colombo Stock  
Exchange. NLE is equipped with a team of 
experienced investment advisors across 10 
branches, a fully – fledged research unit and 
an in house margin trading Company. The 
company ranked 11th out of 28 of stock brokers 
during the last financial year. 

Millennium Hosing Developers Limited (MHDL) 
is active in the Real Estate & Property Sector. 
The Company launched its latest project in  
Piliyandala. The Company’s future plans 
include a foray into a medium type housing 
project consisting of 10 to 50 housing units 
and mini type housing project consists 5 to 
10 housing units. Future plans also include 
construction of apartments, land development 
and land selling. 

Nation Lanka Capital Ltd. is a margin trading 
company, which is lending against marginable 
securities trading in the Colombo Stock  
Exchange. The company was established with 
the strategic vision of creating a value addition 
to a business activity of stock broking that is 
being performed by the sister company Nation 
Lanka Equities Pvt. Ltd.

LEVERAGING ON  
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
ICT is of strategic importance to the business 
of NLF rather than a mere support service. The 
ICT department of NLF continuously strives to 
equip the Company with the latest technology 
and the state-of-the-art system to provide a 
competitive advantage to its employees.

During the year the IT department played a 
leading role in ensuring that the expanding 
service network of the company was provided 
with suitable information technology and  
communication services on a timely basis.
The department was able to provide support 
services effectively in the environment where, 
in addition to catering to the operational  
requirements of the company, the  
administrative requirements of all users are 
system based. A robust IT platform is structured 
to support the company to achieve a seamless 
customer experience and deliver our promise of 
superior customer care. A complete  
changeover from the previous software 
platform has been achieved during the period 
under review. The new system has fully  
integrated front and back office functions, which 
has empowered our staff to provide  
comprehensive information and services to 
customers at the click of a button. the company 
is in the midst of completing system migration 
to the oracle platform.

In this financial year the company successfully 
ventured in to introduce Mobile Banking  
Solution with collaboration of Epic Lanka  
Technologies Mobile Branchless Banking 
Solution (EMBBS) to cater island wide large 
customer base. This is a multiple front-end  
device based comprehensive online banking 
application which provides an effective  
framework for Banks and Financial Institutions 
to shift their operational strategies to a new 
dimension. 
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With EMBBS banking and financial services it 
could be facilitated at field level yet all  
transactions are communicated securely to a 
central repository online real-time basis. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES
Uplifting livelihoods of the under privileged:  
Sustainability lies at the heart of our philosophy 
and this is the driving force that spurred us 
to acquire a distressed company and effect a 
complete turnaround during the period under 
review, we took the decision to introduce micro 
finance as a strategy to reach out to the lowest 
in the socio economic pyramid whilst  
establishing a sustainable business model that 
adds value to customers by way of improving 
their quality of life.

Micro finance provides the right platform for the 
company to engage with the target audience, 
understand their needs and design products 
and services that best fulfill their needs. By 
making low cost finance available to  
beneficiaries largely engaged in agriculture and 
livestock, these farmers are able to uplift their 
living standards and earnings and give shape 
to their dreams of providing a comfortable life 
and education for their children. The company 
is actively conducting workshops for customers 
on subjects such as financial management and 
entrepreneurship. we are encouraged by the 
overwhelming enthusiasm with which our micro 
finance product was received and the company 
will continue to add greater value to our deep 
bonds with the economically underprivilaged in 
the country.

CORPORATE  
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
CSR of NLF is linked primarily with Micro 
Finance Strategy and NLF’s service to  
Microfinance customers goes beyond the mere 
provision of finance, NLF provides them with 
awareness on funding their micro business  
activities through Microfinance products and 
advice on basic financial management,  
leadership personal development and Financial 
literacy. For making a success of the training  
programs NLF has tied up with the Regional 
Development Department of The Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka. Under this program NLF  
organizes monthly training and development 
Programs Island wide with the respective 
Regional offices of CBSL. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 
In 2012, it was a major milestone for the  
company when it obtained a Central  
Bank-issued finance license, which propelled 
the finance company towards medium-scale 
entity status. Moreover, the granting of the 
state-endorsed finance license established  
Nation Lanka Finance on a firm  
footing – creating the much needed  
institutional make up for the company to access 
a wide girth of public funds. Historically, Nation 
Lanka Finance was a troubled company of the 
Ceylinco Group but has now emerged as just 
a handful of companies in the original group to 
have started paying back money to  
depositors – so far having paid out as much as 
LKR 1.4bn. 

The proven track record, versatile  
background and esteemed trust of Nation 
Lanka Finance directors have been  
instrumental in steering the company toward its 
current heights. With nearly LKR 5bn in  
assets, some 400 staff, and 22 branches 
located island wide, Nation Lanka Finance has 
set a new target to surpass – to achieve  
LKR 10bn in assets within the next several 
financial years. To rein in the asset-goals the  
company will focus on expanding its branch 
network to include 80,000 customers. In  
operation for 25 years, Nation Lanka Finance 
has progressively surmounted the peaks 
and pits of the huge success as witnessed in 
the past 2.5 years - a testimony to the brave  
new age thinking that fuels the future of the 
organization. Its resounding market success 
together with the winning formula employed by 
Nation Lanka Finance - the experienced top 
management and rated financial backing - is 
set to re-define the finance sector benchmark 
in Sri Lanka. 
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FINANCIAL  
REVIEW

With the company achieving its objective 
of resuscitating and establishing  

depositor confidence in the previous period, 
it began its journey driven by its Vision and 
Mission to evolve in to a stable entity through 
expansion, while being robust to continue its 
path to recovery and to maintain sound financial 
and management structure.   

FUND MOBILIZATION
Fixed deposits remained as the major source  
of funding during the period in review. By  
capitalizing its positioning in the market, the 
company managed to mobilize LKR 1.83bn 
fresh deposits which elevated the deposit base 
to LKR 2.64bn resulting a healthy 33%  
year-on-year growth. 

LOANS & ADVANCES
Through its expanded service network, the 
company disbursed LKR 1.89bn to bring the 
lending base to LKR 1.67bn with a 63%  
increase compared to previous year. Significant  
contribution was from Micro Finance and 
secured loans.

MICRO FINANCE
The Micro Finance arm was the biggest  
contributor of revenue as well as income.  
During the period under review, it recorded 
interest income of LKR 241mn which is 8 fold 
increase compared to LKR 29mn income in half 
year of previous financial year. 

NLF micro arm disbursed LKR 1.49bn during 
the year in review which is over 350% increase 
against last year disbursements of LKR 325mn. 
The micro finance base at the end of the FY 
stood at LKR 706.78mn, which contributes  
significantly to 35% of the total lending  
portfolio.

By the end of the year, 22 business centers 
were offering micro services compared to 9 
operated during the last financial year and the 
customer base recorded a mammoth increase 
by securing 33, 635 beneficiaries from 9,442 in 
the previous year. The compulsory savings  
accounts introduced as a value addition as well 
as a move to inculcate savings habits had a 
total base of LKR102mn against LKR 8.7mn at 
the end of last period. 

PAWNING
The Company continued to grow its portfolio in 
this newly introduced product recording over 8 
fold increase in the portfolio to reach  
LKR 146mn at the end of the financial year. 
This was attributable to the expanded branch 
network which offered pawning facility to a 
wider customer base. The total income  
contribution was LKR 22mn compared to  
LKR 1.4mn recorded the previous year.

ASSET GROWTH
During the period in review the total asset base 
grew by an year-on-year increase of 26% to 
reach LKR 3.44bn from the previous year mark 
of LKR 2.74bn. The main contributors were 
loans and micro finance activities. 

INCOME & INTEREST MARGINS
These was a significant increase in income 
with a mammoth 164% increase in net interest 
income and equally momentous increase of 
92% in gross interest income mainly  
attributable to 56% increase in revenue and 
lower direct interest expense.

PROFITABILITY
Although the income grew significantly, the 
company recorded SLFRS adjusted after tax 
loss of LKR 170mn attributable to 72%  
year-on-year increase in operational expenses. 
This was mainly due to the expansion in the 
branch network, staffing, facilities and  
infrastructure development to position the  
company in a better reach. The new  
establishments were yet to realize its revenue 
potential.

As applicable by required regulations the  
company adopted new accounting standards 
{SLFRS) and the financial statements are  
prepared and presented accordingly. The 
impairment adjustments resulted a  
comprehensive loss in excess of normal loss in 
both current and preceding year.
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PAYING BACK  
LEGACY DEPOSITORS
Reflecting our commitment to deposit holders 
of Ceylinco Financial Services, being one of the 
handful of entities the company continued to 
pay-back the depositors through 36 month plan 
devised prior to taking over. During the period in 
review LKR 374.56mn was paid back bringing 
the total paid to LKR 1.4bn, leaving a balance 
of LKR 154mn to be settled as committed.   

PERFORMANCE BY  
SUBSIDIARIES
During the period in review there has been a 
mixed performance by the subsidiaries. The 
most outstanding one was the Millennium 
Housing Development Limited (MHDL), which 
recorded a remarkable profit before tax of  
LKR 130mn compared to LKR 34mn  
recorded during previous period. Due to  
over-proportionate income tax resulted after tax 
profit of LKR 98mn against LKR 31mn recorded 
last year.

In contrast, the Nation Lanka Equities Limited 
(NLE) recorded a loss of LKR 115.7mn which 
is way above than LKR 28.9mn loss incurred 
in the preceding year. This was attributable to 
considerable drop in the revenue compared 
to the previous period while the administrative 
and operational expenses remained static. The 
margin trading arm of the group, Nation Lanka 
Capital, established in 2011 recorded after tax 
profit of LKR 2.4mn during the financial year. 

Ceylinco Towers Limited and First Lanka  
Treasuries Limited remained as dormant 
entities without having considerable activities 
during the year in review. 
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CORPORATE  
GOVERNANCE 

In this era, Corporate Governance has  
become an essential area on which  

companies are bench marked upon. Being a 
leading institution in the finance industry, we 
believe that one of the main expectations of our 
stake holders is good governance. Accordingly 
our company has placed utmost priority in 
maintaining corporate governance.

Our organizational structure is designed for 
promoting a healthy corporate governance 
culture in the company.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

   External Auditors   Shareholder     Appointing flow
          Reporting flow
          Regulating flow

   SEC     CBSL     Com. Act       BOD

               Audit Committee

     Head of                      Executive   Board Sub        
                  internal Audit                      Director  Committees 

                          Remuneration Committee

               Chief Executive Officer                    IRMC

   Credit             Corporate management

   Investments

   Finance            Management Committees

   Recoveries 

   Human Resources          ALCO          Credit Committee

   IT

   Legal

   Real Estate

BOD: Board of Directors

SEC: The Securities & Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka

CBSL: Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Com. Act: Companies Act

IRMC: Integrated Risk Management Committee

ALCO: Assets & Liabilities Committees
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REGULATIONS AND GUIDELINES
The Company is governed by various directions, acts, rules, regulations and guidelines of external 
authorities and the management. We are pleased to record that the company was not subject to 
any major liabilities during the financial year under consideration.

EXTERNAL REGULATIONS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Relevant regulations are as follows;
1.     Directions issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka 
        a) Finance Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction No. 3 of 
                  2008 which shall be applicable to every finance company registered 
                  in terms of section 2 of the Finance Companies Act No. 78 of 1988. 

2.     Rules, guidelines and recommendations issued by the following:
        a) Best Practice on Corporate Governance Issued jointly by the 
                  Securities Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka and the Institute of 
                  Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka
        b) Listing Rules issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange 

3.     Statutory Requirements 
        a) Companies Act No 07 of 2007
        b) Finance Business Act No 42 of 2011

INTERNAL REGULATIONS
        1. Articles of Association of the Company
        2. Procedures laid down by the board approved Operations Manuals
        3. Internal Audit Manuals
        4. Internal Memos and Circulars issued from time to time

No major violations were reported in the overall Corporate Governance of the company.
 
HIGHLIGHTS 
       1. V. R. Ramanan was appointed to the Board as an Independent Non - Executive Director. 
       2. Retirement of U H Palihakkara and H C De Z Sahabandu from the Board who served 
           as Independent Non – Executive Directors and the resignation of W. B.B. C. J. Fernando.
       3. P.M.L.K. Karanaratne was appointed as the Chairman of both Board Audit Committee and 
           Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) after the resignation of  
           U H Palihakkara. 
       4. Appointment of K.M. Kandegedara to Board Audit Committee and Integrated Risk  
           Management Committee.
       5. Appointment of W.B.B.C.J. Fernando to the Board Audit Committee.

STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIP
As per the shareholder register the structure of ownership for the financial years 2011/2012 and 
2012/2013. Are as follows;

AVAILABLE VOTING SHARES

As at 31-03-2012 31-03-2013

No of Shares 249,912,812 249,912,812
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Five major shareholders as at 31st March 2013 are shown below with comparative figures. 

 
Major  
Share  
holder

 
Name As at 31st March 2012 Name As at 31st March 2013

No of Shares % No of Shares %

First Hatton National Bank/  
Investor Access Equities 
(Pvt) Ltd

87,500,000 35.01 Hatton National Bank/ Investor 
Access Equities (Pvt) Ltd

86,700,000 34.69

Second Mr J Rudra 18,965,625 7.59 Mr. J. Rudra 18,965,625 7.59

Third Pan Asia Banking Corporation 
PLC / Nawaloka Construction 
Company (Pvt) Ltd

17,862,425
 

7.15 Pan Asia Banking Corporation 
PLC/ Nawaloka Construction 
(Pvt) Ltd.

17,862,425 7.15

Fourth Pan Asia Banking Corporation 
PLC/ Mr M N Ranasinghe

6,870,000 2.75 National Wealth Corporation 
Limited.

7,525,935 3.01

Fifth Mr. D Ganeshamoorthy 5,938,800 2.38 Pan Asia Banking Corporation 
PLC. /Mr. M N Ranasinghe.   

6,865,000 2.75

Others Others 112,775,962 45.12 Others 111,993,827 44.81

Committee Meetings Held

Audit Committee Six

Integrated Risk Management Committee Five

Remuneration Committee Two

PERFORMANCE GOVERNANCE
Chairman and the Board of Directors evaluate the performance of the company at the Board level 
and take appropriate strategic decisions to improve the performance. Weekly meetings were held by 
the corporate management with divisional heads to communicate the new strategies and to review 
the activities and the performances of the divisions. Further the Mangers’ meetings were held with 
the corporate management on a monthly basis to review the performance of the branch network.

CHAIRMAN AND THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. H.K.J Dharmadasa was appointed as the Chairman to the Board with effect from 11th March 
2011 and Mr. Jayaprakash Rudra headed the executive functions of the company throughout the 
financial year under review by being the Executive Director. There is no other financial or otherwise 
relationship between Chairman and the Executive Director.

Mr. U.H.Dharmadasa is a Non-Executive Director and he is the son of the chairman, Mr. H.K.J 
Dharmadasa.

BOARD SUB COMMITTEES 
The operation of the Board Sub Committees during the financial year under review is given in the 
following table.
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Attendance of the Directors to the Board Sub Committee is as follows.

Notes:

1. Mr. H. C. De Z. Sahabandu and Mr. U.H. Palihakkara resigned from the board with effect from 9th January 2013.
2. Mr. V.R. Ramanan was appointed to the board with effect from 5th October 2012.

Director

Board
Remuneration  

Committee
Audit Committee

Integrated Risk  
Management  
Committee

Mr. H.K. J. Dharmadasa 12 10 2 2 - - - -

Mr. A. C. Seneviratne 12 11 2 2 - - - -

Mr. J. Rudra 12 11 - - - - - -

Mr. U. H. Dharmadasa 12 09 - - - - - -

Mr. W.B.B.C.J. Fernando 12 10 - - 1 1 5 5

Mr. H. C. De Z. Sahabandu 09 08 2 1 4 5 - -

Mr. U.H. Palihakkara 09 09 2 1 5 5 4 4

Mr. P. M. L. K. Karunaratne 12 11 2 2 5 6 1 1

Mr. K. M.Sunil Kandegedara 12 07 - - 1 1 0 1

Mr. V. R. Ramanan 06 04 - - - - - -
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Compliances to the Finance Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction No 3 of 2008 issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka which shall be  
applicable to every finance company registered in terms of the Finance Companies Act.

Section  Description Level of compliance

02 
Directors’  
Responsibility 

1)  The Board shall strengthen the safety and soundness of 
 the company by;

a.  Approving and overseeing the company’s strategic  
objectives and corporate values and ensuring that such  
objectives and values are communicated throughout the 
company.

Complied with.
Approval and overseeing the company’s strategic objectives
and corporate values are mainly done at the board level at the
Board meetings. 
Communication of such objectives is done at the periodical
management meetings with Heads of divisions and the Heads of
the Branches.

b.  Approving the overall business strategy of the overall  
company including risk management procedures with  
measurable goals at least for immediate next three years.

Complied with.

c.  Identifying risk and ensuring implementation of  
appropriate risk management techniques prudently.

Complied with. 
As prescribed in CBSL Directions, Integrated Risk Management
Committee (IRMC) closely monitored the risk management 
process of the company.

d.  Approving the policy of communication with all  
stakeholders.

Complied with.

e.  Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of Company’s 
internal control system & MIS.

Complied with.
The Board Audit Committee of the company reviews the
adequacy and the integrity of Company’s Internal Control 
System & MIS.

f.     Identifying and designating key management personnel 
       who are in a position to;
f.i)   Significantly influence policy
f.ii)  Direct activities
f.iii) Exercise control over business activities and operation 
       of risk management. 

Complied with. 
Key management personnel were filled by the Board with the
consultation of existing top management.

g.  Defining the authority levels and key responsibilities for
     the board/ key management personnel.

Complied with.
All the authority levels and the responsibilities are clearly defined
in the Operations Manuals.

h.  Ensure the appropriate supervision of the affairs of the 
company by key management personnel.

Complied with.

i.    Periodically assessing the effectiveness of its governance  
      practices including; 
i.i)  Selection, nomination & election of directors & appoint 
      ment of key management   personnel.
i.ii)  Management of conflict of interest and 
i.iii) The identification of weaknesses and implementation of
       changes where necessary. 

Complied with.
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Section  Description Level of compliance

j.   Ensuring the proper succession plan for key management 
personnel.

Complied with.

k.  Having regular meetings with key management to review 
policies and establishing lines of communication and 
monitoring progress towards corporate objectives.

Complied with.
The company has the practice of periodically meeting with the
key management team as well as with the Heads of the
Branches. 

l.  Understanding the regulatory environment. Complied with.
The company always gives the topmost priority to be in line with
regulator’s requirements. The company was not liable for any
deviations from the regulator’s requirements during the year
under review.

m. Exercising due diligence in the hiring of external auditors. Complied with. 
The company selected a well reputed audit firm as the external
auditor.

2)  The Board shall appoint the Chairman and the  
CEO  and define & approve the functions and  
responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO in line with 
the direction.

Complied with. 
The Chairman and the Executive Director/CEO positions were
headed by the two individuals as specified in CBSL directions
under corporate governance.

3)  Ensure a procedure for enabling directors, upon  
reasonable request to seek independent professional 
advice in appropriate circumstances at the company’s 
expense.

Complied with.

4) A director shall abstain from voting on any board  
resolution relating to a matter in which he or any of his  
relatives or a concern in which he has substantial  
interest, and he shall not be counted for the quorum for 
the relevant agenda item of the board meeting.

Complied with.

5) The board shall have a formal schedule of matters  
specifically reserved for decisions to ensure that the 
direction and the control of the company is firmly under its 
authority.

Complied with.
The board has established systems with necessary
controls to ensure the company is firmly under its authority.

6) The board shall ensure keeping CBSL informed before  
taking any remedial action if the company’s becoming 
insolvent or is about to suspense payments due to  
lenders/creditors.

Complied with. 
Such a situation has not arisen

7) The board is responsible for the annual report and annual 
corporate governance report setting out the compliance 
with this direction.

Complied with.
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Section  Description Level of compliance

03
Meetings of 
the board.

1) The board shall meet at least twelve times a financial year 
approximately at monthly intervals. 

Complied with. 
Twelve board meetings were held during the
financial year under review.

04
Composition 
of the  Board 

1) The board members should not be less than five & not 
more than thirteen.

Complied with.
The board comprised of seven directors. 

2) Period of director other than Chief Executive Officer/ 
Executive Director shall not be exceeding nine years.

Complied with. 
The service period of the director is less than nine years.

3) Number of executive directors shall not exceed half of the 
board.

Complied with. 
One director out of seven directors served as Executive Director
during the financial year under review. 

4) No of independent non-executive directors shall be at least 
one fourth of the total number of directors.

Complied with.
There are three independent non-executive directors in the
board. 

5) Non-executive directors shall have necessary skills and 
experience to bring an objective judgment to bear an issue 
of strategy, performance and resources.

Complied with. 
The Non-Executive Director possess the necessary skills and
experience to bring an objective judgment to bear an issue of
strategy, performance and resources. 

05
Criteria to 
assess fitness 
and propriety 
of Directors. 

1)  Age of the director shall not exceed seventy years. Complied with. 
The age limit of all the directors is within the maximum period
permitted by CBSL.

2) The Director of the company shall not hold office as a 
director or any other equivalent position in more than 20  
companies/Societies/ Bodies Corporates/ Associate  
Companies and Subsidiaries of the Company. Provided 
that such Director shall not hold office as a Director or any 
other equivalent position in more than 10 companies that 
are classified as specified business entities in terms of the 
SLAuS act No 15 0f 1995.

Complied with.

07
The  
Chairman  
& Chief  
Executive 
Officer. 

1) The role of the Chairman & Chief Executive Officer shall 
be separated and shall not be performed by the one and 
the same person.

Complied with. 
The Chairman and the Executive Director / CEO positions were
held by two individuals.

2) The Board shall disclose in its corporate governance 
report, which shall be an integral part of its Annual Report, 
the name of the chairman and Chief Executive Officer and 
the nature of any relationship, if any, between the  
chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and  
relationships among members of the Board.

Complied with. 
This report provides the said disclosure requirement. 

3) The role of Chairman provides leadership to the board, 
ensure that the board works effectively and discharge its 
responsibility, ensure that all key issues are discussed by 
the board in a timely manner.

Complied with.
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4) The Chief Executive Officer shall function as the apex 
executive – in – charge of the day to day management of 
the finance company operations and business.

Complied with.
The Executive Director / Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for the day to day operations of the company. 

08 
Board  
appointed 
committee.

1) The company shall have at least an Audit Committee and 
an Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC).

Complied with.
The following sub committees have been appointed by the
board;
1. Audit Committee.
2. Integrated Risk Management Committee.
3. Remuneration Committee.

Following Rules shall be applicable to the Audit Committee

a) The Chairman of the committee shall be a non-executive 
director who possesses qualifications and experience in  
accountancy and/or audit.

Complied with.
The brief profile of the Chairman of the Audit Committee is given
in the Audit Committee Report.

b) The Board members appointed to the committee shall be 
Non - Executive directors.

Complied with.
The Audit Committee comprises of three non-executive 
directors. 

c) The committee shall make recommendations on matters in 
connection with: 

(i) the appointment of the external auditor for audit services 
to be provided in compliance with the relevant statutes; 

(ii) the implementation of the Central Bank guidelines issued 
to auditors from time to time; 

(iii) the application of the relevant accounting standards; and
(iv) the service period, audit fee and any resignation or  

dismissal of the auditor, provided that the engagement 
of an audit partner shall not exceed five years, and that 
the particular audit partner is not re-engaged for the 
audit before the expiry of three years from the date of the 
completion of the previous term.

Complied with.

d) The Committee shall review and monitor the external  
auditor’s independence and objectivity and the  
effectiveness of the audit processes in accordance with 
applicable standards and best practices.

Complied with.



Annual Report 2012/13 35
Section  Description Level of compliance

e) The committee shall develop and implement a policy with 
the approval of the Board on the engagement of an  
external auditor to provide non-audit services that are 
permitted under the relevant statutes, regulations,  
requirements and guidelines. In doing so, the committee 
shall ensure that the provision by an external auditor of 
non-audit services does not impair the external auditor’s  
independence or objectivity. When assessing the external 
auditor’s independence or objectivity in relation to the  
provision of non-audit services, the committee shall  
consider: 

(i) whether the skills and experience of the  
auditor make it a suitable provider of the non-audit  
services; 

(ii) whether there are safeguards in place to ensure that there 
is no threat to the objectivity and/or independence in the 
conduct of the audit resulting from the provision of such 
services by the external auditor; and 

(iii) whether the nature of the non-audit services, the related 
fee levels and the fee levels individually and in aggregate 
relative to the auditor, pose any threat to the objectivity 
and/or independence of the external auditor.

Complied with.

f) The committee shall review the financial information of the 
finance company, in order to monitor the integrity of the 
financial statements of the finance company, its annual 
report, accounts and periodical reports prepared for  
disclosure, and the significant financial reporting  
judgments contained therein. In reviewing the finance 
company’s annual report and accounts and periodical 
reports before submission to the Board, the committee 
shall focus particularly on: 

(i) major judgemental areas; 
(ii) any changes in accounting policies and practices; 
(iii) significant adjustments arising from the audit; 
(iv) the going concern assumption; and 
(v) the compliance with relevant accounting standards and 

other legal requirements.

Complied with.

g) The committee shall discuss issues, problems and  
reservations arising from the interim and final audits,  
and any matters the auditor may wish to discuss including 
those matters that may need to be discussed in the  
absence of key management personnel, if necessary.

Complied with.
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h)   The committee shall take the following steps with regard    
  to the internal audit function of the finance company: 

(i)   Review the adequacy of the scope, functions and  
  resources of the internal audit department, and  
  satisfy it self that the department has the necessary 
  authority to carry out its work; 

(ii)   Review the internal audit program and results of the  
  internal audit process and where necessary, ensure that 
  appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of 
  the internal audit department; 

(iii)  Review any appraisal or assessment of the performance  
  of the head and senior staff members of the internal audit 
  department; 

(iv)  Recommend any appointment or termination of the head, 
  senior staff members and outsourced service providers 
  to the internal audit function; 

(v)  Ensure that the committee is apprised of resignations 
  of senior staff members of the internal audit department 
  including the chief internal auditor and any outsourced 
  service providers, and to provide an opportunity to the 
  resigning senior staff members and outsourced service 
  providers to submit reasons for resigning; Ensure that 
  the internal audit function is independent of the activities 
  it audits and that it is performed with impartiality,  
  proficiency and due professional care;

Complied with.

i)   The committee shall consider the major findings of internal  
 investigations and management responses thereto;

Complied with.

j)   The committee shall have: 
(i)  explicit authority to investigate into any matter within its  

 terms of reference; 
(ii)  the resources which it needs to do so; 
(iii) full access to information; and 
(iv) authority to obtain external professional advice and to  

 invite outsiders with relevant experience to attend, if 
 necessary.

Complied with.

k)  The committee shall meet regularly, with due notice of  
 issues to be discussed and shall record its conclusions in 
 discharging its duties and responsibilities.

Complied with.
The committee has met six times during the financial
year under review. 

l)  The Board shall, in the Annual Report, disclose in an  
informative way, 

(i) details of the activities of the audit committee; 
(ii) the number of audit committee meetings held during the 

year; and 
(iii) details of attendance of each individual member at such 

 meetings.

Complied with.
This information has been reported in the Audit Committee
Report. 

m) The Secretary to the committee (who may be the  
 company secretary or the head of the internal audit  
 function) shall record and keep detailed minutes of the 
 committee meetings.

Complied with. 
The Head of Internal Audit functions as the Secretary to the Audit
Committee and keeps the minutes of the committee meetings.
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n) The committee shall review arrangements by which 
employees of the finance company may, in confidence, 
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial 
reporting, internal control or other matters. Accordingly, 
the committee shall ensure that proper arrangements are 
in place for the fair and independent investigation of such 
matters and for appropriate follow-up action and to act as 
the key representative body for overseeing the finance 
company’s relations with the external auditor.

Complied with.

Following rules shall be applied to the IRMC
a) The committee shall consist of at least one non-executive 

director, CEO and key management personnel  
supervising broad risk categories, i.e., credit, market, 
liquidity, operational and strategic risks. The committee 
shall work with key management personnel closely and 
make decisions on behalf of the Board within the  
framework of the authority and responsibility assigned to 
the committee.

Complied with. 
There are two non-executive directors in the IRMC.

b) The committee shall assess all risks, i.e., credit, market, 
liquidity, operational and strategic risks to the finance 
company on a monthly basis through appropriate risk 
indicators and management information.

Complied with.

c) The committee shall review the adequacy and  
effectiveness of all management level committees such 
as the credit committee and the asset-liability committee 
to address specific risks and to manage those risks within 
quantitative and qualitative risk limits as specified by the 
committee.

Complied with.

d) The committee shall take prompt corrective action to  
mitigate the effects of specific risks in case such risks are 
at levels beyond the prudent levels decided by the  
committee on the basis of the finance company’s policies 
and regulatory and supervisory requirements.

Complied with.

e) The committee shall meet at least quarterly to assess all 
aspects of risk management including updated business 
continuity plans.

Five IRMC meetings were held thereby complying with the 
requirement.

f) The committee shall take appropriate actions against the 
officers responsible for failure to identify specific risks and 
take prompt corrective actions as recommended by the 
committee, and/or as (43) directed by the Director of the 
Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial  
Institutions of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Complied with.

g) The committee shall establish a compliance function to  
assess the finance company’s compliance with laws,  
regulations, directions, rules, regulatory guidelines,  
internal controls and approved policies on all areas of  
business operations. A dedicated compliance officer  
selected from key management personnel shall carry 
out the compliance function and report to the committee 
periodically.

Complied with.
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09
Related Party 
Transactions

1) The board shall take the necessary steps to avoid any 
conflicts of interest that may arise from the transaction of 
the company with related parties.

Complied with. 
Transactions carried out with related parties in the normal course
of business as disclosed in the "Related Party Disclosure".

2) The board shall ensure that the company does not engage 
in transactions with a related party in a manner that would 
grant such party more favorable treatment than that is  
accorded to other similar constituents of the finance  
company.

Complied with.

10
Disclosure

1) The Board shall ensure that: 
(a) annual audited financial statements and periodical  

financial statements are prepared and published in  
accordance with the formats prescribed by the regulatory 
and supervisory authorities and applicable accounting 
standards, and that 

(b) such statements are published in the newspapers in an 
abridged form, in Sinhala, Tamil and English

Complied with.
Annual audited financial statements are prepared as per the
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and such statements are
published in the newspapers in an abridged form in Sinhala,
Tamil and English.

2) The Board shall ensure that at least the following  
disclosures are made in the Annual Report:

a) A statement to the effect that the annual audited financial 
statements have been prepared in line with applicable  
accounting standards and regulatory requirements,  
inclusive of specific disclosures.

Complied with. 
Annual audited financial statements are prepared
as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

b) A report by the Board on the finance company’s internal 
control mechanism that confirms that the financial  
reporting system has been designed to provide a  
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting, and that the preparation of financial statements 
has been done in accordance with relevant accounting 
principles and regulatory requirements.

Complied with. 
The Director’s Statement on Internal Control will provide 
assurance of the internal control mechanism which confirms the
effectiveness of the financial reporting system designed by the
Board. 

c) The external auditor’s certification on the effectiveness of 
the internal control mechanism in respect of any  
statements prepared or published after March 31, 2010.

Not Complied with.

d) Details of directors, including names, transactions with the 
finance company.

Complied with. 
This has been disclosed in the Note 36 A, B, & C

e) Fees/remuneration paid by the finance company to the 
directors in aggregate, in the Annual Reports published 
after January 1, 2010.

Complied with.  
This has been disclosed in the Note 11

f) Total net accommodation as defined in paragraph 9(4)  
outstanding in respect of each category of related parties 
and the net accommodation outstanding in respect of 
each category of related parties as a percentage of the 
finance company’s capital funds.

Complied with. 
This has been disclosed in the Note 36 A, B, & C
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g) The aggregate values of remuneration paid by the finance 
company to its key management personnel and the  
aggregate values of the transactions of the finance 
company with its key management personnel during 
the financial year, set out by broad categories such as 
remuneration paid, accommodation granted and deposits 
or investments made in the finance company.

Complied with.  

h)  A report setting out details of the compliance with  
prudential requirements, regulations, laws and internal 
controls and measures taken to rectify any  
non - compliances.

Complied with.
This is fulfilled in Audit Committee Report and the Risk 
Management Report.

i)  A statement of the regulatory and supervisory concerns on 
lapses in the finance company’s risk management,  
or non - compliance with the Act, and rules and directions 
that have been communicated by the Director of the  
Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial  
Institutions, if so directed by the Monetary Board to be 
disclosed to the public, together with the measures taken 
by the finance company to address such concerns.

Complied with.

j)  The external auditor’s certification of the compliance with 
the Act and rules and directions issued by the Monetary 
Board in the annual corporate governance reports  
published after January 1, 2011.

Complied with.
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RISK  
MANAGEMENT

Risk is an inherent component - not only to a business entity, but also to an individual.  
Therefore, neither a business nor an individual completely rejects risk factors. According to 

the nature of a finance company, risk cannot be eliminated since almost all business  
transactions consist of an element of risk. Hence, by considering the likelihood of occurrence and 
cost of impact, the company decides whether to accept the risk, transfer the risk, manage the 
risk or avoid the risk.

The Committee headed by a Non-Executive Director comprised of two Non-Executive  
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, General Manager, Chief Operations Officer, Chief Finance  
Officer &  Assistant General Manager – Branches.

Its main responsibility includes establishment and implementation of risk policy framework, 
review of materiality, ascertainment and definition of company’s risk appetite and setting the risk 
limits while playing an oversight role in assessing all risks by means of credit, liquidity,  
operational and strategic risks.   .

The management of risk is at the helm of NLF.  Lending to customers is our core business. 
Beyond credit risk, we are exposed to other risks such as Interest rate risk, Liquidity risk,  
operational risk, reputation risk and technology risk. The management of operational risk in 
particular, continues to be enhanced across all areas of the company.

RISK MANAGEMENT APPROACH.
Our approach consists of three elements. A top-down approach is in place for the entire Risk 
Management process. The following elements are available in our Risk Management process.

By understanding this doctrine, the company always applies the method shown in the Risk  
Response Grid for addressing the risk.   

 Identify Risk
 Estimate Risk
 Priority Risk

Risk  
Assesment

 Reports to the Board 
      and to the IRMCRisk  

Reporting

Risk  
Management

 Risk Control
 Risk Avoidance
 Risk Transfer
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RISK MANAGEMENT GRID                                          

Impact Risk Management Actions

Significant Considerable 
Management  
Required

3,5         

Must manage &  
monitor risks     
        

6

Extensive  
management  
essential

                                 7
Moderate Risk may be worth  

accepting with  
monitoring 

                                 2

Management effort 
worthwhile
        

        1,4

Management effort 
required

                  

Minor Accept Risk Accept, but  
monitor risks        

Manage &  
monitor risks

Low Medium High
Likelihood

CREDIT RISK
Credit Risk is the potential financial loss   that could arise as a result of the failure of a borrower or 
counterparty to honor its contractual obligations. Company Credit Risk management policy is not 
to eliminate the Credit Risk but to accept the risk with certain limits. Various guidelines, rules and 
regulations stipulated by the regulators help the company to manage the credit risk. The company 
exposure limits, collaterals to be taken and approval levels have been clearly defined in operations 
manuals which have been prepared with the participation of staff members at all levels..     

INTEREST RATE RISK
The company believes that most of the Finance Companies collapsed in recent past due to not 
maintaining the interest rate gap. Interest Rate Risk occurs due to not having a comfortable gap 
between the borrowing and the lending interest rates. The Company closely monitors the lending 
interest rate as the borrowing rates are controlled by CBSL directives. According to the  
organizational structure of the company, both Finance and Credit divisions are involved in this  
process. Lending and Borrowing interest rates are decided by the top management after  
considering the market rates and various other factors.

LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk we will face by not having financial resources to meet our obligations when 
they fall due. It is our policy to maintain adequate liquidity at all times and be in a position to meet 
all obligations as they fall due. Regulators monitor the process of liquidity maintenance of the 
company by the following  mechanisms.

CBSL Direction Requirement

Finance Companies (Liquid Asset) Direction  
No 01 of 2009

This is the ratio of liquid assets against  
the total deposits.

Finance Companies (Capital Fund) Direction  
No 01 of 2003

Minimum capital fund requirement to be  
maintained as against the total deposits.
Requirement of maintaining reserve funds. 

Direction No 01 of 2003 Requirement of maintaining reserve funds.
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OPERATIONAL RISK
Operational Risk mainly arises from human errors. Operational Risk might also be caused due to  
technical problems or natural disasters. Sources for Operational risks include fraud, mistakes due to  
negligence, system failures or breakdowns which are difficult to avoid completely but possible to manage up 
to an excepted level.  The Company recognises the significance of operational risk which is inherent in all 
areas of business.

The group internal audit division closely monitors the operational procedures that are in operation and make 
every effort to have an updated and effective set of procedures. Further, internal audit verification is done 
periodically by the group internal audit division to ensure the smooth operation of specified procedures.  
Audit findings and management responses are forwarded to the audit committee which formulates the  
recommendations to the Board for rectification. The group internal audit division conducts awareness  
programs also for educating staff members. 

REPUTATIONAL RISK
Reputational risk could arise from the failure of the Company to effectively mitigate the risks in its  
businesses including credit, liquidity, market, regulatory, legal or other operational risks. Damage to the 
Company’s reputation could cause existing clients to reduce or cease to reduce or cease to do business 
with the Company and prospective clients to be reluctant to do business with the Company.  All employees 
are responsible for day-to-day identification and management of reputational risk. 

Reputational risk may also arise form a failure to comply with environmental and social standards.  
A comprehensive list of legal and regulatory compliance is tabled at monthly Board meetings. Compliance 
to rules and regulations by the subsidiary companies are called on a monthly basis and tabled to manage 
reputational risk, which could arise from the activities of other Group companies. The Company insures  
deposit liabilities in a deposit insurance scheme operated by the Monitory Board in terms of Sri Lanka 
deposit insurance scheme regulation No. 1 of 2010 issued under section 32A to 32E of the Monitory law act 
with effect from 1st October 2010.

COMPLIANCE RISK
Compliance risk is the risk arising from deviations from the directions, guidelines and other rules stipulated 
by the regulators and other corporate bodies such as Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

The Compliance Officer ensures the adherence to the above requirement. In addition to this a monthly  
non-compliance report is also forwarded to the Board of Directors by the Internal Audit Division. This 
facilitates the Board to take immediate corrective measures to avoid non-compliances. On-site examinations 
which are carried out by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka from time to time also help us minimise the  
compliance risk. 

TECHNOLOGY RISK
Any company which relies heavily on information system is vulnerable to system break-downs and various 
types of difficulties.

The Company uses modern information systems in all its main activities in order to. providing a better  
service to customers and to improve the quality of management information system. 
The Company bears the risk of data losses and pilferage of information to competitors which cannot be 
totally avoided. Having understood the risk associated with Information Systems, the Company has already 
adopted all the available precautionary measures at present.
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The Company established the Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) by adhering 
to the section 8. (3), of the Corporate Governance Direction No 03 of 2008, issued by the 

Central Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL) which shall be applicable for every company registered in 
terms of section 2 of the Finance Companies Act No 78 of 1988,

COMPOSITION OF THE  
INTEGRATED RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The committee consists of the following members. 

Mr. P.M.L.K. Karunaratne
Chairman – Independent Non – Executive Director
(With effect from 1st March 2013)

Mr. K.M. Kandegedara
Member – Independent Non –Executive Director 
(With effect from 1st March 2013)

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Madhawa Eddusuriya
General Manager

Ms. Shubhani Jayawardana
Chief Oprations Officer

Mr. Upali Rajapaksha
AGM Branches

Mr. Prasanna Habaragamuwa
CFO  

Mr. Prasad Polwatte,
Chief Internal Auditor 
Secretary to the IRMC.  

Brief profiles of the Directors representing the Committee are given on page 12 to 14 of the 
Annual Report

OBJECTIVE OF THE IRMC
The main objective of the IRMC is to assist the Board of Directors to ;
 Recommend an appropriate policy concerning overall risk assessment and risk  
        management of the company.
 Review the adequacy, completeness and implementation, effectiveness of the Company's  
        risk management process and recommend improvements where deemed necessary.

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
The Terms of Reference set out by the Board of Directors, include the following:

 Periodically review the organization’s risk management framework including but not limited 
        to:
      The risk governance structure
      The risk competencies of the company
      The risk tolerance of the company
      The risk management strategy and associated risk management initiatives.
      The coordination of risk management activities of the company

INTEGRATED 
RISK  
MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
REPORT
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 Review the company’s risk exposure and compliance with risk policies covering the risk of the 
        company, including but not limited to, strategic risk, market risk, credit risk, operational risk and liquidity 
        risk.

 Assess the company’s monitoring, priorotizing and reporting framework to support effective 
        management of risks.

 Periodically review and assess the adequacy of the charter and recommend any proposed changes to 
        the Board for approval.

 Carry out any other responsibilities and duties delegated to it by the Board from time to time, related to 
        the responsibilities outlined above.

 Evaluate its own performance annually and report its findings and recommendations to the Board.

MEETINGS
Five committee meetings of IRMC were held during the financial year under review and the attendance of 
the Directors at the meetings is given on page 30 of the Annual Report.

During the financial year 2012/13, IRMC reviewed overall business strategy within a set of prudent risk 
parameters that are reinforced by an effective risk management framework. The conclusions reached at the 
meetings have been recorded in minutes and have been duly circulated to the Board of Directors.

P.M.L.K. Karunaratne
Chairman, Integrated Risk Management Committee.

Colombo
29th August 2013
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HUMAN  
RESOURCE  
DEVELOPMENT

DESIGNATION WISE STAFF DATA AS AT 31ST MARCH 2013

Being a service oriented organization, staff is our primary asset. During the past year, 
identified HR elements / HR processes were reviewed and streamlined to align with the 

changes that occurred in our business including the requirements resulted due to opening of 
new Branches. Reorganization of Departments and Branches and training of staff were key 
elements within this process. 

Initiation of Induction Programmes for new recruits was a successful launch within the sphere 
of Training and Development. On – the – job training was part of this programme which helped 
the new recruits to assume their official duties with closer familiarization with the processes 
and procedures as well as the culture. Our Training Programmes within the year were mainly 
designed as in-house and on – the – job trainings where around 90% of the staff members 
were given the opportunity to enhance their skills, knowledge and aptitudes. In addition,  
identified staff members were given the opportunity to attend external Training Programmes 
where the respective staff members shared the learning with their colleagues under  
Knowledge Sharing Programmes. Together with the expansion of our businesses, we were 
able to offer existing employees new challenges with ample opportunities for career  
progression. This resulted in promotions, transfers and lateral career movements which  
improved employee motivation and reduced stagnation in certain positions. We also offered  
opportunities for young motivated individuals, especially undergraduates and students  
following professional courses to join our team as Trainees which offered many benefits to the 
Company as well as the individuals concerned. Trainees who excelled in their performance 
were offered permanent employment within the Company. 

The annual Staff Day was held at Wadduwa Holiday Resort in November 2012 offered an 
opportunity for all staff members throughout the Country to be away from their busy schedules 
and enjoy the day with their colleagues. By focusing on aforementioned activities, Nation 
Lanka Finance has been able to ensure a staff retention rate of over 80% within the past year.  

EMPLOYEE CATEGORY NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

TOP MANAGEMENT 4

SENIOR MANAGERS AND AGM'S 11

MANAGERS 73

EXECUTIVE LEVEL 151

CLERICAL & OTHER 128
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CORPORATE  
SOCIAL  
RESPONSIBILITY

Educational Sponsorship Programme for 100  
Children islandwide

Spectacle donation programme

After three decades of war Sri Lanka 
is now moving forward with a vibrant 

economic growth in every sector. This 
enabled Nation Lanka to capitalize on  
opportunities that existed in the  
Micro-finance industry. In 2011 the  
Company expanded the Micro-finance 
portfolio with a selective  approach, where 
Loans are granted only to women  
borrowers. The borrowers are  formed into 
Groups, with the Group being responsible 
for the borrowers repayments and the 
programme maintains over 99% recovery 
rate with every loan being secured by loan 
protection insurance.

The novel approach focuses on the family, 
with the mother being at the epicenter.  
The borrowers are provided with a three 
week training focusing on business growth 
and eliminating unnecessary expenditure.  
The idea is to make these women  
self-reliant and not to be dependent on the 
Income of the husband alone. Further, the 
savings habit is cultivated among these 
borrowers thru opening of savings accounts 
for the borrower as well as for the children.  
Regular training is conducted by well 
trained and dedicated micro-finance staff 
of Nation Lanka Finance and we expect 
the success of Micro-finance will assist the 
growth of the Sri Lankan GDP.

With this focused approach, commencing in 
2011, Micro-finance has penetrated every 
corner of Sri Lanka, including the North, 
East and Deep South.  By the financial year 
end 2012 - 13 March, the loans outstanding 
was LKR 825mn, assisting the borrowers 
to build a successful  Micor level business 
with increasing income levels.  Further, the 
savings habit is encouraged and a very  
attractive rate of 8% pct is paid on these 
savings accounts, with a weekly  
contribution of LKR 100/-. Withdrawals are 
permitted only when the customer leaves 
the centre.   

CREATION OF  
AN EMERGENCY FUND
Every branch is required to build an  
Emergency Fund, after six (6) months of 
operation.  This provision should be 1% 
pct from the Loans granted and this fund 
should be utilized to arrange special  
activities, in relation to centre meetings and 
any other corporate social responsibility 
(CSR) activites, as decided by the  
Micro-Finance Manager.  

YOUNG ENTREPRENEUR  
WITH ATHLETIC SKILLS
Ms. Niluka de Silva is a young  
entrepreneur, supported by Nation Lanka 
Finance PLC, engaged in manufacturing 
cement blocks.  She is a courageous young 
lady from Anuradhapura who commenced 
the business with a small capital base.  

Nation Lanka Finance assisted her with a 
loan of Rs. 35,000/- to improve her  
business,  Further, working with her to 
develop the business, we also found out 
that she is a skilled athlete, with talent to 
compete in 400,800 and 1500 metre races. 
With the support of Nation Lanka  
micro-finance, she successfully completed 
in the 33rd Annual Track & Field  
championship in Singapore in 2012, 
winning two Gold Medals and two Silver 
Medals.  We are proud of our support to 
Ms. Niluka to achieve her goal, as a socially 
responsible organization and we expect to 
further educate and develop young talent 
in the future.Fast growing, focused Nation 
Lanka Micro-finance of Jaffna supports the 
pre-school children to respond to future 
challenges, thru education.  

Further, a vision enhancement programme 
to support the visually handicapped was 
a flagship corporate social responsibility 
(CSR) project initiated by Nation Lanka  
Micro-finance PLC.In Jaffana. Nation Lanka 
Micro-Finance project with the Sri Ampal 
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Supporting the Visually Handicapped in Jaffna

Donation of Rubber Carpets to Central Hospital 
Trincomalee by Trincomalee NLF Branch

Training Program for SME

Nation Lanka Finance PLC Mercantile "A" Division Cup Champions - 2012 

pre-school children is to ensure the vision 
for their future is fulfilled and to work hand in 
hand with the community, to ensure success.
The Micro-Finance  Division of the Panadura 
Branch organized a Corporate Social  
Responsibility (CSR) programme in  
November, 2012.  The programme not only 
covered Micro-finance activities and related 
developments, but also emphasized that  
Nation Lanka Finance will support them in 
the event the business grows to a much  
higher level than the Micro-Finance  
threshold.The programme of CSR of the 
Panadura Branch, with the support and 
commitment of the staff, also distributed 
approximately 800 pairs of spectacles to the 
needy, thereby providing a tangible benefit to 
our Micro-customers for their loyalty.

Nation Lanka Finance PLC. Mercantile Rugby Runners Up in 2013
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From strength to strength 
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF  
DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY 

The Directors of Nation Lanka Finance 
PLC present their report together with the 

Audited, Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Group for the year ended 31st March 2013. 
The Report contains pertinent information and 
disclosures required under the Companies  
Act  No.07 of 2007, the Listing Rules of the 
Colombo  Stock Exchange, the Finance 
Companies Act and  the requirements of the Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES       
The principal business activities of the Group 
are Lending including Financial Leases, Micro 
Finance, Hire Purchase, Loans, Pawn Broking, 
Financial Services, Trading in Real Estate & 
Property Development, and Share Broking. 

GROUP TURNOVER
The gross income of the Group amounts to 
LKR 1,211mn.

RESULTS AND  
APPROPRIATIONS
The Financial Statements of the Company and 
the Group are given on Page 59 of this Annual 
Report.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS &  
PERFORMANCE
The Chairman’s review provides an overall 
assessment of the Company’s operations and 
performance during the financial year under 
review on Page 8 & 9.

MISSION STATEMENT &  
CORPORATE GOALS
The mission statement and the Corporate 
Goals are given on inner front cover.

BRANCH NETWORK
The Company has 22 Branches in  
different parts of the Island and the details of 
the Branches are set out under Corporate  
Information on inner back cover.  

SUBSIDIARIES
The Principal activities and the performance 
of the subsidiaries are set out in Page 26. The 
Company currently has 07 subsidiaries  
diversified into different lines of business 
activity.

PROPERTY,  
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Group expenditure on the acquisition and  
disposal of fixed assets during the year 
amounted to LKR 137.8mn and LKR 12.2mn 
and information relating to movement in Fixed 
Assets is given in Note 26 to the Financial 
Statements.  

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors do not recommend the 
payment of a dividend for the Ordinary  
Shareholders for financial year under review. 

INVESTMENTS
The Company has invested LKR 449mn  
subsidiaries. Investment in Shares in addition to 
the above, amount to LKR 4.6mn Details of  
Investments held by the Company are  
described in Note 20.

STATED  CAPITAL
The Stated Capital of the Company as at 31st 
March  2013 was LKR 1,817,952,330/-  
representing 249,912,812 Ordinary Shares. 
The structure of the Stated Capital is given in 
Note 35 to the Accounts. 38,706 warrants were 
converted at the rate of LKR 12/- to Ordinary 
Shares on 11th July 2013 and thereby the  
Stated Capital amounted to  
LKR 1,818,416,802/-   representing 
249,951,518 Ordinary Shares.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDINGS
The 20 major shareholders of the Company 
as at 31st March 2012 and 2013 are listed on 
Page 107 in  the  Investor and  
Shareholder Information

SHAREHOLDING
As at 31/03/2013 there were 15,269 Registered 
Shareholders. The distribution, categories 
and location of shareholders are indicated on 
Page 108 under “Shareholders and Investors” 
information.

STOCK MARKET INFORMATION
Information relating to earnings, dividends, net 
assets per share and share trading are given 
on Page 109.

DIRECTORATE
The Members of the Board  during the financial 
year under review  were as follows :-
H K J Dharmadasa         -  Non Executive 
A C Seneviratne             -  Non Executive
J Rudra                  -  Executive
U H Dharmadasa           -  Non Executive   
W B B C J Fernando      -  Executive
P M L K Karunaratne      -  Non Executive/ Independent
U H Palihakkara             -  Non Executive / Independent
H C de Z Sahabandu     -  Non Executive / Independent
K M S Kandegedara       -  Non Executive / Independent
V R Ramanan                -  Non Executive / Independent

The Profile of the Board of Directors of the  
Company are given in Page 12 to 14.

NEW APPOINTMENT  
TO THE BOARD    
Mr V R Ramanan, was appointed to the Board 
on 5th October 2012 as a Non Executive / 
Independent Director.
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RESIGNATION /  
RETIREMENT OF  DIRECTORS    
Mr. U.H. Palihakkara and  Mr. H.C. de  
Z. Sahabandu retired from the Board on 9th 
January 2013 and Mr. W.B.B.C.J. Fernando 
resigned from the Board with effect from 28th 
March 2013. The Board wishes to place on 
record the appriciation for the valuable services 
renderd by them during financial year under 
review. 

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS    
AND THEIR RE – ELECTION 
In accordance with Article 88 of the Articles of  
Association of the Company,  
Mr  P M L K Karunaratne, retires by rotation 
and is eligible for re-election. Mr V R Ramanan, 
retires in terms of Article 95 of the Articles of 
Association and is eligible for election.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR’S  
RESPONSIBILITIES
The Directors Responsibilities in compliance 
with the requirements in preparation of financial  
statements are set out in Page 55.

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION   
The remuneration paid to the Executive and 
Non Executive Directors during the financial 
year under review is given in Note 11 to the 
financial statements. 

EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS 
Mr P D Charith S Amarasekara, was appointed 
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, 
with effect from 1st April 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was restructured  
subsequent to retirement / resignation of  
Directors and as at the date of this report  
the Audit Committee comprises of  
Mr P M L K Karunaratne, Mr U H Dharmadasa 
and Mr K M S Kandegedara of whom  
Mr P M L K Karunaratne, functions as the 
Chairman of the Committee. The report of the 
Audit Committee is given on Page 53 & 54.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee was  
restructured subsequent to retirement of 
Directors and as at the date of this report the 
Remuneration Committee comprises of  
Mr H K J Dharmadasa, Mr A C Seneviratne,  

Mr P M L K Karunaratne and  
Mr K M S Kandegedara of whom  
Mr H K J Dharmadasa functions as the  
Chairman of the Committee. 

STATUTORY PAYMENTS
The Directors, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief are satisfied that all statutory  
payments have been made up to date or 
provided for same.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
The Board has overall responsibility for the 
Company’s Systems of Internal Control. The 
Company’s internal control and check systems 
have been designed to provide the Directors 
with reasonable assurance that the Assets are 
protected, safeguarded and transactions are 
authorized thereby ensuring that errors and 
irregularities are either prevented or detected 
within a timely period, whilst ensuring that 
Corporate Governance is properly practiced 
and adhered to.

AS AT 31-03-13                31-03-12   
Mr H K J Dharmadasa  1,262,000 1,262,000
Mr A C Seneviratne                         - -
Mr J Rudra     18,965,625 18,965,625
Jt with Ms S L Arumugam                6,187           6,187
Mr U H Dharmadasa              - -
Mr P M L K Karunaratne      - -
Mr K M S Kandegedara     - -
Mr V R Ramanan     1,796,786      1,604,870
Mr W B B C J Fernando        497,270  497,270

Mr U H Palihakkara 13,112  13,112
Jt with Ms D S  Palihakkara 786        786
Mr P D C S Amarasekara - -

AS AT 31-03-13                31-03-12   
Mr H K J Dharmadasa 151,440 151,440
Mr A C Seneviratne                         - -
Mr J Rudra 2,485,875 2,485,875
Jt with Ms S L Arumugam      742 742
Mr U H Dharmadasa              - -
Mr P M L K Karunaratne      - -
Mr K M S Kandegedara     - -
Mr V R Ramanan 135,000 1,604,870
Mr W B B C J Fernando -  497,270

Mr U H Palihakkara 2467 2,250
Jt with Ms D S  Palihakkara - 21
Mr P D C S Amarasekara - -

DIRECTORS & CEO’s SHAREHOLDING DIRECTORS & CEO’s WARRANT HOLDING
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GOING CONCERN
The Board of Directors of the Company are  
satisfied that the Company has adequate 
resources to continue its operations in the 
foreseeable future. Therefore, the Company 
continues to adopt a going concern concept in 
preparing the Finacial Statements of the  
Company. Detailed description is given in Note 
40.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
The Board of Directors has taken adequate 
precautions to ensure that the Company and 
the Group does not engage in any activities 
which could be detrimental to the environment.

RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Board of Directors has structured proper 
systems and controls to identify probable risk. 
These systems are periodically evaluated and 
reviewed by the Board through the Integrated  
Risk Management Committee to ensure 
smooth functioning. Remedial measures also 
have been implemented to mitigate risk.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO CHARITIES
The Company has not contributed to charities 
during the financial year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors place great emphasis 
on good Corporate Governance practices 
and principles and ensures that the Company 
adheres with the codes of Best Practice on 
Corporate Governance. The compliance of 
Corporate Governance by the Company is set 
out on Page 27. 

INTERESTS REGISTER 
An Interests Register is maintained, in  
compliance with the Companies Act No.07 
of 2007. The particulars of the entries made 
in connection with the General Disclosure in 
terms of Section 192(2) of the Companies 
Act No.07 of 2007 are given in Note 36 under 
Related Party transactions. 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Accounting policies adopted by the Company 
in preparation of the Financial Statements are 
given on pages from Page 64 to 104. Financial  
statements for all periods up to the year ended 
31st March 2012 was prepared in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. With the 
convergence of Sri Lanka Accounting  
Standards with the international financial 
reporting standards (IFRS), all existing Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards are prefixed as 
SLFRS and LKAS. Company adopted these 
new financial accounting standards (SLFRS) 
for the financial period commencing from 1st 
April 2011. 

EVENTS AFTER  
THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to the date of the reporting date no 
circumstance has arisen which require  
djustments to the accounts.

AUDITORS
The Financial Statements for the year have 
been audited by M/s KPMG, Chartered 
Accountants, who retire and are eligible for 
re-appointment. The Directors recommend their 
re-appointment. The Auditors were paid a sum 

of LKR 1.55mn as Audit Fees and LKR 0.6mn 
as Non Audit Fees by the Company for the 
financial year under review. As far as the Board 
is aware the Auditors do not have any  
relationship with the Company other than  
carrying out the External Audit. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

A C Seneviratne               J Rudra
Director                                  Executive Director                     

                        
Corporate Arcade Ltd 
Company Secretaries

29th  August 2013
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

COMPOSITION OF  
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The board appointed audit committee as at the 
end of the year comprised of 03  
Non-Executive directors of the company. The 
Committee was chaired by U. H. Palihakkara 
until 09th January 2013 and on his retirement 
P.M.L.K. Karunaratne, an Associate Member 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Sri 
Lanka has been appointed as the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee.

The members of the Board appointed Audit 
Committee are

P.M.L.K. Karunaratne
Chairman – Independent
Non Executive Director
(With effect from 1st March 2013)

K.M. Kandegedara
Member – Independent
Non Executive Director 

W.B.B.C.J. Fernando
Member – Non Executive Director. 

J.P. Polwatte 
Secretary – Chief Internal Auditor. 
Brief profiles of the Directors representing the 
committee are given on page 51.

MEETINGS
Six Audit Committee meetings were held during 
the financial year under review and the  
attendance of the Directors at the meetings is 
given on page 30 of the Annual Report..

SCOPE OF THE  
AUDIT COMMITTEE                                 
 The Audit Committee shall assist the Board 
      of Directors in the oversight of the;
 Integrity of the financial statements of the 
      Company,
 Effectiveness of the internal control over 
      financial reporting.
 The Company’s Internal Audit functions. 
 Company’s compliance with legal and 
      regulatory requirements. 

OBJECTIVE OF THE  
AUDIT COMMITTEE
The primary objective of the Committee is to 
assist the board in pursuing its Statutory and 
Fiduciary duties relating to the financial  
management of the Company and the products 
it manages with respect to internal controls,  
accounting and reporting practices, and to  
ensure those duties are carried out in  
accordance with the legal and regulatory 
requirements and guidelines, policies and 
procedures laid down by the Company.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
Terms of References are explained in the 
Internal Audit Charter which was based on the 
Finance Companies (Corporate Governance) 
Direction No 03 of 2008 issued by the Central 
Bank of Sri Lanka. 

ROLE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee played a major role in 
corporate governance. The Committee has 
identified the followings as its main functions.

INTERNAL AUDIT  
& INTERNAL CONTROLS
The audit committee reviewed the Internal Audit 
Reports and recommendations.  
A summarized report is forwarded to the Board 
on a regular basis by taking into account all 
the Internal Audit reports. Chairman of the 
Audit Committee obtains the comments of the 
General Manager for all the salient points when 
preparing the summarized report.
 Respective officers at various levels 
       were summoned to the Audit Committee 
       for clarifications on certain issues.  
       Accordingly, the Chief Finance Officer and 
       General Manager participated on  
       invitation. 
 Direct the internal audit division for  
       obtaining a better service. 
 Evaluate the performance of the internal 
       audit division. 
 Perused all the Operation Manuals for 
       making it more effective and practical.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 Reviewing the annual financial statements 
       to assess whether they are in line with the 
      Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. 
 Reviewing the financial performances with 
      a view of making constructive  
      recommendations. 
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ADHERENCE TO THE  
STATUTORY AND REGULATOR’S  
REQUIREMENTS
 The Internal Audit Division has been a  
       driving force in maintaining the timeliness,  
       accuracy of financial statements required 
       under various acts and directions of  
       regulators' and adherence to best practices 
       and the compliances to the regulator’s 
       rules , guidelines and regulations.  

REVIEWING THE INTERNAL  
AUDIT REPORTS RELEVANT TO 
THE SUBSIDIARIES
 The Audit Committee reviewed the Internal 
       Audit reports prepared by the Group 
       Internal Audit division relevant to subsidiary 
       companies.
 Followed up on the recommendations 
      made by the Internal Audit Division.

LIAISE WITH THE  
EXTERNAL AUDITORS
 The Audit Committee discussed the nature 
       and scope of the audit with the External 
       Auditors.
 The Audit Committee has recommended to 
       the Board of Directors that M/S KPMG 
       Chartered Accountants be re-appointed for 
       the financial year ending 31st March 2014.
 Review the Management letter submitted 
       by the External Auditors. 

LIAISE WITH THE  
INTERNAL AUDITORS
 Followed up on the recommendations
      made by The Internal Audit Division. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
EFFECTIVENESS
The Audit Committee reviewed the adequacy 
of the scope, functions and resources of 
the internal audit division, the results of the 
internal audit process and their evaluation of 
the company’s internal control system. The 
Audit Committee also reviewed and approved 
the adequacy of coverage of the internal audit 
programme.     

P.M.L.K. Karunratne 
Chairman, Audit Committee 

Colombo

29th August 2013
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

In terms of Section 150(1), 151, 152(1) & 153 
of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007, the 

Directors are responsible to ensure compliance 
with the requirements set out therein to prepare 
Financial Statements for each financial year 
giving a true and fair view of the state of the 
affairs of the Company and the Group as at the 
end of financial year and of the profit & Loss of 
the Company and the Group for the financial 
year. The Directors are also responsible, in 
terms of Section 148 for ensuring that proper 
accounting records are maintained to disclose 
with reasonable accuracy, the financial position 
and to enable the preparation of Financial 
Statements

The Board accepts responsibility for the  
integrity and objectivity of the Financial  
Statements presented. The Directors confirm 
that in preparing the Financial Statements, 
appropriate accounting policies have been so 
that the form and substance of transactions are 

properly reflected. The Financial Statements 
provide the i9nformation required by the  
Companies Act, Listing Rules of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange and the Sri Lanka  
Accounting Standards.

The Directors have taken reasonable measures 
to safe guard the assets of the group and 
in that concepts have instituted appropriate 
system of internal control with a view to prevent 
and defect fraud and other Irregularities. 

The external Auditors, Messrs KPMG, were 
re-appointed in accordance with a resolution 
passed at the last Annual General Meeting, and 
they were provided with every opportunity to 
undertaken the inspection they considered  
appropriate to enable them to form their  
opinions on the Financial Statements. The 
Report of the Auditor shown on page 57 & 58 
sets out their responsibilities in relation to the 
Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE REPORT    
The Directors confirm that to the best of their 
knowledge, all statutory payments relating to 
employees and the Government that were due 
in respected of the Company and its  
Subsidiaries as at the Balance Sheet date have 
been paid or provided for, in arriving at the 
financial results for the year under review.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Corporate Arcade Ltd 
Company Secretaries

29th August 2013
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The Board of Directors is responsible for the 
adequacy and effectiveness of Nation Lanka 

Finance PLC’s system of internal controls.   
A system has been designed to manage the 
Company’s key areas if risk within an acceptable 
risk profile in achieving the policies and business 
objectives of the company, rather than eliminating 
the risk of failure.  

Accordingly the systems of internal control cannot 
provide an absolute assurance against mate-
rial misstatements of management and financial 
information, records or against possible frauds and 
malpractices.  Accordingly, only a reasonable assur-
ance can be placed on the efficacy of the internal 
control procedures.

The Board has established an ongoing process for 
identifying, evaluating and managing the  
significant risks faced by the company and this 
process includes enhancing the System of Internal 
Controls as and when there are changes to the 
business environment or regulatory guidelines 
which are regularly reviewed by the Board.

KEY FEATURES OF PROCESSES 
ADOPTED IN REVIEWING THE  
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SYSTEM 
OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Steps taken by the Board of Directors to ensure  
effective internal control mechanisms are given 
below. Sub-committees are established to assist the 
Board in ensuring the effectiveness of the  
Company’s daily operations. The sub-committee’s 
that were active during the financial year include

     1. Audit Committee
     2. Integrated Risk Management Committee
     3. Remuneration Committee

The Internal Audit Division of the Company checks 
for compliance with policies and procedures and the 
effectiveness of the Internal Control System on an 
ongoing basis highlighting significant findings in  
respect of any non-compliance. Audits are carried 
out in Branches every month.  Findings of the 
Internal Audit Division are submitted to the Audit 
Committee for review at their meetings. The annual 
audit plan is reviewed and approved by the Audit 
Committee.

The Audit Committee reviews the Internal control 
issues identified by the Internal Audit Division and 
reviews the adequacy and the effectiveness of the 
Internal Control system. The salient points of the 
Audit Committee meetings are tabled at the Board 
meeting.

A Board paper is also submitted on a monthly basis 
stating the non-compliance issues with regard to the 
rules and guidelines, if any.

Consequent to full convergence of Sri Lanka 
accounting standards with International Financial 
Reporting Standards that became effective from 
the current financial year, the Company is in the 
process of implementing required controls to make 
required controls to make required adjustments to 
the financial reporting process. The Company has 
manually calculated the adjustments required for 
the convergence. 

CONFIRMATION
Based on the above the Board of Directors confirm 
that the financial reporting system of the Company 
is designed to provide reasonable assurance on  
financial reporting and preparation of Financial 
Statements is done in accordance with the Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards and regulatory  
requirements of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

For and on behalf of the Board

JayanthaDharmadasa
Chairman

L. Karunaratne
Chairman – Audit Committee

J. Rudra
Executive Director

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON  
INTERNAL CONTROL RESPONSIBILITY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

KPMG
KPMG      Tel :    +94 - 11 542 6426
(Chartered Accountants)    Fax :    +94 - 11 244 5872
32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha,                          +94 - 11 244 6058
Colombo 00300,           +94 - 11 230 7345
Sri Lanka                        Internet :   www.lk.kpmg.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS  
OF NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial 
statements of Nation Lanka Finance PLC  
(“the Company”) and the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 
(“the Group”), which comprise the statements 
of financial position as at 31st March 2013, the 
statements of comprehensive income, changes 
in equity and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant  
accounting policies and other explanatory 
notes as set out on pages 64 to 104 of financial 
statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the  
Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these financial  
statements in accordance with Sri Lanka  
Accounting Standards. This responsibility  
includes: designing, implementing and 
maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material  
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies; and making accounting estimates that 
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting 
policies used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We have 
obtained all the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
We therefore believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion - Company 
1.  The Company has used a model for the 

calculation of the provision for impairment 
of collectively assessed loan, hire purchase 
and lease receivables using the regulatory 
provision as minimum, as at 1st April 2011, 
31st March 2012 and 31st March 2013 in 
order to comply with LKAS 39, “Financial  
Instruments-Recognition & Measurement” 
and historical data has been used for the 

calculation of provision as at each reporting 
date. We were unable to verify the accuracy 
and completeness of the historical data 
used for such calculation with appropriate 
audit evidence, and hence the impact on the 
results from operations and the financial  
position of the Company cannot be  
quantified.

 
2.  The Company has incorporated several 

adjustments subsequent to the year end in 
order to reconcile the balances as per the 
general ledger with the balances as per the 
sub modules since there were differences 
between two systems due to an error in the 
implementation of accounting system  
during the year. We were unable to verify 
the accuracy and completeness of these  
adjustments with supporting audit  
evidence.

In our opinion, except for the effects, if any, on 
the financial statements of the matters referred 
in the preceding paragraphs, the Company 
maintained proper accounting records for the 
year ended 31st March 2013 and the financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Company as at 31st 
March 2013 and of its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards. 

M.R. Mihular  FCA P.Y.S. Perera  FCA C.P. Jayatilake FCA

KPMG, a Sri Lankan Partnership and a member  firm T.J.S. Rajakarier  FCA W.W.J.C. Perera FCA Ms. S . Joseph FCA

of the KPMG network of independent member firms Ms.S.M.B. Jayasekara ACA W.K.D.C. Abeyrathne ACA S.T.D.L.Perera  FCA

Affiliated with KPMG international cooperative G.A.U. Karunarathne ACA R.M.D.B. Rajapakse ACA Ms. B.K.D.T.N.Rodrigo ACA

(“KPMG International”)  a Swiss entity. Principals . S.R.I. Perera  ACMA , LLB,Attorney at -Law, H.S. Goonewardene  ACA
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Without further qualifying our opinion, we draw  
attention to Note 40 to the financial statements 
which more fully describes the existence of 
doubt on the going concern of the Company 
and the steps taken by the Company.

Opinion - Group 
1.  The Company has used a model for the 

calculation of the provision for impairment 
of collectively assessed loan, hire purchase 
and lease receivables using the regulatory 
provision as minimum, as at 1st April 2011, 
31st March 2012 and 31st March 2013 in  
order to comply with LKAS 39, “Financial 
Instruments-Recognition & Measurement” 
and historical data has been used for the 
calculation of provision as at each reporting 
date. We were unable to verify the accuracy 
and completeness of the historical data 
used for such calculation with appropriate 
audit evidence, and hence the impact on 
the results from operations and the financial 
position of the Group cannot be quantified.

 
2.  The Company has incorporated several 

adjustments subsequent to the year end in 
order to reconcile the balances as per the 
general ledger with the balances as per the 
sub modules since there were differences 
between two systems due to an error in the 
implementation of accounting system  
during the year. We were unable to verify 
the accuracy and completeness of these 
adjustments with supporting audit evidence. 

3.  Ceylinco Housing Corporation Limited,  
Ceylinco Construction Company Limited, 
First Lanka Treasuries Limited, and Ceylinco 
Towers Limited, Subsidiaries of the Group 
are either incurring continuous losses and/
or facing financial difficulties or have ceased 
operations. These aspects raise doubts as 
to the ability of the said subsidiary compa-
nies to continue as going concerns. 

     However, the consolidated financial  
statements have been prepared on going 
concern basis, without making adjustments 
that may be required to recorded amounts 
and classification of assets and liabilities, 
which should have been made if one or 
more of the said subsidiary companies 
could not continue as going concerns.

In our opinion, except for the effects, if any, on 
the financial statements of the matters referred 
in the preceding paragraphs, the Group  
maintained proper accounting records for the 
year ended 31st March 2013 and the financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the  
financial position of the Company and its  
Subsidiaries dealt with thereby as at 31st 
March 2013 and of its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting  
Standards. 

Without further qualifying our opinion, we draw 
attention to Note 40 to the financial statements 
which more fully describes the existence of 

doubt on the going concern of the Group and 
the steps taken by the Group. 

Report on Other Legal  
and Regulatory Requirements 
These financial statements also comply with 
the requirements of Section 153 (2) to 153 (7) 
of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. 

However, it should be noted that the  
Company’s net assets are less than half of the 
Stated Capital and face a serious loss of capital 
situation in terms of Section 220 of the  
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. However the 
Company has held an Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting on 16th July 2010 as required by the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and  
communicated to the Shareholders the steps 
taken by the board of directors to prevent  
further such losses and revive the Company. 

Chartered Accountants 

29th August 2013 
Colombo
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 Company  Group

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH  
Notes

2013 
Rs.

2012 
Rs.

 2013 
Rs.

2012 
Rs.

Income 7  568,957,166  363,876,313  1,211,546,372  895,570,992

Interest Income 8  509,714,378  265,279,092  539,082,924  309,778,555 
Direct Interest Cost 9  (312,295,097)  (190,387,790)  (299,276,015)  (194,035,020)
Net Interest Income  197,419,281  74,891,302  239,806,909  115,743,535 

Revenue on Land & Property Development  58,534,738  77,037,118  657,472,015  423,182,871 
Cost of Sale on Land & Property Development  (49,698,258)  (76,474,591)  (409,768,368)  (289,513,675)
Net Gain on Land & Property Development  8,836,480  562,527  247,703,647  133,669,196 

Fees and Commission Income  2,666,625  2,122,412  31,367,615  137,155,294 
Fees and Commission Expenses  -    -    (18,658,375)  (19,708,368)
Net Fees and Commission Income  2,666,625  2,122,412  12,709,240  117,446,926 

Net Profit/ (Loss) from Financial Investments  (5,748,426)  (2,163,305)  (5,748,426) 7,749,609
Other Operating Income 10  56,576,163  96,474,810 253,655,617  54,474,486 

 259,750,123  171,887,746 748,126,987 429,083,752
Operating Expenses 11
Personnel  Costs  (161,942,337)  (115,767,054)  (256,760,491)  (193,084,877)
Reversal/ (Charge) for Staff Retirement Benefit Obligation 33.5  (8,399,957)  6,487,277  (13,015,312)  3,287,928 
Premises Equipment & Establishment Expenses  (66,566,509)  (39,651,113)  (135,512,259)  (145,123,809)
Other Overhead Expenses  (169,838,422)  (90,149,614)  (270,329,703)  (172,644,300)
Other Finance Costs  (16,758,725)  (7,561,287)  (53,543,679)  (47,796,180)
Total Operating Expenses  (423,505,950)  (246,641,791)  (729,161,444)  (555,361,238)
Operating Profit/ (Loss) Before Impairment for Loan Losses,  
Impairment and Tax

 (163,755,827)  (74,754,045) 18,965,543 (126,277,487)

Impairment for fall In Value of Investment  (1,250,000)  (9,857,088)  (2,016,935)  (9,857,088)
Impairment Reversal/ (Charge) for Loans and Other Losses 9,750,160  (321,049)  10,517,095  (321,049)
Provision for Obsolete Inventories  -    4,418,449  -    4,418,449 
Profit/ (Loss) Before VAT & Income Tax Expenses  (155,255,667)  (80,513,733) 27,465,703 (132,037,174)
VAT on Financial Services  (918,885)  (7,102,109)  (918,885)  (7,102,109)
Share of Profit of Equity Accounted Investees  -    -    11,636,575  13,681,400 
Profit/ (Loss) Before Income Tax Expenses  (156,174,552)  (87,615,842) 38,183,393 (125,457,883)
Income Tax Expenses 12  (14,081,286)  (19,070,748) (51,253,419)  (22,205,920)
Loss for the year  (170,255,838)  (106,686,590) (13,070,026) (147,663,803)
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Other Comprehensive Income Net of Tax  -    -    -   -
Total Comprehensive Expense for the Year  (170,255,838)  (106,686,590) (13,070,026)  (147,663,803)
Profit Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Company  (170,255,838)  (106,686,590) (28,732,840) (153,726,086)
Non Controlling Interest  -    -   15,662,813 6,062,283

 (170,255,838)  (106,686,590) (13,070,026) (147,663,803)
Total Comprehensive Expense Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Company  (170,255,838)  (106,686,590) (28,732,840) (153,726,086)
Non Controlling Interest  -    -   15,662,814 6,062,283

 (170,255,838)  (106,686,590) (13,070,026) (147,663,803)

Basic Loss Per Share 13 (0.77) (0.48) (0.13) (0.70)

The Accounting Policies and Notes set out in page 64 to 104 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures In Brackets Indicate Deductions.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Company Group

AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011

Notes Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  99,499,850  17,094,792  62,379,848  212,953,041  74,307,961  134,974,423 

Deposits with Licensed Commercial Banks 15  104,388,645  104,479,727  2,699,043  104,388,645  104,479,727  2,699,043 

Financial Investments designated Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 16  4,586,073  40,373,469  9,263,192  4,586,073  40,373,469  9,263,192 

Financial Investments - Available for Sale 17  23,299  23,299  67,396,966  3,344,339  23,299  136,698,144 

Loans and Receivables from Other Customers 18  1,667,140,417  1,024,165,065  497,368,999  1,738,617,230 950,063,065 570,354,937

Financial Investments - Held to Maturity 19  53,247,269  51,933,323  572,230,081  53,247,269  51,933,323  573,480,081 

Investment In Subsidiaries 20  449,410,828  440,660,828  120,244,518  -    -    -   

Investment in Equity Accounted Investees 21  33,294,060  40,214,060  -    56,457,034  51,870,460  -   

Amounts Due From Subsidiaries 22  48,536,401  85,606,780  102,926,462  18,243,389  1,885,241  -   

Investment In Real Estate 23  268,174,329  229,831,835  291,095,112  268,174,329  387,085,265 327,004,587

Investment Properties 24  329,191,553  286,660,000  163,000,000  329,191,553  286,660,000  159,329,083 

Intangible Assets 25  -    -    -    1,054,964  1,300,638  1,449,958 

Property, Plant & Equipment 26  221,409,430  225,899,769  169,967,455  342,852,957 323,055,162 250,970,569

Trade & Other Receivables 62,500,268  43,705,677  48,712,047  293,054,553 613,999,428  595,160,254 

Inventories  -    -    61,928  552,883,950  450,427,127  499,767,311 

Deferred Tax Asset 27  -    -    -   4,076,578  9,890,340  2,928,656 

Other Assets 28  100,216,249    149,600,522  49,695,700 104,905,345  158,718,972 173,962,196

TOTAL ASSETS  3,441,618,671  2,740,249,147  2,157,041,351 4,150,531,517  3,506,073,477 3,438,042,435

LIABILITIES

Debentures 29  -    -    -    3,250,000  3,250,000  3,250,000 

Due to Banks 30  213,928,133  110,114,954  54,336,882  276,884,422  126,453,665 54,360,405

Due to Customers 31  2,640,180,691  1,984,022,617  2,123,398,649  2,640,180,691 2,370,689,796 2,547,271,652

Other Borrowings  13,372,755  13,308,793  12,688,644  215,632,304 13,308,793 12,688,644

Current Tax Liability  -    -    -   20,263,740  9,860,866  -   

Deferred Tax Liabilities 27  -    -  -    -    -    85,431 

Amounts Due To Subsidiaries 32  100,428,578  85,242,686  1,260,256 -  -    -   

Retirement Benefit Obligations 33  (29,405,355)  (31,916,746)  (17,699,944)  (6,210,610)  (11,047,944) 6,251,904

Other Dues 34  214,206,318  120,313,452  213,849,289  604,600,436  656,527,593 963,418,187

TOTAL LIABILITIES  3,152,711,120  2,281,085,756  2,387,833,776 3,754,600,983  3,169,042,769 3,587,326,223

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Stated Capital 35  1,817,952,330  1,817,952,330  1,018,335,960  1,817,952,330  1,817,952,330  1,018,335,960 

Statutory Reserve Fund  7,550,000  7,550,000  7,550,000  7,550,000  7,550,000  7,550,000 

Other Reserves  89,546,457  89,546,457  89,546,457 134,301,400 134,301,400 134,301,400

Accumulated Losses  (1,626,141,235) (1,455,885,397) (1,346,224,842)  (1,760,037,420) (1,722,653,961)  (1,466,275,367)

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS  288,907,552  459,163,390  (230,792,425) 199,766,309 237,149,769  (306,088,007)

Non-Controlling Interest  -    -    -   196,164,255 99,880,939 156,804,2199

 288,907,552  459,163,390  (230,792,425) 395,930,534  337,030,708  (149,283,788)

TOTAL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS  3,441,618,671  2,740,249,147  2,157,041,351 4,150,531,517  3,506,073,477 3,438,042,435

Net Assets/(Liability) Per Share 1.16 1.84 (1.65) 0.80 0.95 (2.19)

The Accounting Policies and Notes set out on page 64 to 104 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.     
It is certified that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

H. P. G. P. Habaragamuwa                     
Chief Finance Officer                       
         The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. Signed for and on behalf of the Board.    

H.J.Dharmadasa            J. Rudra 
Chairman             Executive Director 
29th August 2013
Colombo
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

 Company  Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH  2013  2012  2013  2012 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit/ Loss before Income Tax Expense  (156,174,553)  (87,615,843) 38,183,392 (125,457,883)

Adjustments for

Loss on Sale of Investment Securities 5,748,426 2,163,305 5,748,426 2,163,305
Dividend Income  (23,294,103)  (44,694,539) (1,490,936) (944,619)
Depreciation  38,432,408  17,604,385 49,437,355 22,616,701
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  (12,326,750) 321,049 10,517,095 321,049
Provision for Obsolete Stocks  -    (4,418,449)  -    (4,418,449)
Bad Debts Written off  1,361,038  1,364,113 1,361,038  1,364,113 

Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties  (10,432,142)  (30,321,781)  (10,432,142)  (30,321,781)
Profit on Disposal of Sudsidiary (600,000) - (208,322,304) -
Interest expense 16,758,725  62,407 - -
Provision made/(reversed) for Retiring Gratuity  8,399,956  (6,487,277) 13,015,312 (3,287,928)
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  (1,065,804)  (3,150,346) (1,065,804) (3,189,786)
Provision for Fall in in Value of  Investments  2,016,935 58,367,040  2,016,935 9,857,088
Write off of Investment Securities  -    51,635  -    -   
VAT on Financial Services  918,885  7,102,109  918,885 7,102,109
Share of Profit of Associates  -    -    (11,636,575) (13,681,400)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  (130,256,979)  (89,652,192)  (132,783,513) 139,173,692
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  30,589,683  (94,899,452) 41,097,602 45,744,234
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  -    61,928 - -
(Increase)/Decrease in Lease, Loans & Hire Purchase Receivables  (633,819,295)  (528,481,228)  (794,035,621) (379,708,128)
(Increase)/Decrease in Investment in Real Estate  (38,342,494) 61,263,278 118,910,936 (60,080,677)
(Increase)/Decrease in Related Party Receivables 38,880,034  17,319,682 (16,358,148) (1,885,241)
Increase/(Decrease) in Related Party Payables  15,185,891  83,982,430 -  -   
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 85,708,342  (139,376,032) 86,664,566 (306,890,594)
Increase/(Decrease) in Public Deposits 656,158,076 (98,862,426) 85,772,303 (98,862,426)
Cash used in Operations 24,103,258  (788,644,012)  (610,731,875) (940,856,525)
Income Tax Paid  (6,815,647)  (13,361,818)  (35,842,762) (19,392,170)
Gratuity Paid  (5,888,566)  (7,729,525)  (7,449,366) (5,549,450)
Interest paid (16,758,725)  -   -  -   
Net Cash used for Operating Activities  (5,359,680)  (809,735,355)  (654,024,003) (965,798,145)



Annual Report 2012/13 63

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH  2013  2012  2013  2012 
 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  1,108,957  4,687,767 8,793,860 7,280,619
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment  (33,985,222)  (75,074,119)  (138,391,237) (95,607,836)
Purchase of Investment Property  (32,099,411)  (93,338,219)  (32,099,411) (97,009,136)
Disposal of Subsidiary 600,000 600,000
Proceeds from Redemption of Preference Shares -  15,325,000  -    -   
Investment in Subsidiaries  1,250,000  (335,741,310) - (142,750,175)
Investment in Associates  6,920,000  (40,214,060) - (40,214,060)
Purchase of Investment Securities  (15,075,000)  (95,540,156) (3,321,040) (33,112,372)
Proceeds from Investment Securitries  33,097,034  71,273,201 27,138,085 90,580,352
Dividend Income  23,294,103 44,694,539 1,490,936 944,619
Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities  (14,889,539)  (503,927,357) (135,788,807) 309,887,989
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Dividends Paid -  (2,845) - (2,845)
Repayment of Loans  (26,755,846)    -   -  -   
Proceeds from Short, Medium & Long Term Borrowings 62,543,779 72,116,763 820,296,076 (4,336,424)
Lease Rentals Paid  -    (2,556,052) - -
Right issue Expenses  -    (2,973,963) -  -   
Proceeds from Shares Issue  -    799,616,370 - 799,616,370
Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities 35,787,933 866,200,263 820,296,076 795,277,101
Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 15,538,714  (447,462,439) 30,456,266 (480,409,033)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year  136,210,272 583,672,711 177,084,730 657,493,763
Cash & Cash Equivalents of the deemed disposed subsidiary  -    -   (5,295,108) -
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the year (Note A) 35,787,933  136,210,272 202,245,888 177,084,730
Reconciliation of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand & at Bank  99,499,850  17,094,792  212,953,041  74,307,961 
Bank Overdraft  (105,386,778)  (37,297,570)  (168,343,067)  (53,636,281)
Deposits in Commercial Bank  104,388,645  104,479,727  104,388,645  104,479,727 
Government Securities  53,247,269  51,933,323  53,247,269  51,933,323 

 151,748,986  136,210,272  202,245,888  177,084,730 

 Company  Group

The Accounting Policies and Notes set out on pages 64 to 104 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.   
Figures In Brackets Indicate Deductions   
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1. Reporting entity
Nation Lanka Finance PLC, regulated under 
the Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011, was 
incorporated on 15th July 1987 as a public limited 
liability company domiciled in SriLanka under the 
provisions of the Companies Act No. 17 of 1982 
and re registered under the Companies Act No. 7 of 
2007. Ordinary Shares of the Company were listed 
on the main board of the Colombo Stock Exchange 
on 31st June 1994.

Registered office and the principal place of business 
are situated at No. 28, Dickmans Road, Colombo 5.

1.2. Companies in the  
Group and Parent Company
The consolidated financial statements of Nation 
Lanka  Finance PLC for the year ended 31st March 
2013 comprises  the Company and its  
subsidiaries namely Nation Lanka Equities Ltd., 
Millennium Housing Developers  Ltd., First Lanka 
Treasuries Ltd, Nation Lanka Capital Ltd., Ceylinco 
Investment Corporation  Ltd., Nation Lanka  
Promotions Ltd. and Ceylinco Towers Ltd. in  
accordance with Section 152 of  the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007 and Sri Lanka Accounting  Standard 
No: 27 - “Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements” (together referred to as the  (“Group”) 
and the Group’s interest in associate, E Future (Pvt) 
Ltd having a Group’s interest of 30%.  All companies 
in the Group have a common financial year which 
ends on 31st March.

1.3. Principal activities  
and Nature of Operations
The principal activities of the Company are granting 
of loans, providing finance leases, hire purchase  
asset financing, pawningand mobilization of  
deposits and trading of real estates.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1.Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of Nation 
Lanka Finance PLC, comprise the statement of 
financial position, statement of comprehensive 
income and other comprehensive income, cash flow 
statement, statement of changes in equity and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka  
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as 
SLFRS/LKAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka, and the requirements of 
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and the listing 
rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. 

2.2. First time  
adoption of SLFRSs/LKASs
These are the Group’s first consolidated financial 
statements prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards and Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standard - SLFRS 1 - First -Time Adoption of Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards has been adopted  
in preparing the financial statements for the year 
ended 31st March 2013, the comparative  
information presented in these financial statements 
for the year ended 31st March 2012 and in the 
preparation of an opening statement of financial 
position as at 1st April 2011 (The Group's date of 
transition). An explanation on how the transition to 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards – SLFRSs,  
has affected the previously reported financial  
position and the financial performance of the Group 
is provided in Note 41 to the Financial Statments. 

2.3. Going Concern
The Board of Directors have made an assessment 
of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern 
and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease 
trading. 

2.4. Basis of Preparation
These financial statements are prepared and  
prepared on a historical cost basis, with no  
adjustments being made forinflationary factors  
affecting the financial statements, except for for the 
following as explained below. 

Available for sale financial instruments  
- Fair Value
Fair value through profit or loss instruments  
- Fair Value
Loans and Receivables financial instruments  
- Amortized Cost
Held to Maturity financial instruments  
- Amortized Cost
Investment properties - Fair Value
Defined benefit obligation -  Actuarially valued and  
recognized at present value of the defined benefit 
obligation.

2.5. Functional and  
Presentation Currency
Consolidated financial statements of the Group 
are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the 
Group’s functional and presentation currency. The 
said Financial Statements have been prepared in 
Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.). Assets and Liabilities are 
grouped by nature and listed in an order that reflects 
their relative liquidity.

2.6. Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of consolidated financial statements 
in conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting  
Standardsrequires management to make 
 judgments, estimates and assumptions that affects 
the application of policies and reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis 
of making the judgment about carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to  
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects 
only that period, or the period of the revision and 
future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods. 

Information about critical judgments in applying  
accounting policies that have the most significant  
effect on the amounts recognized in the  
consolidated financial statements is included in 
following notes.
Note 24 – Fair Valuation of Investment Properties
Note 25 – Measurement of Intangible Assets 
Note 27 – Measurement of Deferred Tax Assets  
and Liabilities
Note 33 – Measurement of Retirement Benefit Obligations
Note 18 – Impairment of Loans and Advances
Note 19 – Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments
Note 39  – Commitments and Contingencies

3. SIGNIFICANT  
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been 
applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
financial statements. These accounting policies are 
consistent with those of the previous year’s figures 
and phrases.

3.1. Basis of Consolidation

(a). Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the 
acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which 
is the date on which the control is transferred to the 
Group. Control is the power to govern financial and 
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain  
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, 
Group takes in to consideration potential voting 
rights that currently are exercisable. 

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition 
date as:
•  The fair value of the consideration transferred: plus
•  The recognized amount of any non controlling  
   interests in the acquire: plus
•  If the business combination is achieved in stages,  
   the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in  
   the acquire: less
•  The net recognized amount (generally fair value)   
   of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities  
   assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase 
gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The 
consideration transferred does not include amounts 
related to the settlement of pre existing  
relationships. Such amounts generally are  
recognized in profit or loss. Transaction costs other 
than those associated with the issue of debt or  
equity securities, that the Group incurs in  
connection with a business combination are  
expensed as incurred. Any contingent consideration 
payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition 
date. If the contingent consideration is classified as 
equity, then it is not re measured and settlement is 
accounted for within equity. Otherwise subsequent 
changes in the fair value of the contingent  
consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Acquisition of non-controlling interests is accounted 
for as transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners and therefore no goodwill is recognized as a 
result. Adjustments to non controlling interests  
arising from transactions that do not involve the loss 
of control are based on a proportionate amount of 
the net assets of the subsidiary.

(c) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the 
Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are 
included in the consolidated financial statements 
from the date that control commences until the date 
that control ceases. 

(d) Loss of control

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the 
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non  
controlling interests and the other components 
of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or 
deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in 
statement of comprehensive income. If the Group 
retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then 
such interest is measured at fair value at the date 
that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for 
as equity accounted investee or as an  
available-for-sale financial asset depending on the 
level of influence is retained.

(e) Investments in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group 
has significant influence but not control, over the 
financial and operating policies. Significant influence 
is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 
20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for, using 
the equity method and are recognized initially at 
cost. The cost of the investment includes  
transaction costs. The Consolidated financial  
statements include the Group’s share of the profit 
or loss of equity accounted investees, from the date 
that significant influence commences until the date 
that significant influence ceases. 

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its  
interest in an equity-accounted investee, the  
carrying amount of the investment, including any 
long term interests that form part thereof, is reduced 
to zero, and the recognition of further losses is 
discontinued except to the extent that the Group 
has an obligation or has made payments on behalf 
of the investee.The financial statement of an  
associate in the Group has the common financial  
year which ends on 31st March.There are no 
significant restrictions on the ability of the associate 
to transfer funds to the Parent in the form of cash/
dividend or repayment of loans and advances.
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(f) Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation

Intra-Group Balances and any unrealized gains 
and losses or income and expenses arising from 
intra-Group transactions are eliminated in full in 
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized 
losses resulting from intra-Group transactions are 
eliminated unless there is evidence of impairment.

3.2. Foreign Currency

3.2.1. Foreign currency transactions
All foreign exchange transactions in individual  
companies are translated at the rate of exchange 
prevailing at the time the transaction was effected. 
All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign  
currency at year end are translated at the rate 
prevailing on the reporting date. Nomonetary assets 
and liabilities which are carried in terms of historical 
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of transaction.  
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are 
translated to reporting currency using the exchange 
rate that was prevailing on the date the fair value 
was determined. The resulting gains or losses on 
translations are dealt with in the statement of  
comprehensive income.

3.3. Financial Instruments

3.3.1. Initial Recognition of Financial 
Instruments
An entity shall recognize a financial asset or  
financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, the entity becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. i.e. all 
the financial assets and liabilities except “Regular 
way trades” are initially recognize on the trade date. 
Regular way trade means purchases or sales of 
financial assets that require delivery of assets within 
the time frame generally established by regulation 
or convention in the market place. Those trades are 
initially recognizes on the settlement date. 

3.3.2. Initial measurement  
of Financial Instruments
The classification of financial instruments at initial 
recognition depends on their purpose and  
characteristics and the management’s intention 
in acquiring them. All financial instruments are 
measured initially at their fair value plus transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
or issue of such financial instrument, except in the 
case of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss as per Sri Lanka  
Accounting Standard – LKAS 39 on “Financial 
Instruments : Recognition and measurement”. 

Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
are dealt with through the statement of  
comprehensive income.

3.3.3. Classification and Subsequent 
measurement of financial assets
The Group classifies non derivative financial assets 
into the following categories;
     (a) Loans and receivables
     (b) Available for sale financial assets
     (c) Fair Value through profit or loss  
          financial assets
     (d) Held to maturity financial assets
     (a) Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payment that are not quoted 
in an active market. Such assets are recognised at 
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and 
receivables are measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method, less any impairment 
losses.

Special Loan and receivables comprise of deposits 
with licensed commercial bank, loans and  
receivables fromcustomers,trade receivables and 
other receivables.

3.3.3. a. Loans and Advances 
Loans, lease, hire purchase and pawning advances 
are stated at their amortized cost, after providing for 
impairment losses. Loans and advances to  
customers are financial assets with fixed or  
determinable payments and fixed maturities. 

After initial measurement, loans and advances to 
customers are subsequently measured at cost less 
allowance for loan losses. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognized in the income statement 
in ‘loan loss provision’.

3.3.3.b. Fair Value through profit or 
loss financial assets
A financial asset is classified as at fair value through 
profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is 
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial 
assets are designated as at fair value through profit 
or loss if the Group manages such investments and 
makes purchase and sale decisions based on their 
fair value in accordance with the Group’s  
documented risk management or investment  
strategy. Attributable transaction costs are  
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial  
assets at fair value through profit or loss are  
measured at fair value and changes therein, which 
takes in to account any dividend income, are  
recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets designated as at fair value through 
profit or loss comprise equity securities in quoted 
companies that otherwise would have been  
classified as available for sale.

3.3.3.c Held to maturity  
financial assets
Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative 
financial assets with fixed determinable payments 
and fixed maturities, which the Group has the  
intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial 
measurement, Held to Maturity financial  
investments are subsequently measured at  
amortized cost using the effective interest rate 
(EIR), less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated 
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by taking in to account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The amortization is included in income  
statement in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. If the Group were to sell or reclassify more 
than an insignificant amount of Held to Maturity 
investment before maturity (Other than in certain 
specific circumstances permitted in the Sri Lanka  
Accounting Standards – LKAS 39 on “Financial 
Instruments : Recognition and Measurement ”), the 
entire category would be tainted and would have to 
be reclassified as Available For Sale. Furthermore, 
the Group would be prohibited from classifying any 
financial asset as Held to Maturity during the  
following two years.

The Group has designated investments in treasury 
bills as Held to Maturity financial assets.

3.3.3.d. Available for  
sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are financial 
assets that are designated as available for sale and 
are not classified in any of the previous categories. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured 
at fair value and changes therein, other than  
impairment losses on available for sale equity 
instruments are recognised in other comprehensive 
income and presented within equity in the fair value 
reserve. When an investment is derecognised, the 
cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive  
incomes transferred to profit or loss. Available for 
sale financial assets comprise of investment in 
unquoted shares for long term purpose.

3.3.4. Classification and Subsequent 
measurement of financial liabilities
At inception a financial liability is classified into one 
of the following categories:
• Fair value through profit or loss financial liabilities
• Financial Liabilities

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 
depends on their classification.

3.3.4.1 Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial  
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading 
if they are acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds 
as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for 
short-term profit or position taking. Gains or losses 
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Company has not designated any financial 
liabilities upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss.

3.3.4.2. Financial  
Liabilities through amortized cost
Financial instruments issued by the Group that are 
not designated at fair value through profit or loss, 
are classified under this as appropriate, where the 
substance of the contractual arrangement results in 
the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash 
or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy 
the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed 
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed 
number of own equity shares.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on  
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in 
‘Interest Expenses’ in the Statement of  
Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses are  
recognized in the Statementof Comprehensive 
Income when the liabilities are derecognized as well 
as through the EIR amortization process.These  
financial liabilities comprise of public deposits, 
‘Interest Bearing Borrowings – Medium and Long 
Term’ and short term borrowings from individuals 
and several private companies.

3.3.5. Derecognition of Financial 
Instruments
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when 
the right to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired or when it transfers the financial asset in a 
transaction in which substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are 
transferred or in which the Group neither transfer 
nor substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains 
nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of a financial asset and it retains 
control over the asset, the Group continues to 
recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing 
involvement, determined by the extent to which it is 
exposed to changes in the value of the transferred 
asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference 
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the 
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset 
transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration 
received (Including any new asset obtained less any 
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain 
or loss that had been recognized in other  
comprehensive income is recognized in profit or 
loss.The Group derecognizes a financial liability 
when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or expired.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the 
net amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when and only when, the group has a legal 
right to offset the amounts and intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realize the asset or settle 
the liability simultaneously.

3.3.6. Determination of Fair Value
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be 
exchanged, or a liability settled, between  
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length 
transaction on the measurement date.
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When the fair value of financial assets and financial 
liabilities recorded in the statement of financial 
position cannot be derived from active markets, 
they are determined using variety of valuation 
techniques that include the use of mathematical 
models.  The inputs to these models are taken from 
observable markets where possible, but where this 
is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in 
establishing fair values.

3.3.7. Impairment
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is any objective evidence that financial 
 assetsor a Group of financial assetsis impaired. 
A financial asset or a Group of financial assets is 
deemed to be impaired if, and only if there is  
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one 
or more events that has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset and that loss event has 
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of 
the financial asset that can be estimated reliably 
estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial assets are 
 impaired includes default or delinquency by a 
debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group 
on terms that the Group would not consider  
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will 
enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment 
status of borrowers or issuers, economic conditions 
that correlate with defaults or the disappearance of 
an active market for a security.

(a) Impairment losses on  
financial assets carried at amortized cost

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortized 
cost are measured as the difference between 
the carrying amount of the financial asset and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest 
rate. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or 
loss and reflected in an allowance account against 
loans and advances. When a subsequent event 

causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, 
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through 
profit or loss.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for 
loans and receivable on a specific asset basis. 
Therefore all loans and receivables are assessed  
individually and made specific impairment  
provisions.

(b)Impairment losses on  
available for sale financial assets

Impairment losses on available-for-sale  
investment securities are recognised by  
transferring the cumulative loss that has been  
recognised in other comprehensive income to profit 
or loss as a reclassification adjustment. The  
cumulative loss that is reclassified from other  
comprehensive income to profit or loss is the  
difference between the acquisition cost, net of any 
principal repayment and amortisation, and the  
current fair value, less any impairment loss 
previously recognised in profit or loss. Changes in 
impairment provisions attributable to time value are 
reflected as a component of interest income. 

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an  
impaired available-for-sale debt security increases 
and the increase can be objectively related to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was  
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is 
reversed, with the amount of the reversal  
recognised in profit or loss. However, any  
subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired 
available-for-sale equity security is recognised in 
other comprehensive income.

(c) Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non financial 
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication of  
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying 
amount of an assets or cash generating unit (CGU) 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is 
the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or 
CGU. For impairment testing, assets are grouped 
together into the smallest Group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that 
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in the  
statement of comprehensive income. Impairment 
losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated 
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to CGU (if any) and then to reduce the 
carrying amounts of other assets in the CGU (Group 
of CGUs) on pro rata basis. An impairment loss 
in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other 
assets , an impairment loss is reversed only to the 
extent that the assets carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined , net of depreciation or amortisation, if 
no impairment loss had been recognised.   

3.4. Stated Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from 
equity, net of any tax effects.

3.5. Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and 
estimated net realizable value, after making due 
allowances for obsolete and slow moving items. Net 
realizable value is the price at which inventories can 
be sold in the normal course of business after  
allowing for cost of realization and/or cost of  
conversion from their existing state to saleable 
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condition. The cost of each category of inventory is 
determined on the following basis.

The cost of each category of inventory is  
determined on the following basis:
• Raw materials - At actual cost on first-in-first-out basis.
• Finished Goods - At the cost of direct materials,
• Work-in-progress  - Direct labor and appropriate proportion  
  of production overheads based on normal operating  
  capacity

3.6. Investment in Real Estate
Land purchase cost, development cost and  
borrowing cost incurred during the development  
period of the real estate projects have been  
capitalized as investment in real estate.

3.7. Property, Plant and Equipment

3.7.1. Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items 
that are held for servicing, or for administrative 
purposes and are expected to be used during more 
than one period.

a. Recognition 

Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the assets will flow to the Group and cost of the 
asset can be reliably measured.

b. Measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at 
cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the  
asset. The cost of self constructed assets includes 
the cost of materials and direct labour, any other 
cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to a 
working condition for its intended use, and the cost 
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring 
the site on which they are located. 

Purchased software that is integrated to the  
functionality of the related equipment is capitalized 
as part of that equipment. 

Expenditure on repairs or maintenance of property, 
plant and equipment made to restore or maintain 
future economic benefits expected from the assets 
has been recognized as an expense when incurred.

c. Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of 
an item of property, plant and equipment that is 
accounted for separately, including major inspection 
and overhaul expenditure, is capitalized. The cost of 
replacing part of an item of property, plant  
andequipment is recognized in the carrying amount 
of the item, if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits embodied within the part will flow to the 
Group and its cost can be measured reliably.  
The carrying amount of the replaced part is  
derecognized. The cost of the day-to-day servicing 
of property, plant and equipment are recognized in 
profit or loss as incurred.

d. Dercognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is  
derecognized upon disposal or when no future  
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any 
gain or loss arising on derecognizing of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset), is recognized in “other expenses” in profit/
loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

When replacement costs are recognized in the  
carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognized as required by LKAS 
16 – Property, Plant and Equipment.

a. Revaluation

If an asset's carrying amount is increased as a 
result of a revaluation, the increase shall be credited 
directly to equity under the heading of revaluation 
surplus. However, the increase shall be recognised 
in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a 
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously 
recognised in profit or loss.

If an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a 
result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be  
recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease 
shall be debited directly to equity under the heading 
of revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit  
balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect 
of that asset.

b. Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives  
of each part of an item of property, plant and  
equipment. The estimated useful lives of the  
assets are as follows.

The estimated useful lives for the current and  
comparative years are as follows:

Buildings     -   5%
Plant and Machinery   -  10% - 20%
Furniture andFittings   -  15%
Motor Vehicles   -   25%
Computer Equipment and Software -  15% - 33.33%
Office Equipment     -  15% - 33.33%
Other Equipments    -   20%

If an asset's carrying amount is increased as a 
result of a revaluation, the increase shall be credited 
directly to equity under the heading of revaluation 
surplus. However, the increase shall be recognised 
in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a 
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously 
recognised in profit or loss.
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If an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a 
result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be  
recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease 
shall be debited directly to equity under the heading 
of revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit  
balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect 
of that asset

The company transfer portion of revaluation reserve 
to retained earnings as the assets are used by the 
entity, since the future economic benefits embodied 
in the assets are consumed principally through its 
use rather than on retirement or disposal. 

3.8. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Goodwill that arises on the acquisition of  
subsidiaries is presented with intangible assets. For 
the measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, 
see note 3.1(a). Subsequently Goodwill is measured 
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

3.9. Investment Property

Investment Property, principally comprise freehold 
land and building held either to earn rental income 
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for 
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the 
production or supply of goods or services or for  
administrative purposes. Investment property is 
measured at cost on initial recognition and  
subsequently at fair value with any change therein 
recognized in profit or loss. Cost includes  
expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the investment property. The cost of 
self-constructed investments property includes the 
cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs 
directly attributable to bring the investment property 
to a working condition for their intended use and 
capitalized borrowing costs.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment 
property (calculated as the difference between the 
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount 
of the item) is recognized in profit or loss. When an 

investment property that was previously classified 
as property, plant and equipment is sold, any related 
amount included in the revaluation reserve is  
transferred to retained earnings.

When the use of a property changes such that it is 
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its fair 
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost 
for subsequent accounting.

Investment Property is carried at fair value  
determined annually by an independent valuer. 
 A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value 
of investment property is recognized in profit or loss 
for the period in which it arises.

3.10. Leased Assets

Assets funded through finance leases are  
capitalized and theresulting lease obligations are 
included in creditors’ net offinance charges. Lease 
payments are treated as consisting of capital and 
interest elements and the interest is charged to the 
income statement.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated 
over theshorter of lease term or the useful lives of 
equivalent ownedassets. 

3.11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the 
cash flow statement comprises cash on hand,  
non–restricted current accounts with banks and 
amounts with an original maturity of three months 
or less.

3.12. Employee Benefits

a. Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post employment 
plan under which an entity pays fixed  
contribution into a separate entity and will have 
no legal or constructive obligation to pay a further 

amount. Obligations for contributions to defined 
contribution plans are recognized as expense in the 
profit and loss in the period during which related 
services are rendered by employees.

Employees' Provident Fund 

The Group and Employees' contribute 12% & 3% 
respectively on the salary of each employee  
respectively to the Employee Provident Fund.

Employees Trust Fund 

The Group contributes 3% of the salary of each  
employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund  
contributions to defined contribution plans are 
recognized as an expense in the income statement 
as incurred. 

b. Defined benefit plans - Retiring Gratuity 

A defined benefit plan is a post employment benefit 
plan other than a defined contribution plan.

In accordance with revised LKAS 19 - “Employee 
Benefits” which became effective from the financial 
year commencing after 01 July 2007, the Group 
has adopted the actuarial valuation method and the 
valuation method used by the actuary is “Projected 
Unit Credit Method”. The assumptions based on 
which the results of the actuarial valuation was 
determined, are included in Note 33 to the financial 
statements.

However, under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 
of 1983, the liability to an employee arises only on 
completion of 5 years of continues service.

Any actuarial gains or losses arising are recognized 
immediately in the statement of comprehensive 
income.

The liability was not externally funded.
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3.13. Liabilities and Provisions 

3.13.1. Liabilities

Liabilities classified as current liabilities on the  
statement of financial position are those, which fall 
due for payment on demand or within one year from 
the reporting date. 

Noncurrent liabilities are those balances that fall due 
for payment after one year from reporting date. 

3.13.2. Provisions 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past 
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation.

3.14. Capital Commitments  
and Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose 
existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future 
events or present obligations where the transfer 
of economic benefits is not probable or cannot be 
reliably measured. 

Capital commitment and contingent liabilities of the 
Group are disclosed in the respective notes to the 
financial statements.

4. STATEMENT OF  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4.1. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue represents the amounts derived from the 
provision of goods and services which fall within the 
Company’s and Group’s ordinary activities net of 
trade discounts and turnover related taxes.

4.1.1 Interest Income
Interest income from loan, lease, hire purchases, 
and pawning advances is recognized on an accrual 
basis. 

4.1.2 Interest on Bills

Interest income from bills is recognized  
proportionately over the period of the bill discounted 
commencing from the date of discounting.

4.1.3 Income from  
Fee-Based Activities

Commission from underwriting, management of 
funds and all other commissions and fees are 
recognized in the period in which such transactions 
were effected based on the conditions stipulated in 
the respective agreements and contracts.

4.1.4 Overdue Charges

Overdue charges of leasing, hire purchase, loans 
and advances have been accounted for on a cash 
basis.

4.1.5 Profit on Sale of Shares

Profit earned on the sale of shares has been  
accounted for in the Income Statement on the basis 
of realised net profit 

4.1.6 Dividend Income

The dividend income is recognised when the  
Company’s right to receive payment is established

4.1.7 Real Estate Income

Income is recognized when the property is sold 
and the risks and rewards of the property is passed 
on to the buyer. For this purpose the property is 
deemed to be sold once 30% of the outright sales 
price has been received.

However, when there is insufficient assurance as 
to the receipt of the total consideration, income is 
accounted on a cash received basis.

4.1.8 Profit on Sale of  
Property, Plant and Equipment

Profits or losses of a revenue nature on the disposal 
of Property, Plant & Equipment have been  
accounted for in the Income Statement.

4.1.9 Income on Sale of Houses

The income from sale of houses is recognised when 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership is 
transferred to the buyer. It is deemed to have been 
transferred when the sale agreement is signed 
between the buyer and the Company and the 100% 
of the construction of the house is completed. 

4.1.10 Interest on Overdue Rentals

Interests from overdue rentals have been accounted 
for on a cash received basis.

4.1.11 Accounting for Recovery of 
Bad and Doubtful Debt Written off

Recovery of amounts written off as bad and doubtful 
debts is recognized on a cash basis.

4.1.12 Other Income

All other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

4.2 Expenditure Recognition

All the expenditure incurred in the running of the 
business and in maintaining the Property, Plant 
Equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged 
to the income statement. 
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4.2.1. Interest Expense  
on Borrowings and Deposits

The interest expenses on deposits and borrowings 
are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement 
of Compreensive Income.

4.2.2 Income Taxation

The Group’s liability to taxation has been computed 
in accordance with the Inland Revenue Act No.10 of 
2006 and amendments thereto.

4.2.3 Economic Service Charge

As per the provisions of Economic Service Charge 
Act No. 13 of 2006 amendments thereto, ESC is 
payable on the liable turnover at specified rates. 
ESC is deductible from the income tax liability. Any 
unclaimed liability can be carried forward and set off 
against the income tax payable in the five  
subsequent years as per the relevant provision in 
the Act.

4.2.4 Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance  
Statement of Finance sheet liability method,  
providing for temporary differences between the  
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for  
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used 
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not  
recognized for the following temporary differences; 
the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial  
recognition of assets or liabilities in a  
transaction that is not a business combination and 
that affects neither accounting nor taxableprofits, 
and differences relating to investment in  
subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax 
is measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
be applied to the temporary differences when they 
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 
A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent 

that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary differences 
can be utilized.

4.2.5 VAT on Financial Services

VAT on Financial Services is calculated in  
accordance with the amended VAT Act No. 7 of 
2003.

4.3. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that 
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds.

Borrowing costs may include:
(a) Interest expense calculated using the effective 
interest method as described in LKAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement;

(b) Finance charges in respect of finance leases 
recognised in accordance with LKAS 17 Leases; 
and

(c) Exchange differences arising from foreign 
currency borrowings to the extent that they are 
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Group capitalizes borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of 
that asset. Then Group recognizes other borrowing 
costs as an expense in the period in which it incurs 
them.

4.4. Earnings Per Share 

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per 
share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss  
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the  
Company by the weighted average number of  
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 

weighted average number of ordinary  
sharesoutstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinaryshares. 

5. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
An operating segment is a component of the  
Company that engages in business activities from 
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, 
including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Company’s other  
components. All operating segments’ operating  
results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s 
CEO to make decisions about resources to  
beallocated to the segment and assess its  
performance, and for which discrete financial  
information is available. Segment results that are  
reported to the CEO include items directly  
attributable to a segment as well as those that can 
be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated 
items comprise mainly corporate assets  
(primarily the Company’s headquarters), head office 
expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost 
incurred during the period to acquire property, plant 
and equipment.

6. NEW STANDARDS AND  
INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET  
ADOPTED 
A number of new standards, amendments to 
standards and interpretations have been introduced 
by ICASL, and Group has not applied in preparing 
these Consolidated Financial Statements. Those 
which may be relevant to the Group are set out 
below.

a) SLFRS 10 -Consolidated Financial Statements

SLFRS 10 establishes a single control model that 
applies to all entities including special purpose 
entities. The changes introduced by SLFRS 10 will 
require management to exercise significant  
judgment to determine which entities are controlled 
and therefore are required to be consolidated by a 
parent, compared with the requirements in LKAS 
27.
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b) SLFRS 12 -Disclosure  
of Interests in Other Entities

SLFRS 12 encompasses all disclosures related to 
consolidated financial statements in LKAS 27, 28 
and 31. These disclosures relate to an entity's  
interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,  
associates and structured entities. 

c) SLFRS 13 Fair value measurement

SLFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance 
on how fair value is measured, and replaces the 
fair value measurement guidance that is currently 
dispersed throughout SLFRS. Subject to limited 

exceptions, SLFRS 13 is applied when fair value 
measurements or disclosures are required or 
permitted by other SLFRSs. The Group is currently 
reviewing its methodologies in determining fair 
values. Application of these standards has been 
deferred by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka.

SLFRS 9 will be effective for financial periods  
beginning on or after 01 January 2015 whilst  
SLFRS 10, 11, 12 and 13 will be effective for  
financial periods beginning on or after 01 January 
2014.
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 Company Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH Notes 2013  2012 2013  2012 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
7 REVENUE

Interest Income  509,714,378  265,279,092  1,117,444,241  641,480,219 
Other Income  59,242,789  98,597,222  94,102,131  254,090,773 

 568,957,166  363,876,313  1,211,546,372  895,570,992
8 INTEREST INCOME

Finance Leases  52,040,857  29,760,305  52,040,857  29,760,305 
Pawning  21,908,405  1,393,924  21,908,405  1,393,924 
Term Loans  348,307,137  130,543,355  334,816,819  142,641,268 
Hire Purchase  78,426,861  81,849,140  78,426,861  81,849,140 
Short Term Lending  9,031,118  21,732,368  51,889,982  54,133,918 

 509,714,378  265,279,092  539,082,924  309,778,555
9 DIRECT INTEREST COST

Interest on Borrowings  312,295,097  190,387,790  299,276,015  194,035,020 
 312,295,097  190,387,790  299,276,015  194,035,020 

10 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Dividend Income  23,294,103  44,694,539 1,490,936  944,619 
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  1,065,804  3,150,346  1,065,804  3,189,786 
Profit on Sale of Disposal of subsidiary  600,000  -   208,322,304  -   
Negative Goodwill  -    -    2,345,476  -   
Rent Income  9,928,203  9,714,512  9,928,203  7,917,512 
Sundry Income  207,594  5,922,727  2,570,918  9,429,883 
Interst Income on Fixed Deposit  11,048,317  2,670,905  11,048,317  2,670,905 
Change in Value of Investment Properties  10,432,142  30,321,781  10,432,142  30,321,781 
Ground Fees, Sponsorship and Advertisements  -    -    6,450,000  -   

 56,576,163  96,474,810 253,655,618  54,474,486 
11 OPERATING EXPENSES INCLUDE 

THE FOLLOWING
Directors' Emoluments  - Short Term Employment Benefit  5,800,000  14,881,379  9,074,222  18,155,601 
Auditors Remuneration - Audit  1,300,000  1,150,000 2,682,903 2,298,104
                                      - Non Audit  956,000  650,000  956,000  650,000 
Depreciation 38,432,408  17,604,385 49,449,937  22,616,701 
Defined Contribution Plans  -  EPF  13,909,056  9,160,338  20,318,846  15,570,128 
                                             -  ETF  3,477,264  2,290,085  5,053,220  3,866,041 
Change in value of Investment Properties  10,432,142  30,321,780  10,432,142  30,321,780 
Bad Debts written off  1,361,038  1,364,113  1,361,038  1,364,113 



Annual Report 2012/13 75

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH  Notes 2013  2012 2013  2012 
 Rs. Rs.  Rs. Rs.

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
12.1 Current Income Tax Expense  12.2  14,081,286  7,998,102 45,439,657  16,266,155 

Economic Service Charge written off  -    11,072,646  -    12,986,881 
Deferred Tax provision/ (reversal) 27  -    -   5,813,762  (7,047,116)

 14,081,286  19,070,748 51,253,419  22,205,920 
 12.2 Reconciliation of Accounting Profit with Taxable Profit

Profit/ (Loss) before Income Tax Expense  (156,174,553)  (87,615,843) 38,183,392 (125,457,883)
Profit not liable for Taxation  (23,394,103)  (75,016,319)  (23,644,103)  (84,471,409)
Aggregate Disallowed Items  171,623,481  201,524,750 204,890,844  223,104,335 
Allowable Expenses  (189,015,446)  (52,039,990)  (199,634,613)  (68,839,072)
Statutory Income from Business  (196,960,621)  (13,147,401) 19,795,520 (55,664,029)
Other Statutory Income  -    -    (13,275,116)  (6,731,600)
Tax Loss utilised during the year  -    (15,361,736 )  (774,979)  (1,500,050)
Taxable Profit/( Loss)  (196,960,621)  (28,509,137) 5,745,425 (63,895,679)
Current Income Tax Expense  14,081,286  7,998,102 45,439,657  16,266,155 
Reconciliation of Tax Losses
Tax Loss Brought Forward  (1,567,810,899)  (1,430,845,693)  (1,626,476,968)  (1,700,808,626)
Tax Loss for the Year  (219,569,727)  (152,326,942)  (123,024,377)  75,831,708 
Tax Loss utilised during the year  -    15,361,736  (774,979)  (1,500,050)
Tax Loss Carried Forward  (1,787,380,626)  (1,567,810,899)  (1,750,276,324)  (1,626,476,968)

12.3 Company 
(a) In terms of  the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments thereto, the Company is liable for income tax at 28% on its taxable income.  

12.4 Subsidiaries 
(a) In accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments thereto the subsidiary Companies of the Company are liable for 
income tax as  follows;  

 2013  2012 
Tax Rate Rs. Rs.

Millennium Housing Ltd. 28.0% 32,424,609 7,391,622
Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Ltd 28.0% 402,989 780,026
Nation Lanka Capital Ltd 10.0% 341,690 96,405

 36,815,247 

 Company  Group

(b)             In terms of the agreement entered into with the Board of Investment of Sri Lanka (BOI),       
                 (i) The Millennium Housing Developers Limited, is liable for tax at the rate of 10% (2012 : 10%) in terms of the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No 10 of 2006 and subsequent  
                     amendments thereto. Other income is liable for tax at the rate of 28%.     
                 (ii) The Millennium Housing Limited and Millennium Villa Development Limited, are liable for at the rate of 20% (2012 : 20%) in terms of the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No  
                      10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments thereto. Other income is liable for tax at the rate of 28%.     
                 (iii) The Ceylinco Housing Corporation Limited and Ceylinco Contruction Company Limited, are liable for at the rate of 28% (2012 : 35%) in terms of the provisions of the Inland  
                       Revenue Act No 10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments thereto.     
                 However, the other income of the above companies are liable for income tax at the rate of  28%.  

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE              
Basic Loss per ordinary share has been calculated based on the Loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares  
outstanding during the year.

13

Company Group

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Loss attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (Rs.) (170,255,839) (106,686,591) (28,732,840) (153,726,086)

Weighted Average No. of Share  220,130,662  220,130,662  220,130,662  220,130,662 

Basic Loss Per Share (Rs.) (0.77) (0.48) (0.13) (0.70)



Annual Report 2012/1376

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company Group
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in Hand  1,557,500  1,536,386  3,373,359  9,567,372  5,257,640  5,660,873 
Pawning Float  19,150,000  8,000,000  1,000,000  19,150,000  8,000,000  1,000,000 
Cash at Bank  78,792,350  7,558,406  58,006,489  172,595,776  50,159,529  73,466,632 
Call Deposits  -    -    -    6,235,482  10,890,792  54,846,918 
Fixed Deposits  -    -    -    5,404,411  -    -   

 99,499,850  17,094,792  62,379,848  212,953,041  74,307,961  134,974,423 
15 DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED COMMERCIAL 

BANKS
Bank of Ceylon  45,238,498  -    -    45,238,498  -    -   
Seylan Bank PLC  35,510,695  104,479,727  2,699,043  35,510,695  104,479,727  2,699,043 
Pan Asia Bank Corporation PLC  23,639,452  -    -    23,639,452  -    -   

 104,388,645  104,479,727  2,699,043  104,388,645  104,479,727  2,699,043 
16 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AS FAIR VALUE 

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Trading Securities - Quoted Shares at Market Value    16.1  4,586,073  40,373,469  9,263,192  4,586,073  40,373,469  9,263,192 

 4,586,073  40,373,469  9,263,192  4,586,073  40,373,469  9,263,192 
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Company Group
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/ 2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/ 2012 01/04/2011

No Of 
Shares

Market 
Value

No Of 
Shares

Market 
Value

No Of 
Shares

Market 
Value

No Of 
Shares

Market 
Value

No Of 
Shares

Market 
Value

No Of 
Shares

Market 
Value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

16.1 TRADING SECURITIES -  
QUOTED INVESTMENTS
BANKS, FINANCE &  
INSURANCE
Seylan Bank PLC  -    -    455,000  30,439,500  -    9,244,035  -    -    455,000  30,439,500  -    9,244,035 
The Finance Company  PLC  -    -    108  3,251  108  3,996  -    -    108  3,251  108  3,996 

 -    30,442,751  9,248,031  -    30,442,751  9,248,031 
DIVERSIFIED HOLDINGS
Heyleys PLC  -    -    29  10,440  29  11,081  -    -    29  10,440  29  11,081 
Softlogic PLC  236,000  2,548,800  236,000  2,643,200  -    -    236,000  2,548,800  236,000  2,643,200  -    -   
Envirmental Resources  
Investment PLC

 181,900  950,040  181,900  3,055,920  -    -    181,900  950,040  181,900  3,055,920  -    -   

 3,498,840  5,709,560  11,081  3,498,840  5,709,560  11,081 
HOTELS AND TRAVELS
Galadari Hotel PLC  91,684  1,087,233  91,684  1,787,838  -    -    91,684  1,087,233  91,684  1,787,838  -    -   

 1,087,233  1,787,838  -    1,087,233  1,787,838  -   
MANUFACTURING 
Lanka Tiles PLC  -    -   24  1,680  24  4,080  -    -    24  1,680  24  4,080 
Siedles TV Industry PLC  -    -    -    -    100  -    -    -    -    -    100  -   

 -    1,680  4,080  -    1,680  4,080 
INDUSTRIAL  
TRANSPORTATION
Expolanka PLC  -    -    392,200  2,431,640  -    -    -    392,200  2,431,640  -    -   

 -    2,431,640  -    -    2,431,640  -   
 -    -   

 4,586,073  40,373,469  9,263,192  4,586,073  40,373,469  9,263,192 
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Company Group

AS AT                                                           Note 31/03/2013
Rs.

31/03/2012 
Rs.

01/04/2011 
Rs.

31/03/2013
Rs.

31/03/2012 
Rs.

01/04/2011 
Rs.

17 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS -  
AVAILABLE FOR SALE  
Quoted Investments                                                 17.1  -    -    -    -    -    69,286,178 
Un-Quoted Investments                                           17.2  103,694,268  103,694,268  147,264,210  111,964,824 108,643,784  147,279,210 

 103,694,268  103,694,268  147,264,210  111,964,824 108,643,784  216,565,388 
Provision for Imparement  (103,670,969)  (103,670,969)  (79,867,244)  (108,620,485) (108,620,485)  (79,867,244)

 23,299  23,299  67,396,966  3,344,339  23,299  136,698,144 

Company  Group 
31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012  01/04/2011 

 No of 
Shares 

Cost Cost Cost  No of 
Shares 

Cost Cost Cost

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
17.1  QUOTED INVESTMENTS 

 IN ORDINARY SHARES 
 Seylan Bank PLC  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   69,286,178 

 -    -    -    -    -   69,286,178 
17.2  UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS 

 IN ORDINARY SHARES 
 Asian Finance Ltd  2,636,402  26,239,020  26,239,020  26,239,020  2,636,402  26,239,020  26,239,020 26,239,020 
 Cey Homes Credit & Investments Ltd.  100,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  100,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  1,000,000 
 Ceycom Global Communication Ltd.  50,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  50,000  250,000  250,000  250,000 
 Ceylinco Capital Ltd  25,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  25,000  250,000  250,000  250,000 
 Ceylinco Cellular Company (Pvt) Ltd  20,000  200,000  200,000  200,000  40,000  400,000  400,000  200,000 
 Ceylinco CISCO Ranaviru Services (Pvt) Ltd.  12,500  125,000  125,000  125,000  25,000  250,000  250,000  125,000 
 Ceylinco CISCO Cash Management &Transit Co.Ltd  12,500  125,000  125,000  125,000  12,500  125,000  125,000  125,000 
 Ceylinco Coloured Stones (Pvt) Ltd.  -    -    -    -    140,000  1,400,000  1,400,000  -   
 Ceylinco Design & Project Management Co.(Pvt) Ltd.  37,500  375,000  375,000  375,000  37,500  375,000  375,000  375,000 
 Ceylinco Diamond Trading Co (Pvt). Ltd.  616,037  7,186,830  7,186,830  7,186,830  616,037  7,186,830  7,186,830  7,186,830 
 Ceylinco Fashion Trends Co. Ltd.  30,000  300,000  300,000  300,000  30,000  300,000  300,000  300,000 
 Ceylinco Foliage Export (Pvt) Ltd.  1,784,534  17,919,235  17,919,235  17,919,235  1,784,534  17,919,235  17,919,235 17,919,235 
 Ceylinco Freight International (Pvt) Ltd.  10,200  102,000  102,000  102,000  10,200  102,000  102,000  102,000 
 Ceylinco Grameen Credit Co. Ltd.  15,000  150,000  150,000  150,000  15,000  150,000  150,000  150,000 
 Ceylinco Holding (Pvt) Ltd.  1,000  10,000  10,000  10,000  1,000  10,000  10,000  10,000 
 Ceylinco Homes International Ltd.  500,000  5,000,000  5,000,000  5,000,000  500,000  5,000,000  5,000,000  5,000,000 
 Ceylinco Hotels Ltd.  47,000  470,000  470,000  470,000  47,000  470,000  470,000  470,000 
 Ceylinco Investment Ltd.  -    -    -    -    12,500  125,000  125,000  -   
 Ceylinco Investment & Reality Ltd.  25,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  25,000  250,000  250,000  250,000 
 Ceylinco Management & Accountancy Services Ltd.  100,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  100,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  1,000,000 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Annual Report 2012/13 79

Company  Group 
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/ 2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/ 2011 

 No of 
Shares 

Cost Cost Cost  No of 
Shares 

Cost Cost Cost

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
 Ceylinco Net Assest (Pvt) Ltd.  12,500  125,000  125,000  125,000  12,500  125,000  125,000  125,000 
 Ceylinco Niranjan Invention (Pvt) Ltd.  9,875  61,250  61,250  61,250  13,625  98,750  98,750  61,250 
 Ceylinco Packaging Co. Ltd.  50,000  500,000  500,000  500,000  50,000  500,000  500,000  500,000 
 Ceylinco Pharmaceuticals Ltd  25,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  50,000  500,000  500,000  250,000 
 Ceylinco Profit Sharing Investment Corporation Ltd.  12,500  125,000  125,000  125,000  25,000  250,000  250,000  125,000 
 Ceylinco Seylan Housing & Commercial Properties Ltd.  40,540  405,400  405,400  405,400  40,540  405,400  405,400  405,400 
 Ceylinco Shriram Capital Management Ltd. 
 Services Co.(Pvt) Ltd. 

 2,500  25,000  25,000  25,000  2,500  25,000  25,000  25,000 

 Ceylinco Tax & Financial Consultants (Pvt) Ltd.  23,000  230,000  230,000  230,000  23,000  230,000  230,000  230,000 
 Ceylinco Travels & Tours Ltd.  20,000  200,000  200,000  200,000  60,000  600,000  600,000  200,000 
 Ceylinco Universal Ltd.  5,000  50,000  50,000  50,000  5,000  50,000  50,000  50,000 
 Ceylinco Venture Capital Co. Ltd.  145,000  1,450,000  1,450,000  1,450,000  159,000  1,590,000  1,590,000  1,450,000 
 Ceylinco Worldwide Trading  (Pvt) Ltd.  150  7,572  7,572  7,572  150  7,572  7,572  7,572 
 CEG Holdings (Pvt) Ltd  -    -    -    -    12,500  125,000  125,000  -   
 Ceynergy Electronic Co.(Pvt) Ltd.  30,000  300,000  300,000  300,000  30,000  300,000  300,000  300,000 
 CTV Creations (Pvt) Ltd.  -    -    -    -    4,000  40,000  40,000  -   
 eceylinco.com  (Pvt) Ltd.  10,000  100,000  100,000  100,000  18,750  187,500  187,500  100,000 
 Economic Resurgence Association (Pvt) Ltd  200,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  300,000  2,000,000  2,000,000  1,000,000 
 IC & CS Software Solution Co. (Pvt) Ltd  10,000  100,000  100,000  100,000  15,000  150,000  150,000  100,000 
 Independent Financial News & Views (Pvt) Ltd  14,290  142,900  142,900  142,900  14,290  142,900  142,900  142,900 
 International College of Business Technology Ltd.  40,000  400,000  400,000  400,000  40,000  400,000  400,000  400,000 
 International Consultancy & Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd.  20,000  200,000  200,000  200,000  20,000  200,000  200,000  200,000 
 Knoelt  (Pvt) Ltd.  3,000  312,500  312,500  312,500  3,000  312,500  312,500  312,500 
 MBSL Savings Bank Ltd  10,833  108,330  108,330  108,330  10,833  108,330  108,330  108,330 
 Middleway Ltd.  416  5,437  5,437  5,437  416  5,437  5,437  5,437 
 Corporate Finance Ltd.  -    -    -    -    -    250,000  250,000  -   
 Middleway Printing (Pvt) Ltd.  20,000  200,000  200,000  200,000  20,000  200,000  200,000  200,000 
 Peoples Reality Ltd 18,244,504  18,246,718  18,246,718  2,460 18,340,504  18,276,234  18,276,234  2,460 
 St. Michele Ltd.  1,750  175,000  175,000  175,000  1,750  175,000  175,000  175,000 
 Seraka Investments Ltd.  410,000  4,100,000  4,100,000  4,100,000  410,000  4,350,000  4,350,000  4,100,000 
 South Asian Travels Ltd  25,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  25,000  250,000  250,000  250,000 
 The Sitar (Pvt) Ltd  -    -    -    -    6,500  65,000  65,000  -   
 The Finance & Guarentee Company Ltd  2,500  250,000  250,000  250,000  2,500  500,000  500,000  250,000 
 The Golden Key Credit Card Co. Ltd.  55,030  669,804  669,804  669,804  55,030  669,804  669,804  669,804 
 Tropical Foliage Ltd  100,000  890,932  890,932  890,932  100,000  890,932  890,932  890,932 
 Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka  100  23,300  23,300  23,300  100  23,300  23,300  23,300 
 Equity Investment Lanka Ltd.  50,000  600,000  600,000  600,000  50,000  600,000  600,000  600,000 
 1857 Advisors Bangladesh Ltd  -    -    -    -    -    3,321,040  -    -   
 Lanka Tractors Ltd.  36,000  518,040  518,040  518,040  36,000  518,040  518,040  518,040 

 92,974,268  92,974,268  74,730,010 101,244,824  97,923,784  74,730,010 
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Company  Group 
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012  01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012  01/04/2011 

 No of 
Shares 

 Cost  Cost  Cost  No of 
Shares 

 Cost  Cost  Cost 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

 IN PREFERENCE SHARES 
 Ceylinco Hotels Ltd. - 10%  820,000  8,200,000  8,200,000  8,200,000  820,000  8,200,000  8,200,000  8,200,000 
 Tropical Foliage Ltd  250,000  2,500,000  2,500,000  2,500,000  250,000  2,500,000  2,500,000  2,500,000 

 10,700,000  10,700,000  10,700,000  10,700,000  10,700,000  10,700,000 
 IN DEBENTURES 
 AFL Development Ltd - (2.5% - 2012)  6,181,420  -    -    61,814,200  6,181,420  -    -    61,814,200 
 Blue Diamonds Jewellery Worldwide Ltd. (2% - 2008)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    15,000 

-  -    -    61,814,200  -    -    61,829,200 
 IN OTHERS 
 Ceylinco Building Society Ltd.  40  20,000  20,000  20,000  40  20,000  20,000  20,000 

 20,000  20,000  20,000  20,000  20,000  20,000 

 TOTAL 103,694,268 103,694,268 147,264,210  111,964,824 108,643,784 147,279,210 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Company GROUP
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
18 LOANS & RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS

Loans                                                                             18.1  1,045,987,372  616,710,961  164,418,666  1,117,464,185 542,608,961 237,404,604
Pawning Advances                                                        18.2                                                   145,801,287  15,075,840  5,721,447  145,801,287  15,075,840  5,721,447 
Hire Purchase                                                                18.3  301,845,172  253,589,612  274,870,282  301,845,172  253,589,612  274,870,282 
Leases                                                                           18.4  173,506,586  138,788,652  52,358,604  173,506,586  138,788,652  52,358,604 

 1,667,140,417  1,024,165,065  497,368,999  1,738,617,230 950,063,065 570,354,937
18.1 LOANS

Term Loans                                                                 18.1.1  1,002,145,576  577,394,454  113,178,565  1,014,528,671 468,672,930 183,960,194
Easy Payment Loans                                                  18.1.2  39,735,783  35,668,267  50,121,236  39,735,783 35,668,267 20,121,236
Margin Trading Loans  -    -    -    59,093,718  34,619,524  2,204,309 
Staff Loans  4,106,013  3,648,240  1,118,865  4,106,013 3,648,240 1,118,665

 1,045,987,372  616,710,961  164,418,666  1,117,464,185 542,608,961 237,404,604
18.1.1 TERM LOANS

Term Loans  1,231,409,632  1,042,029,498  565,500,730  1,340,619,967 1,030,135,214 736,209,599
Margin Trading Loans  2,204,309  2,204,309  2,204,309  2,204,309  2,204,309  2,204,309 

 1,233,613,941  1,044,233,807  567,705,039  1,342,824,276 1,032,339,523 738,413,908
Impairment Allowance for Loans  Individual            18.1.1A  (125,589,619)  (369,830,538)  (411,629,779)  (222,416,859) (466,657,778) (511,557,019)
Impairment Allowance for Loans Collective             18.1.1B  (105,878,746)  (97,008,815)  (42,896,695)  (105,878,746) (97,008,815) (42,896,695)   

 1,002,145,576  577,394,454  113,178,565  1,014,528,671  468,672,930   183,960,194
18.1.1A Movement in Individual Impairment   

Allowance for Term Loans
Balance  as at beginning of the year  369,830,538  411,629,779  411,629,779 466,658,778 508,457,019 511,557,019
Write off during the year  (144,594,390)  -    -    (144,594,390) - -
Reversal for the year  (99,646,529)  (41,799,241)  -    (99,646,529)  (41,799,241) -
Balance as at end of the year  125,589,619  369,830,538  411,629,779 222,416,859 466,657,778 511,557,019

18.1.1B Movement in Collective Impairment  
Allowance for Term Loans 
Balance  as at beginning of the year  97,008,815  42,896,695  42,896,695  97,008,815  42,896,695  42,896,695
Charge for the year  8,869,931  54,112,120  -    8,869,931  54,112,120 -
Balance as at end of the year  105,878,746  97,008,815  42,896,695  105,878,746  97,008,815  42,896,695

18.1.2 Easy Payment Loans
Easy Payment Loans  49,868,296  71,783,343  86,236,312  49,868,296  71,783,343  86,236,312 
Impairment allowance for loans Collective              18.1.2.A  (10,132,513)  (36,115,076)  (36,115,076)  (10,132,513)  (36,115,076)  (36,115,076)

 39,735,783  35,668,267  50,121,236  39,735,783  35,668,267  50,121,236 
18.1.2A Movement in Collective Impairment   

allowance for Easy Payment Loan Receivables
Balance  as at beginning of the year  36,115,076  36,115,076  36,115,076  36,115,076  36,115,076  36,115,076 
Impairment charges for the year  (25,982,563)  -    -    (25,982,563) - -
Balance as at end of the year  10,132,513  36,115,076  36,115,076  10,132,513  36,115,076  36,115,076 



Annual Report 2012/1382

Company Group
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
18.2 PAWNING ADVANCES RECEIVABLES 

Pawning Advances  148,263,275  15,075,840  5,721,447  148,263,275  15,075,840  5,721,447 
Pawning Impairment (2,461,987)  -    -   (2,461,987)  -    -   

 145,801,287  15,075,840  5,721,447  145,801,287  15,075,840  5,721,447 
18.3 HIRE PURCHASES RECEIVABLES

Hire Purchases Stock  457,876,126  405,380,018  396,742,500  457,876,126  405,380,018  396,742,500 
Deferred Interest  (125,528,808)  (92,518,844)  (92,568,600)  (125,528,808)  (92,518,844)  (92,568,600)
Hire Purchases Debtors  32,986,737  91,992,432  99,985,129  32,986,737  91,992,432  99,985,129 

 365,334,055  404,853,606  404,159,029  365,334,055  404,853,606  404,159,029 
Impairment Allowance for HP Individual                18.3.1  (10,122,493)  (83,506,834)  (70,836,226)  (10,122,493)  (83,506,834)  (70,836,226)
Impairment Allowance for HP Collective                18.3.2  (53,366,391)  (67,757,159)  (58,452,520)  (53,366,391)  (67,757,159)  (58,452,520)

 301,845,172  253,589,612  274,870,282  301,845,172  253,589,612  274,870,282 
18.3.1 Movement in Individual Impairment   

Allowance for Hire Purchase Receivables
Balance  as at beginning of the year  83,506,834  70,836,226  70,836,226  83,506,834  70,836,226  70,836,226 
Write off during the year  (72,125,047)  -    -    (72,125,047)  -    -   
Impairment charge for the year  (1,259,294)  12,670,608  -    (1,259,294)  12,670,608  -   
Balance as at end of the year  10,122,493  83,506,834  70,836,226  10,122,493  83,506,834  70,836,226 

18.3.2 Movement in Collective Impairment   
allowance for Hire Purchase  Receivables
Balance  as at beginning of the year  67,757,159  58,452,520  58,452,520  67,757,159  58,452,520  58,452,520 
Impairment charge for the year  (14,390,769)  9,304,639  -    (14,390,769)  9,304,639  -   
Balance as at end of the year  53,366,391  67,757,159  58,452,520  53,366,391  67,757,159  58,452,520 

18.4 LEASE RECEIVABLES
Gross Investment  343,125,676  334,534,879  213,259,330  343,125,676  334,534,879  213,259,330 
Rental Received In Advance  (12,137,189)  (13,139,556)  (5,026,928)  (12,137,189)  (13,139,556)  (5,026,928)

 330,988,487  321,395,323  208,232,402  330,988,487  321,395,323  208,232,402 
Un - Earned Income  (108,664,687)  (39,458,434)  (35,266,680)  (108,664,687)  (39,458,434)  (35,266,680)

 222,323,800  281,936,889  172,965,722  222,323,800  281,936,889  172,965,722 
Impairment Allowance for Lease  Individual               18.4.1  (13,306,649)  (101,081,423)  (90,541,676)  (13,306,649)  (101,081,423)  (90,541,676)
Impairment Allowance for Lease Collective               18.4.2  (35,510,564)  (42,066,814)  (30,065,442)  (35,510,564)  (42,066,814)  (30,065,442)
Net Lease Rental Receivables  173,506,586  138,788,652  52,358,604  173,506,586  138,788,652  52,358,604 

18.4.1 Movement in individual Impairment   
allowance for Lease Receivables
Balance  as at beginning of the year  101,081,423  90,541,676  90,541,676  101,081,423  90,541,676  90,541,676 
Write off during the year  (81,071,769)  -    -    (81,071,769)  -    -   
Charge/ (Reversal) for the year  (6,703,005)  10,539,747  -    (6,703,005)  10,539,747  -   
Balance as at end of the year  13,306,649  101,081,423  90,541,676  13,306,649  101,081,423  90,541,676 

18.4.2 Movement in Collective Impairment  
allowance for Lease  Receivables
Balance  as at beginning of the year  42,066,814  30,065,442  30,065,442  42,066,814  30,065,442  30,065,442 

Charge/(Reversal) for the year  (6,556,250)  12,001,372  -    (6,556,250)  12,001,372  -   
Balance as at end of the year  35,510,564  42,066,814  30,065,442  35,510,564  42,066,814  30,065,442 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Company Group
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
19 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - HELD TO  

MATURITY
Government of Sri lanka Treasury Bills  53,247,269  51,933,323  572,230,081  53,247,269  51,933,323  573,480,081 

 53,247,269  51,933,323  572,230,081  53,247,269  51,933,323  573,480,081 

20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company

AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012  01/04//2011 
 No of  Holding  Cost  No of  Holding  Cost  No of  Holding  Cost 

 shares  %  Rs  shares  %  Rs  shares  %  Rs 
Ordinary Shares
Millenium Housing Developers Ltd. 15,292,338  77.31  152,923,380  15,292,338  77.31  152,923,380  6,540,000  66.13  65,400,000 
Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Ltd 17,426,379  67.47  256,487,448  17,426,379  94.42  256,487,448  17,426,379  73.65  38,269,518 
First Lanka Treasuries Ltd.  100,000  100.00  1,000,000  100,000  100.00  1,000,000  100,000  94.93  1,000,000 
Nation Lanka Capital Limited  3,000,000  100.00  30,000,000  3,000,000  100.00  30,000,000  -    -    -   
Ceylinco Towers Ltd  500,000 100.00  5,000,000  500,000 100.00  5,000,000  500,000 100.00  5,000,000 
Ceylinco Investment Corporation Ltd  -    -    -    600,000 100.00  6,000,000  600,000 100.00  6,000,000 
Nation Lanka Promotions Ltd  1,000,000  10.53  10,000,000  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 455,410,828  451,410,828  115,669,518 
Provision for Impairment  (6,000,000)  (10,750,000) (10,750,000)

 449,410,828  440,660,828 104,919,518 
Preference Shares
Nation Lanka Equities Ltd  -    -    15,325,000 

 -    -    15,325,000 
 449,410,828  440,660,828 120,244,518 

21 INVESTMENT IN EQUITY  
ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

Company
31/03/2013 31/03/2012  31/03/2011 

 No of  Holding Amount  No of  Holding  Amount  No of  Holding  Amount 
 shares  %  Rs.  shares  %  Rs.  shares  %  Rs. 

Unquoted Investments
E Future (Pvt) Ltd  2,980,483 24.84%  33,294,060  3,600,000 30  40,214,060  -    -    -   

 33,294,060  40,214,060  -   
Group

31/03/2013 31/03/2012  31/03/2011 
 No of  Holding  Amount  No of  Holding Amount  No of  Holding Amount

 shares  %  Rs.  shares  %  Rs.  shares  %  Rs. 
Unquoted Investments
E Future (Pvt) Ltd  3,600,000 30%  40,214,060  3,600,000 30  40,214,060  -    -    -   

Group Share of Retained Earnings of Associate  16,242,974  11,656,400  -   
 56,457,034  51,870,460  -   
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Company Group
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/032012 01/04/2011

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
22 AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

Tropical Foilage ltd  -    -    -    -    1,672,281  -   
Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Ltd  42,159,620  2,838,141  3,650,807  -    -    -   
Ceylinco Real Estate Developers Ltd  -    -    -    200,460  212,960  -   
Ceylinco Towers(Pvt) Ltd  71,160  36,524  -    -    -    -   
People's Realty Ltd.  -    -    -    15,387,210  -    -   
Millennium Housing Developers Ltd.  1,005,318  180,000  51,629,441  -    -    -   
Millennium Housing Ltd.  -    -    251,555  -    -    -   
Ceylinco Housing Corporation Ltd.  -    -    106,503  -    -    -   
Millennium Villa Housing Development Ltd.  -    -    432,094  -    -    -   
Advisors  Bangladesh Ltd  -    -    -    2,655,719  -    -   
Ceylinco Constructions Company Ltd.  830,937  830,937  830,937  -    -    -   
First Lanka Treasuries Ltd  14,581,948  9,115,993  28,434,987  -    -    -   
Ceylinco Investment Corporation Ltd.  -    84,527,421  83,997,338  -    -    -   

 58,648,983  97,529,016  169,333,662  18,243,389 1,885,241  -   
Provision For Impairment  (10,112,582)  (11,922,236)  (66,407,200)  -    -    -   

 48,536,401  85,606,780  102,926,462  18,243,389  1,885,241  -   
23 INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE &  

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
Investment In Real Estate & Property Development 283,129,819 244,787,325 310,469,052 283,129,819 402,040,755 346,378,527
Provision for  Obsolete Stocks  (14,955,490)  (14,955,490)  (19,373,939)  (14,955,490)  (14,955,490)  (19,373,939)

 268,174,329  229,831,835  291,095,112  268,174,329  387,085,265 327,004,5587
24 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Balance at the beginning of the year  286,660,000  163,000,000  159,919,000  286,660,000  159,329,083  159,919,000 
Purchased / (Transferred) during the year  32,099,411  93,338,219  -    32,099,411  97,009,136  (3,670,917)
Change in Fair Value  10,432,142  30,321,781  3,081,000  10,432,142  30,321,781  3,081,000 
Balance at the end of the year  329,191,553  286,660,000  163,000,000  329,191,553  286,660,000  159,329,083 

The Investment Properties of the Company/ Group includes the following

Buildings Land in 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011
Owning Company Location Sq. Ft Extent Rs. Rs. Rs.
Nation Lanka Finance PLC Athurugiriya  -  100 P  35,000,000  35,000,000  35,000,000 
Nation Lanka Finance PLC Athurugiriya  5,000  3 R 31 P  48,000,000  48,000,000  48,000,000 
Nation Lanka Finance PLC Kalkuda  -    29 A 02 R 18 P  97,969,628  94,760,000  -   
Nation Lanka Finance PLC Puttalam  -    03 A 00RP1.02  2,200,000  2,200,000  -   
Nation Lanka Finance PLC Wennappuwa  -    26,700,000  26,700,000  -   
Nation Lanka Finance PLC Kurunegala  13,500  20 P  80,000,000  80,000,000  80,000,000 
Nation Lanka Finance PLC Bagatale  39,321,925  -    -   

 329,191,553  286,660,000  163,000,000 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Company Group
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
25 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software
Cost
Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -    -    8,575,594  7,634,690  6,693,785 
Additions during the year  -    -    -    592,000  940,905  940,905 
Balance at the end of the year  -    -    -    9,167,594  8,575,595  7,634,690 
Amortisation
Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -    -    7,274,957  6,184,732  5,094,507 
Additions during the year  -    -    -    837,673  1,090,225  1,090,225 
Disposed During the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Balance at the end of the year  -    -    -    8,112,630  7,274,957  6,184,732 

Written down Value  -    -    -    1,054,964  1,300,638  1,449,958 

Note        
The Land and  Building owned by the Company situated at 169 & 169 1/1 Colombo Road Negambo was revalued by Mr. G.A.Gunawardene  
F.I.V, D.I.V. an Independent professional valuer on the 31st January 2008 for Rs. 175,000,000/- based on Investment  & Contractor's basis and the resultant surplus 
of Rs. 50,546,457/- thereon has been transferred to the revaluation reserve.        
        

26 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
26.1 COMPANY

 Land & 
 Buildings 

  
Rs. 

 Office 
 Equipments 

 
Rs. 

 Furniture  
 & Fittings 

  Rs.  

 Motor 
 Vehicles 

 
Rs. 

 Computer   Leased 2013 
 Total 

 
Rs. 

DESCRIPTION  Equipments   Motor  
& Software  Vehicles 

 Rs.  Rs. 
COST/ REVALUED AMOUNT 
Balance at the beginning 175,000,000  40,517,408  30,855,487  12,648,477  99,192,224  -    358,213,596 
Additions during the year  -    10,975,490  8,156,637  -    14,853,100  -    33,985,227 
Disposals during the year  -    (717,291)  (2,120,482) (1,370,078)  (64,500)  -    (4,272,351)
Balance at the end of the year 175,000,000  50,775,607  36,891,642  11,278,399  113,980,824  -    387,926,472 

DEPRECIATION
Balance at the beginning  25,950,384  22,074,151  14,710,324  7,531,600  62,047,368  -    132,313,827 
Depreciation for the year  6,227,410  10,829,625  3,618,286  1,476,465  16,280,622  -    38,432,408 
Disposal during the year -  (717,291)  (2,077,329) (1,370,073)  (64,500)  -    (4,229,193)
Balance at the end of the year  32,177,794  32,186,485  16,251,281  7,637,992  78,263,490  -    166,517,042 

W.D.V as at 31.03.2013 142,822,206  18,589,122  20,640,361  3,640,407  35,717,334  -    221,409,430 

W.D.V as at 31.03.2012 149,049,616  18,443,257  16,145,163  5,116,877  37,144,856  -    225,899,769 

W.D.V as at 31.03.2011 155,279,869  2,558,990  4,764,312  930,661  4,845,864  1,587,759  169,967,455 
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26 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
26.2 GROUP

 Land &  
Buildings 

 
Rs. 

 Site offices 
 & Other 

Structures 
Rs.

 Office 
 Equipments 

Rs.

 Furniture  
 & Fittings 

Rs.

 Motor 
 Vehicles 

Rs.

 Computer  
 Equipments 
& Software

Rs.

 Leased Assets  Total as at 
2013 

 Rs. 

 Motor   
Vehicles

Rs.

 Construction
 

 Rs. 
COST/ REVALUED AMOUNT  
Balance at the begining 262,962,489  47,156,027  47,940,245  40,899,640  23,218,205  117,849,498  -    5,802,039 545,828,143
Additions during the year  1,708,408  55,154,338 42,312,191 22,299,518 263,200 16,061,582  -    -   137,798,237
Written Off during the year  -    -    (55,242)  -    -    -    -    -    (55,242)
Disposal During the year  (11,810,731)  -    (1,010,685) (2,208,540) (1,370,078) (64,500)  -    -    (4,327,593)
Disposal of Subsidiary  (64,491,694)  -    (1,753,733)  (2,214,508)  (1,478,260)  (1,092,178)  -    -    (71,030,373)
Balance at the End  188,368,472  102,310,365  87,432,776  58,776,110  20,633,067  132,754,402  -    5,802,039  596,077,231 
Depreciation
Balance at the begining 37,940,643  45,485,825  25,092,672  17,409,160  17,811,443  73,231,199  -    5,802,039 222,772,981
Depreciation for the year  6,516,702  2,477,559  13,469,468  5,496,666  1,674,143  18,965,144  -    -    48,599,682 
Disposal during the year  -    -    (894,334)  (2,135,220)  (1,370,073)  (64,500)  -    -    (4,464,127)
Disposal of Subsidiary  (7,500,823)  -    (1,454,585)  (2,214,508)  (1,478,260)  (1,036,086)  -    -   (13,684,262)
Balance at the End  36,956,522  47,963,384  36,213,221  18,556,098  16,637,253  91,095,757  -    5,802,039  253,224,274 
W.D.V as at 31.03.2013  151,411,950  54,346,981  51,219,555  40,220,012  3,995,814  41,658,645  -    -    342,852,957 

W.D.V as at 31.03.2012 225,028,846  1,670,202  22,847,573  23,490,480  5,406,762  44,618,299  -    -   323,055,162

W.D.V as at 31.03.2011 229,354,074  1,120,291  3,602,941  5,845,726  1,406,325  7,689,286  1,951,926  -   250,970,569

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Company Group
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
28 OTHER ASSETS

Deposits, Advances and Prepayments  100,216,249    149,600,522  49,695,700 104,905,345  158,718,972 173,962,196
 100,216,249    149,600,522  49,695,700 104,905,345  158,718,972 173,962,196

Company Group
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
27 DEFERRED TAXATION

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -    -    9,890,340  2,843,225  900,856 
Provision/(Reversal) made during the year  -    -    -   (5,813,762)  7,047,115  (3,744,081)
Balance at the end of the year  -    -    -   4,076,578  9,890,340  (2,843,225)

Deferred Tax Asset

Property, Plant and Equipment  -    -    -    (192,270)  4,546,629  -   
On Tax Losses Carried Forward  -    -    -   -  (8,892,330)  -   
Retirement Benefit Obligation  -    -    -    6,360,298  (5,544,641)  -   

 -    -    -   6,168,028  (9,890,342)  -   

Deferred Tax Liability
Property, Plant and Equipment  -    -    -    (2,091,450)  -    -   

 -    -    -    (2,091,450)  -    -   
Net Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liabilities  -    -    -   4,076,577  (9,890,342)  -   
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Company Group
AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 31/04/2011

Notes Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

29 DEBENTURES
Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -    -    3,250,000  3,250,000 3,250,000
Balance at the end of the year  -    -    -    3,250,000  3,250,000  3,250,000 

30 DUE TO BANKS
Bank Overdraft  105,386,778  37,297,570  53,636,261  168,343,067  53,636,281  53,659,784 
Bank Borrowing - Securitised                30.1  108,541,355  72,817,384  700,621  108,541,355  72,817,384  700,621 

 213,928,133  110,114,954  54,336,882  276,884,422  126,453,665  54,360,405 

Company Group

AS AT 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 01/04/2011 31/03/2013 31/03/2012 31/04/2011
Notes Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

30.1 Bank Borrowings Securitised 

Company
"Lending  

    Institution"
 Security 

Nation Lanka Finance PLC Matara District  
Co-operative Rural Bank 
Union Ltd 

 Mortgage Katana Land   51,476,712  51,495,890  -   

Nation Lanka Finance PLC  Seylan Bank PLC Mortgage  Kurunegala  
Building 

 18,495,202  21,321,494  -   

Nation Lanka Finance PLC  Bank  Of Ceylon Pledge the CR Books  38,569,441  -    -   
Nation Lanka Finance PLC  Central Bank Of Sri Lanka Unsecured  -    -    700,621 

 108,541,355  72,817,384  700,621 

31 DUE TO CUSTOMERS
Fixed Deposits  2,394,792,571  106,759,325  -    2,394,792,571  106,759,325  -   
Promissory Notes  245,388,120  1,877,263,292  2,123,398,649  245,388,120 2,263,930,471 2,547,271,652

 2,640,180,691  1,984,022,617  2,123,398,649  2,640,180,691 2,370,689,796 2,547,271,652

32 AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES
Millennium Housing Developers Ltd  53,843,048  43,448,184 - - - -
Millennium Villa Housing Development Ltd  45,325,274  40,534,247 - - - -
Ceylinco Towers Ltd.  1,260,256  1,260,256  1,260,256 - - -

 100,428,578  85,242,686  1,260,256 - - -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Company Group
AS AT Note 31/03/2013 

Rs.
 31/03/2012 

Rs. 
01/04/2011 

Rs.
31/03/2013 

Rs.
 31/03/2012 

Rs.
01/04/2011 

Rs.
33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS   

33.1 Provision For Defined  
Benefit Obligations (Net)
Present Value of Defined benefit Obligations 33.2  23,060,074  19,456,361  30,207,100  46,254,819 40,325,163  54,158,948 
Plan Assets 33.3  (52,465,429)  (51,373,107)  (47,907,044)  (52,465,429)  (51,373,107)  (47,907,044)
Provision for Defined Benefit Obligations  (29,405,355)  (31,916,746)  (17,699,944)  (6,210,610)  (11,047,944)  6,251,904 

33.2 Movement in the Present Value  
of Defined Benefit Obligations
Begining at the Balance  19,456,361  30,207,100  15,783,571 40,357,663  54,158,948 48,233,624
Current Service Cost  1,578,512  1,859,129  2,369,884  6,193,867 4,008,483  5,460,923 
Interest Cost  2,103,487  3,206,622  1,815,345  2,103,487 3,260,727  2,103,487 
Transferred from Gratuity Trust Fund  9,688,566  7,729,525  2,668,199  9,688,566  7,729,525  9,688,566 
Unrecognized Actuarial Loss  9,610,280  (8,086,965)  12,906,499  9,610,280  (7,824,020)  9,610,280 
Transferred to Gratuity Trust Fund  (9,688,566)  (7,729,525)  (2,668,199)  (9,688,566)  (7,729,525)  (9,688,566)
Payment made (including benefits paid by the plan)  (9,688,566)  (7,729,525)  (2,668,199)  (11,249,366)  (13,278,975)  (11,249,366)
Balance at the End of the year  23,060,074  19,456,361  30,207,100 46,254,819 40,325,163 54,158,948

33.3 Movement In Plan Assets
Begining at the Balance  51,373,107  47,907,044  44,451,451  51,373,107  47,907,044  44,451,451 
Expected return on Plan Assets  4,420,238  4,184,017  4,096,149  4,420,238  4,184,017  4,096,149 
Contribution paid into plan  5,888,566  7,729,525  2,668,199  5,888,566  7,729,525  2,668,199 
Benefits paid by the Plan  (9,688,566)  (7,729,525)  (2,668,199)  (9,688,566)  (7,729,525)  (2,668,199)
Unrecognized Actuarial Gain on Plan Assets  472,084  (717,954)  (640,556)  472,084  (717,954)  (640,556)
Balance at the End of the year  52,465,429  51,373,107  47,907,044  52,465,429  51,373,107  47,907,044 

33.4 Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain) or Loss
Begining at the Balance  -  -  -  -  - 
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss for year- Obligation  9,610,280  (8,086,965)  12,906,499  9,610,280  9,610,280 
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss for year- Plan Assets  (472,084)  717,954  640,556  (472,084)  (472,084)
Recognized in the Profit or Loss  (9,138,196)  7,369,011  (13,547,055)  (9,138,196)  (9,138,196)
Balance at the End of the year  -  -  -  -  -  - 

33.5 Amount Recognized in the Statement of  
Comprehensive
Current Service Cost  1,578,512  1,859,129  2,369,884  6,193,867  2,053,482  2,369,884 
Interest Cost  2,103,487  3,206,622  1,815,345  2,103,487  3,293,227  1,815,345 
Expected Return on Plan Assets  (4,420,238)  (4,184,017)  (4,096,149)  (4,420,238)  (4,184,017)  (4,096,149)
Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses Recognized in the income statement  9,138,196  (7,369,011)  13,547,055  9,138,196  (7,106,066)  13,547,055 
Provision made during the year as per previous policy  -  -  -  -  2,655,446  10,544,943 

 8,399,957  (6,487,277)  13,636,135  13,015,312  (3,287,928)  24,181,078 
34 OTHER DUES

Trade Payables  22,079,342  4,910,846  4,913,692  412,448,460  541,124,987  754,438,535 
Creditors & Other Payables  187,241,628  110,517,259  204,050,250  187,266,628  110,517,259  204,094,305 
Dividend Payables  4,885,347  4,885,347  4,885,347  4,885,347  4,885,347  4,885,347 

 214,206,318  120,313,452  213,849,289  604,600,436  656,527,593  963,418,187 
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35 STATED CAPITAL
" No.of  

Shares "
 2013 
Rs.

" No.of  
Shares "

 2012 
Rs.

" No.of  
Shares "

 2011 
Rs.

Begining Balance               - 139,972,100 Shares  249,912,812  1,817,952,330  139,972,100 1,018,335,960  39,972,100  518,335,960 
Shares Issued during the year   - Private Placement 
(100,000,000 Shares)

 -    -    100,000,000  500,000,000 

                                          - Rights Issue (59,958,150 Shares)  -    -    59,958,150  299,790,750  -    -   
                                          - Rights Issue (49,982,562 Shares)  -    -    49,982,562  499,825,620  -    -   

 End Balance   - 249,912,812 Shares  249,912,812  1,817,952,330  249,912,812 1,817,952,330  139,972,100  1,018,335,960 

The Company offered 59,958,150 Ordinary Shares at Rs.5/- per share by way of a Rights Issue, which was fully subscribed and thereby  raised a sum of 
Rs.299,790,750/-.The said Rights Issue was concluded in April 2011.       
       
The Company also offered 49,982,562 Ordinary Shares at Rs.10/- per share by way of a Rights Issue, which was fully subscribed and thereby  raised a sum of 
Rs.499,825,620/-.The said Rights Issue was concluded in February 2012.       
       

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Annual Report 2012/13 91

36A Transactions with/between  
Subsidiaries
Name of the related party Director Relationship Nature of Transaction Value

Rs. 000'

Net Outstanding
as at 31.03.2013

Rs. 000'

Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Ltd Mr. Rajiv Perera Director Services rendered 296 
Mr. Bede Fernando Director Receipts on Receivables  (447)
Mr. Janaka Panapathwala Director Loan interest 107 
Ms. Sharifa Mohomed Director Transfer of E Future Shares  6,920  9,714 
Mr. Ajahn Punchihewa Director Loan Granted  25,000 

Receipts on loans  (2,626)
Int on loans  3,696  26,070 
Share Trading Receivable  6,375  6,375 

 42,159 

Millennium Housing Developers Ltd Mr. Harshith Dharmadasa 
Mr. Bede Fernando

Director 
Director

Services rendered  825  1,005 

Mr. Rajiv Perera Director Loan settlement  44,800 
Mr. Sisira Weerabahu Director FD capital  (47,000)
Mr. Mewan Serasinghe Director FD interest  (1,689)
Mr. Ajita Pasqual Director Loan capital  (5,000)
Mr. Gihan de Zoysa Director Loan Interest  (154)
Mr. Nalin Jayathilake 
Mr. Uditha Pahilakkara

Director 
Director

Dividends Received  15,292  (53,843)

 (52,838)

First Lanka Treasuries Ltd Mr. Bede Fernando Director Transfer of liabilities -commercial paper 5,256 
Mr. Upali Rajapaksha Director Interest on commercial paper 210 

Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts (9,282)  14,582 

Ceylinco Towers Ltd Mr. Upali Rajapaksha Director Expenses reimbursed  35  (1,188)

 
Millennium Villa Housing Development Ltd    Mr. Sisira Weerabahu 

Mr. Mewan Serasinghe 
Mr. Nalin Jayathilake 
Mr. Gihan de Zoysa

Director 
Director 
Director 
Director

Loan settlement 
FD capital 
FD Interest

 40,534  
(43,500) 

(1,825)

 
(45,325)

Ceylinco Construction Co. Ltd Mr. Gihan de Zoysa 
Mr. Nalin Jayathilake

Director 
Director

Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  (831) 831

Nation Lanka Capital  Ltd Mr. Anura Chandrasiri
Mr. Asanga Senevirathne
Mr. Rajiv Perera 
Mr. Ruwan Jayarathne

Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 

Dividends Received 900 900

  36         Related Party Disclouse
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36B Subsidiary Transactions with/between other related parties   

Name of the related party Director Relationship Nature of Transaction Value
Rs. 000'

Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Ltd Mr. Ugitha Harshith Dharmadasa Director Expenses reimbursements  (71,783)

Anilana Hotels & Properties (Pvt) Ltd Mr. Ugitha Harshith Dharmadasa Director Granting a margin facility  
against shares to Anilana Hotels

 5,500 

Mr. Asanga Seneviratne Managing Director

36C Transactions with  
other related parties

Name of the related party Director Relationship Nature of Transaction Value Net Outstanding
Rs. 000' as at 31.03.2013

Rs. 000'
Anilana Hotels & Properties Ltd Mr. A.C Seneviratne Managing Director Lease granted

Receipts on Receivables -Lease  (190)
Receipts on Receivables -Loan  (50,000)
Loan granted  50,000 185

Nawaloka ABC Petroleum (Pvt) Ltd Mr. H K J Dharmadasa Chairman
Mr. U H Dharmadasa Director Receipts on Receivables  (658)  636

 

Melvin Wire Nail Industries Mr. U H Dharmadasa Director Receipts on Receivables  (1,116)  1,933
 

Asia  Fort Asset Management Pvt Ltd Mr. A.C Seneviratne Director Expenses Reimbursements  482 
 -   

P M Edussuriya General Manager Loan receivable  1,365
 

36 D TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
According to the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No. 24 (LKAS 24) , "Related Party Disclosures", Key Management Personnel are those having responsibility for planning directing and 
controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the Board of Directors (including Non Executive and Executive Directors) has been classified as Key Management Personnel.   
Immediate family members are defined as spouse or defendant. Dependent is defined as anyone who depends on the respective Key management Personnel for more than 50% of 
his/her financial needs. 
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41 Explanation of transition to the New Sri Lanka Accounting Standards  
41.1 Reconciliation of Statement of Comprehensive Income and Other Comprehensive In-

come for the Year Ended 31st March 2012  
Company  Group 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH  SLAS  Reclassification 
& Effect of  

transition to 
SLFRS 

 SLFRS  SLAS  Reclassification 
& Effect of  

transition to 
SLFRS 

 SLFRS 

Notes  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 
Revenue E  428,176,145 (64,299,832)  363,876,313  1,103,674,783 (208,103,792)  895,570,991 
Interest Income A (i), A  (ii)  263,948,722  1,330,370  265,279,092  308,433,559  1,344,997  309,778,556 
Direct Interest Cost B (i) (159,639,614) (30,748,176) (190,387,790) (163,286,844) (30,748,176) (194,035,020)
Net Interest Income  104,309,107 (29,417,806)  74,891,301  145,146,715 (29,403,179)  115,743,535 
Revenue on Land & Property Development  -    77,037,118  77,037,118  -   423,182,871  423,182,871 
Cost of Sale on Land & PropertyDevelopment F  -   (76,474,591) (76,474,591)  -   (289,513,675) (289,513,675)
Net Gain on Land & Property Development  259,570  302,957  562,527  198,713,524  65,044,328  133,669,196 
Fees and Commission Income  2,122,412  -    2,122,412  137,155,294  -    137,155,294 
Fees and Commission Expenses  -    -    -    -   (19,708,368) (19,708,368) 
Net Fees and Commission Income  2,122,412  -    2,122,412  137,155,294 (19,708,368)  117,446,926 
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Investment Securities H (30,243) (2,133,062) (2,163,305) 8,586,461 (2,133,062) 6,453,399 
Dividend Income G 44,694,539 (44,694,539)  -   944,619 (944,619)  -   
Other Operating Income/(Costs) G 51,270,700 45,204,110 96,474,810 53,020,296 1,454,190 54,474,486 

 202,626,084 (30,738,340)  171,887,745  543,566,907  14,309,290  427,787,542 
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel  Cost C (i) (115,661,026) (106,028) (115,767,054) (192,978,849) (106,028) (193,084,877)
Provision for Staff Retirement Benefit Obligation 6,487,277  -   6,487,277 3,287,928  -   3,287,928 
Premises Equipment & Establishment Expenses (39,651,113)  -   (39,651,113) (101,224,907) (43,898,902) (145,123,809)
Other Overhead Expenses (90,149,614)  -   (90,149,614) (240,759,304) 68,115,004 (172,644,300)
Other Finance Cost (39,493,091) 31,931,804 (7,561,287) (79,727,984) 31,931,804 (47,796,180)
Total Operating Expenses (278,467,566) 31,825,776 (246,641,790) (611,403,116) 56,041,878 (555,361,238)
Loss Before Provisions & Taxation (75,841,482) 1,087,436 (74,754,046) (67,836,209) 70,351,167 (127,573,697)
Impairment for fall in Value of Investment (9,857,088)  -   (9,857,088) (9,857,088)  -   (9,857,088)
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts D (i) 68,932,049 (69,253,098) (321,049) 68,932,049 (69,253,098) (321,049)
Provision for Obsolete Stocks 4,418,449  -   4,418,449 4,418,449  -   4,418,449 
Loss Before VAT & Income Tax Expenses (12,348,072) (68,165,662) (80,513,733) (4,342,799) (128,990,586) (133,333,384)
VAT on Financial Services (7,102,109)  -   (7,102,109) (7,102,109)  -   (7,102,109)
Share of Profit of Equity Accounted Investees L  -    -    -   1,137,844 12,543,556 13,681,400 
Loss Before Income Tax Expense (19,450,181) (68,165,662) (87,615,842) (10,307,064) (116,447,030) (126,754,093)
Income Tax Expense (19,070,748)  -   (19,070,748) (41,597,408) 19,391,488 (22,205,920)
Loss for the year (38,520,929) (68,165,662) (106,686,590) (51,904,471) (97,055,542) (148,960,013)
Profit attributable to :
Equity Hokders of the company (38,520,929) (68,165,662) (106,686,591) (69,040,931) (85,965,399) (155,006,330)
Non Controlling Interest  -    -    -   17,152,426 (11,090,143) 6,062,283 
Profit For the Year (38,520,929) (68,165,662) (36,870,966) (51,888,505) 25,563,812 (148,944,047)
Total comprehensive income attributable to :
Equity Hokders of the company (38,520,929) (68,165,662) (106,686,591) (69,040,931) 85,981,365 (155,022,296)
Non Controlling Interest  -    -    -   17,152,426 11,090,143 6,062,283 
Total comprehensive income for the year (38,520,929) (68,165,662) (106,686,591) (51,888,505) 26,860,022 (148,960,013)
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41 Explanation of transition to the New Sri Lanka Accounting Standards          

As stated in Note xx to the financial statements, these are the company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards promulgated by The Institute of  
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka ( ICASL).          
The accounting policies set out in Note xx to xx have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013, and the comparative information presented in these financial statements for 
the year ended 31 March 2012 and in the preparation of an opening statement of Financial Position as at 1 April 2011 (The Company's date of transition). 
An explanation of how the transition from previous accounting standards has affected the Company's financial position and financial performance is set out in the following tables and notes that accompany the tables.

41.2 Reconciliation of Equity as at 1st April 2011

 Company  Group 

 As per  
SLFRSs

 Effect of 
Transition to 

SLFRSs

 Reclasification/  As per  
SLFRSs 

 As per  
SLASs 

 Effect of 
Transition to 

SLFRSs 

 Reclasification/  As per  
SLFRSs 

AS AT 31ST MARCH Notes  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents  62,379,848  -    -    62,379,848  80,127,504  -    -    80,127,504 

Deposits in commercial bank  2,699,043  -    -    2,699,043  57,545,961  -    -    57,545,961 

Financial Assets  Designed  
at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

H  -    3,429,273  5,833,919  9,263,192  -    3,429,273  5,833,919  9,263,192 

Financial Investment  
- Available for Sale

I  73,230,886  -    (5,833,919)  67,396,967  123,804,552  18,727,511  (5,833,919)  136,698,144 

Loans and Receivable  
From Other Customers

K (i), (ii), 

(iii)

 745,364,940  (248,445,941)  -    496,918,999  799,712,128  (248,445,941)  19,088,750  570,354,937 

Financial Instrument - Held to Mayurity J  572,230,081  -    -    572,230,081  572,230,081  1,250,000  -    573,480,081 

Assets Held for Sale  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Investment In Subsidiaries  120,244,518  -    -    120,244,518  -    -    -    -   

Investment in Equity  Accounted Investees  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Subsidiaries  102,926,462  -    -    102,926,462  -    -    -    -   

Investment In Real Estate  291,095,112  -    -    291,095,112  460,206,507  (133,201,920)  -    327,004,587 

Investment Property  163,000,000  -    -    163,000,000  159,329,083  -    -    159,329,083 

Intangible Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,449,958  1,449,958 

Property, Plant & Equipment  169,967,455  -    -    169,967,455  196,420,529  -    54,550,042  250,970,571 

Deposits, Advances  
and Prepayments

 49,695,700  -    (49,695,700)  -    92,395,824  (92,395,824)  -   

Trade & Other Receivables  49,555,289  -    (49,555,289)  -    744,167,289  -    (744,167,289)  -   

Inventories  61,928  -    (61,928)  -    328,312,926  -    (328,312,926)  -   

Deferred Tax Asset  -    -    -    -    2,928,656  -    -    2,928,656 

Other Assets F  -    -    98,469,675  98,469,675  -    (98,398,674)  1,367,288,435  1,268,889,761 

TOTAL ASSETS  2,402,451,262  (245,016,668)  (843,242)  2,156,591,352  3,617,181,040  (456,639,751)  277,501,146  3,438,042,435 
LIABILITIES

Debentures  -    -    -    -    3,250,000  -    -    3,250,000 

Due to Banks  -    -    54,336,882  54,336,882  -    -    54,360,405  54,360,405 

Due to customers M (i)  1,871,759,339  (210,548)  251,849,858  2,123,398,649  1,971,003,649  97,077,718  478,511,691  2,546,593,058 

Other Borrowings  -    -    12,688,644  12,688,644  -    -    12,688,644  12,688,644 

Current Tax Liability  -    -    -    -  -    -    -    -   

Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -    -    -  85,431  -    -    85,431 

Amounts Due To Subsidiaries  1,260,256  1,260,256  -    -    -    -   

Retirement Benefit Obligations  (17,699,944)  -    -    (17,699,944)  6,251,904  678,594  -    6,930,498 

Trade & Other Payable  208,935,597  -    (208,935,597)  -  722,125,205  -    (722,125,205)  -   

Short Term Borrowings  314,219,446  -    (314,219,446)  -  690,254,780  -    (690,254,780)  -   

Bank Overdraft  4,655,937  -    (4,655,937)  -  91,641,195  -    (91,641,195)  -   

Other Dues  -    -    213,849,289  213,849,289  -    (40,228,160)  1,003,646,347  963,418,187 

Dividend Payable  4,913,692  -    (4,913,692)  -  4,957,747  -    (4,957,747)  -   

TOTAL LIABILITIES  2,388,044,323  (210,548)  -  2,387,833,776  3,489,569,911  57,528,152  40,228,160  3,587,326,223 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Stated Capital  1,018,335,960  -    -    1,018,335,960  1,018,335,960  -    -    1,018,335,960 

Statutory Reserve Fund  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other Reserves  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Retained Earnings (1,003,929,021)  (244,806,120)  (843,243)  (1,249,578,384)  (1,067,396,901)  (494,300,052)  237,272,986  (1,324,423,967)

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS  14,406,939  (244,806,120)  (843,243)  (231,242,424)  (49,060,941)  (494,300,052)  237,272,986  (306,088,007)

Non-Controlling Interest  -    -    -    -    176,672,070  (19,867,851)  -    156,804,219 

 14,406,939  (244,806,120)  (843,243)  (231,242,424)  127,611,129  (514,167,903)  237,272,986  (149,283,788)

TOTAL LIABILITIES &   

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

 2,402,451,262  (245,016,668)  (843,242)  2,156,591,352  3,617,181,040  (456,639,751)  277,501,146  3,438,042,435 
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41 Explanation of transition to the New Sri Lanka Accounting Standards  
41.3 Reconciliation of Equity as at 1st April 2012

 Company  Group 
 As per 
SLFRS

 Effect of 
Transition 
to SLFRSs 

 Reclasification  As per  
SLFRSs 

 As per  
SLASs 

 Effect of 
Transition 
to SLFRSs 

 Reclasification  As per  
SLFRSs

AS AT 31ST MARCH Notes  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents  17,094,792  -    -    17,094,792  63,417,167  -    10,890,794  74,307,961 

Deposits in commercial bank  104,479,727  -    -    104,479,727  115,370,519  -    (10,890,794) 104,479,725 

Financial Assets  Designed at Fair Value  
Through Profit or Loss

H  39,077,259  1,296,210  -    40,373,469  39,077,259  1,296,210  -    40,373,469 

Financial Investment - Available for Sale I  23,299  -    -    23,299  23,299  -    -    23,299 

Loans and Receivable From Other Customers K (i), (ii), (iii)  1,340,558,045 (316,392,981)  -   1,024,165,064  1,405,371,228 (351,625,850)  (103,682,312) 950,063,066 

Financial Instrument - Held to Mayurity J  51,933,323  -    -    51,933,323  51,933,323  -    -    51,933,323 

Assets Held for Sale  -    -    -    -    56,000,000  -    (56,000,000)  -   

Investment In Subsidiaries  440,660,828  -    -    440,660,828  -    -    -    -   

Investment in Equity Accounted Investees  40,214,060  -    -    40,214,060  41,351,904  10,518,556  -    51,870,460 

Amounts Due From Subsidiaries  85,606,780  -    -    85,606,780  -    -    1,885,241  1,885,241 

Investment In Real Estate  229,831,835  -    -    229,831,835  387,085,265  -    -   387,085,265 

Investment Property  286,660,000  -    -    286,660,000  286,660,000  -    -   286,660,000 

Intangible Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    1,300,638  1,300,638 

Property, Plant & Equipment  225,899,769  -    -    225,899,769  268,355,800  54,699,362 323,055,162 

Deposits, Advances and Prepayments  149,600,522  -    (149,600,522)  -    158,718,972  -    (158,718,972)  -   

Trade & Other Receivables  43,368,110  -    (43,368,110)  -    664,607,627  (664,607,627)  -   

Inventories  -    -    -    -    450,427,128  (450,427,128)  (0)

Deferred Tax Asset  -    -    -    -    4,167,935  5,722,405  9,890,340 

Other Assets F  -    -    193,306,199  193,306,199  -   (187,978,995)  1,411,124,522 1,223,145,527 

TOTAL ASSETS  3,055,008,348 (315,096,771)  337,567 2,740,249,144  3,992,567,425 (527,790,080)  41,296,129 3,506,073,474 

LIABILITIES  -   

Debentures  -    -    -    -    3,250,000  -    -    3,250,000 

Due to Banks  37,297,570  -    72,817,384  110,114,954  53,636,281  -    72,817,384 126,453,665 

Due to customers M (i)  1,185,037,820  (1,394,177)  800,378,974  1,984,022,617  1,198,787,820  (1,394,177)  1,173,263,653 2,370,657,296 

Other Borrowings  -    -    13,308,793  13,308,793  -    -    13,308,793  13,308,793 

Public Deposits  106,768,907  -    (106,768,907)  -    188,413,201  -    (188,413,201)  -   

Current Tax Liability  -    -    -    -    -    -    9,860,866  9,860,866 

Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -    -    -    3,175,813  -    (3,175,813)  -   

Amounts Due To Subsidiaries  85,242,686  -    -    85,242,686  -    -    -    -   

Retirement Benefit Obligations  (31,916,746)  -    -   -31,916,746  (11,047,944)  32,500  -   -11,015,444 

Short Term Deposits  779,736,244  -    (779,736,244)  -    1,070,976,629  -    (1,070,976,629)  -   

Trade & Other Payables  115,402,606  -    (115,402,606)  -    740,773,679  -    (740,773,679)  -   

Other Dues  -    -    120,313,453  120,313,453  -    (68,821,104)  725,348,697 656,527,593 

Dividend Payable  4,910,847  -    (4,910,847) -0  4,956,184  (4,956,184)  -   

TOTAL LIABILITIES  2,282,479,934  (1,394,177)  -   2,281,085,757  3,252,921,662  (70,182,781)  (13,696,112)  3,169,042,769 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES  -   

Stated Capital  1,817,952,330  -    -    1,817,952,330  1,817,952,330  -    -    1,817,952,330 

Statutory Reserve Fund  -    -    7,550,000  7,550,000  -    -    7,550,000  7,550,000 

Other Reserves  -    -    89,546,457  89,546,457  -    -    89,546,457  89,546,457 

Retained Earnings (1,045,423,916) (313,702,594)  (96,758,890) -1,455,885,400  (1,202,307,950) (433,486,855)  (42,104,216) (1,677,899,021)

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS  772,528,414 -313,702,594  337,567  459,163,387  615,644,380 -433,486,855  54,992,241 237,149,766 

Non-Controlling Interest  -    -    -    -    124,001,383  (24,120,444)  -    99,880,939 

 772,528,414 (313,702,594)  337,567  459,163,387  739,645,763 (457,607,299)  54,992,241 337,030,705 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS'FUNDS  3,055,008,348 (315,096,771)  337,567  2,740,249,144  3,992,567,426 (527,790,080)  41,296,129  3,506,073,474 
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For the Year ended 31st March 2013 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Income Statement  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000) 
Revenue  1,211,546  895,571  1,412,857  1,727,833  3,118,259  3,837,256  4,064,492  3,664,970  3,501,609  2,961,335 
Profit/(Loss) before provision & taxation
& share of associate co.profit/(loss)  18,966  (127,574)  (132,143)  (551,730)  (639,168)  17,589  178,178  258,848  183,645  193,399 
Impairment For fall In Value of Investments  (2,017)  (9,857)  - 
Impairments Charges for Loan and other Losses  10,517  (321)  - 
Provision for diminution in value of share  -  -  22,840  (38,216)  (62,959)  52,479  (13,673)  (22,029)  (9,684)  (23,188)
Impairments for Obsolete Inventories  -  4,418  - 
Extraordinary items/(provisions)  (919)  (7,102)  (214,661)  (465,234)  (253,484)  (34,008)  24,886  (15,136)  (41,041)  (62,922)
Profit/(Loss) before taxation & associated 
profit/(Loss)  26,547  (140,435)  (323,964) (1,055,180)  (955,611)  36,060  189,391  221,683  132,920  107,289 
Share of associate co.profit/(loss)  11,637  13,681  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Profit/(Loss) before taxation  38,183  (126,754)  (323,964) (1,055,180)  (955,611)  36,060  189,391  221,683  132,920  107,289 
Income tax expenses  (51,253)  (22,206)  (36,447)  (16,073)  (5,536)  (20,568)  (32,979)  (30,844)  (16,181)  (2,581)
Profit/(Loss) after taxation  (13,070)  (148,960)  (360,411) (1,071,253)  (961,147)  15,492  156,412  190,839  116,739  104,708 
Non Controlling Interest  15,663  6,062  (19,809)  12,024  50,929  (3,182)  344  (26,750)  (23,128)  (30,782)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to share holders  (28,733)  (155,022)  (380,220) (1,059,229)  (910,218)  12,310  156,756  164,089  93,611  73,926 
Retained Profit/(Loss)  brought forward  (1,722,654) (1,466,275)  1,299,650  (293,379)  504,787  469,727  352,455  192,778  130,526  85,390 
Direct Cost on Right Issue  -    (4,358)
Effects due to changes in accounting policy  -    1,296  (176,805)  -  38,757  -  -  -  -  - 
Profit available for appropriation  (1,751,387) (1,624,360)  742,625 (1,352,608)  (366,673)  482,037  509,211  356,867  224,137  159,316 
Appropriations
Effect of Acquisitions, Disposals &  
Change in percentage Holdings in Subsidiaries

 -  (98,294)

Change in the Holdings  (8,651)  -   
Transfer to reserves/adjustments  -    -    466,624  18,963  73,294  24,295  (9,309)  24,260  (2,101)  (13,942)
Preference dividends  -    -    -  -  -  (1,545)  (2,494)  (9,154)  (7,763)  (2,856)
Ordinary dividends  -    -    -  -  -  -  (27,681)  (19,518)  (21,495)  (11,992)
Retained profit  carried forward  (1,760,037) (1,722,654)  1,209,249 (1,333,645)  (293,379)  504,787  469,727  352,455  192,778  130,526 
Basic Earnings/(Loss) per share  (0.13)  (0.70)  (5.94)  (42.89)  (45.54)  0.54  7.72  7.75  4.29  3.56 
Dividends per share  -    (0.31)  -    -    -    -    1.00  0.85  0.75  0.60 
As at 31st March 2013 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Balance Sheet  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000)  (Rs.000) 
Assets
Goodwill on Consolidation  -  -    -  -  -  -  -  277  4,438  8,292 
Property ,Plant & Equipment  342,853  301,722  196,421  255,782  303,784  569,905  866,253  576,282  347,651  222,545 
Long Term Investments  4,586  40,373  123,785  193,087  314,591  455,676  480,800  439,071  441,988  447,405 
Non Current Assets  2,403,398  1,790,921  732,663 2,822,918  1,514,423  3,052,661  3,084,165  2,238,912  2,520,662  2,011,856 
Net Current Assets/(Liabilities)  516,816  590,076  40,622 (2,643,197) (1,364,824)  (1,383,467)  (1,468,906)  31,922  (1,166,705)  138,025 
Total Asset less Current Liabilities  3,267,653  2,723,092  1,093,491  628,590  767,974  2,694,775  2,962,312  3,286,464  2,148,034  2,828,123 
Non Current Liabilities  (2,871,722) (2,386,062)  (987,897) (1,103,684)  (484,912)  (1,494,297)  (1,739,841) (2,176,414)  (1,294,156)  (2,094,693)

 395,931  337,031  105,594  (475,094)  283,062  1,200,478  1,222,471  1,110,050  853,878  733,430 
Financed by
Stated Capital  1,817,952  1,817,952  1,018,336  518,336  278,503  278,503  199,861  199,861  199,861  199,861 
Preference shares  -  -  -  -  -  61,814  61,814  61,814  61,814  61,814 
Share premium  -  -  -  -  -  -  78,643  79,162  87,538  86,957 
Statutory Reserve Fund  7,550  7,550  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Other Reserves  89,546  89,546  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Retained Earnings  (1,715,282) (1,677,899) (1,089,583) (1,130,039)  (89,774)  708,394  687,064  530,041  324,437  248,512 
Non-Controlling Interest  196,164  99,881  176,841  136,609  94,333  151,767  195,089  239,172  180,228  136,286 

 395,931  337,031  105,594  (475,094)  283,062  1,200,478  1,222,471  1,110,050  853,878  733,430 
Net Assets/(Liability) per share  0.80  0.95  (0.51)  (15.30)  9.44  49.38  48.31  40.48  30.61  26.79 

TEN YEAR SUMMARY - GROUP
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SHAREHOLDERS 
& INVESTOR  
INFORMATION 

1. TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

NAME
NO OF SHARES
AS AT 31/03/13

%
NO OF SHARES
AS AT 31/03/12

%

1 Hatton National Bank/investor Access Equities (Pvt) Ltd 86,700,000     34.69 87,500,000 35.01
2 Mr. J. Rudra 18,965,625 7.59 18,965,625 07.59
3 Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC/Nawaloka Construction (Pvt) Ltd 17,862,425 7.15 17,862,425 07.15
4 National Wealth Corporation Limited 7,525,935        3.01 3,936,437 01.58
5 Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC./Mr. M N Ranasinghe    6,865,000 2.75   6,870,000 02.75
6 Mr. D. Ganeshamoorthy 5,285,500 2.11 5,938,800 02.38
7 Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC./Mr.H H A Chandrasiri 4,480,000 1.79 5,217,150 02.09
8 Afl Development Ltd 3,000,000 1.20 3,468,300 01.39
9 Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC./Mr.R E Rambukwella 2,510,000 1.00 2,627,500 01.05
10 Ceylinco Securities Share Ownership Trust (Pvt) Ltd 2,475,600 0.99 2,475,600 00.99
11. Mr. P. Anandarajah 2,024,295 0.81 2,024,375 00.81
12 Mr. T. S. G. Jayathilaka 1,930,838 0.77     -        -
13 Mr. V. R. Ramanan 1,796,786 0.72 1,604,870 00.64
14 Mr W. G. B. M. Ranaweera 1,750,500 0.70 1,750,000 00.70
15 Mr. H. R. S. Wijeratne 1,702,041 0.68 1,702,041 00.68
16 Mrs. N. Muljie 1,340,000 0.54 1,060,100 0.42
17 Mr. W. P. A. S. Perera    1,336,281         0.53 2,066,700 00.83
18 Mr. P. P. Thevarajah 1,262,334 0.51 813,261 0.33
19 Mr. H. K. J. Dharmadasa 1,262,000 0.50 1,262,000 0.50
20 Janashakthi Insurance PLC (share holders) 1,198,758 0.48 - -

TOTAL 171,273,918 68.52   167,145,184 66.89

2. STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Nation Lanka Finance PLC is a Public Quoted Company. Its issued ordinary shares were listed with 
the Colombo Stock Exchange on 30th June 1994.
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4. CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

3. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS - 31ST MARCH  2013

Resident Non – Resident Total

Value Band
No of 
Share      

Holders    
No of Shares     %

No of 
Share 

Holders     
No of Shares     %

No of 
Share 

Holders     
No of Shares     %

1 - 1,000 11,946 2,322,174 0.93 24 11,800 0.00 11,970 2,333,974 0.93
1,001 - 5,000 1,744 4,626,857 1.85 12 32,342 0.01 1,756 4,659,199 1.86
5,001 - 10,000 549 4,288,093 1.72   9 80,601 0.03 558 4,368,694 1.75

10,001 - 50,000 682 15,840,998 6.34 15 388,937 0.16 697 16,229,935 6.50
50,001 - 100,000 127 8,959,019 3.58 0 0 0.00 127 8,959,019 3.58

100,001 - 500,000 112 24,190,909 9.68 5 1,276,431 0.51 117 25,467,340 10.19
500,001 - 1,000,000 20 13,375,898  5.35 3 2,388,085 0.96 23 15,763,983 6.31

1,000,001 - 50,000,000 19 83,499,830   33.41 1 1,930,838 0.77 20 85,430,668 34.18
50,000,001 - 75,000,000 0 0     0.00 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00
75,000,001 &    Above 01 86,700,000   34.69 0 0 0.00 01 86,700,000 34.69

TOTAL  15,200 243,803,778 97.56 69 6,109,034 2.44 15,269 249,912,812 100.00

2012 / 2013 2011 / 2012

Categories of
Shareholders

        No of Shares          Shareholders                 No of  %      No of Shares            Shareholders                  No of %

Individuals  96,516,712       14,941 38.62 94,464,373       15,276 97.89

Institutions 153,396,100  328 61.38 155,448,439           329 02.11

Total 249,912,812    15,269 100.00 249,912,812    15,605 100.00



Annual Report 2012/13 109

5. SHARE INFORMATION                                                 

          2012 / 13        2011 / 12    

BOOK VALUE (Group)        
Net Assets Per Share Rs.              0.80             0.95 
       

SHARE PRICE  
Highest Rs.             15.00                             32.70
Lowest Rs                7.10                                   8.90 
Value as at last trading date - 31st March Rs.             8.90                             10.10
  
EARNINGS (Group)  
Earnings Per Share Rs.            (0.13)           (0.70) 
                                 

PUBLIC HOLDING             
The percentage of Public Holding                       49.25%        56.69% 
as at 31st March 

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2012/2013    
1st Quarter ended 30-06-2012 (unaudited) on  15-08-2012   

2nd Quarter ended 30-09 2012 (unaudited)on  15-11-2012    

3rd Quarter ended 31-12- 2012 (unaudited) on 14-02-2013

4th Quarter ended 31-03-2013 (unaudited) on  15-05-2013
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NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATION LANKA FINANCE  
PLC  WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY THE 30TH SEPTEMBER 2013, AT 10.00 A.M. AT THE “BCIS AUDITORIUM” OF THE BANDARANAIKE  
MEMORIAL INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE HALL (B.M.I.C.H.), SITUATED AT BAUDDHALOKA MAWATHA, COLOMBO 07, FOR THE  
FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

AGENDA

1. To receive and consider the Report of the Board of Directors and the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2013 together with 
the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect  Mr. P M L K Karunaratne, who retires by rotation in terms of Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

3. To elect Mr. V R Ramanan, who retires in terms of Article 95 of the Articles of   Association of the Company.

4. To re-appoint M/S KPMG, Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company, for the ensuing financial year 2013/2014 and to authorise the Board of 
Directors to determine their remuneration.

5. To authorise the Board of Directors to determine contributions to charities and other donations for the financial year 2013/2014

6. To transact any other business of which due notice has been given.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

 

Note:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him / her.  A proxy need not be a 
member of the Company. The form of proxy is enclosed for this purpose.

2. To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy should be deposited with the Company Secretaries, Corporate Arcade Ltd, No.122/37, Kirulapone 
Avenue, (Baseline Road), Kirulapone, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the Annual General Meeting. 

3. Shareholders appointing proxies (other than Directors of the Company) to attend the Meeting are requested to indicate the number of the National 
Identity Card of the Proxy holder on the form of proxy. Only registered Proxy holders will be permitted to attend the Annual General Meeting.

4. Shareholders / Proxy holders are requested when attending the Annual General Meeting to bring with them the National   Identity Card or any other 
form of valid identification.

Corporate Arcade Ltd 
Company Secretaries

29 August 2013
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FORM OF  
PROXY

I/We…………………………………….…………………………………………..................................................... of ........................................................…………................

……………………………………………………................................................................................................................................................................................ being a  

Member/Members of Nation Lanka Finance  PLC  hereby appoint ………………………………………………………………………..........................................................

............................................................................holder of NIC No……………....................………….................................................................................................…..of 

………………………………………………………………………………….............................or failing him /her

HEWA KOMANAGE JAYANTHA DHARMADASA of Colombo – 02            whom failing
ASANGA CHANDANA SENEVIRATNE of Colombo – 07            whom failing
  
JAYAPRAKSHA RUDRA of Colombo – 06                     whom failing
 
UGITHA HARSHITH DHARMADASA of Colombo – 03                             whom failing

PEDURU MERENNA LALITH KIRETHIE  KARUNARATNE of Colombo – 07                                                  whom failing

KANDE  MOHOTTALALAGE SUNIL KANDEGEDARA  of Colombo - 05                                                        whom failing
   
VICTOR RAJAMANNER RAMANAN OF Colombo - 06

as  my / * our   proxy  to   represent  me / * us   on my/ *  our   behalf   as   indicated   below   at  the Twenty Sixth Annual   General   Meeting   of   the  Company  to 
be held on the 30th day of September 2013 and at any adjournment thereof.

Please indicate your preference by placing a     against the Resolution No.   

                  For                 Against 
1)     To receive and consider the Report of the Board of Directors and the
         Audited Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2013
         together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.
                                                                                                                                                                                
2)     To re-elect Mr P M L K Karunaratne, who retires by rotation in terms  
        of Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

3)     To elect Mr V R Ramanan, who retires in terms of Article 95 of   
        the Articles of  Association  of the Company.
                                                                                                                                                                                 
4)     To re-appoint M/S KPMG, Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the 
        Company for the ensuing Financial year 2013/2014 and to authorize
        the Board of Directors to determine their remuneration.                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
5)     To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to charities and 
        other donations for the year 2013/2014.

As witness my/ our hand/s this ..............………....................... day of  ....……..........................    2013.

..........................................                                                                                ........................................
NIC / REG. NO                                                                                                  SIGNATURE
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF PROXY

1)     Please perfect the form of proxy overleaf, by signing in the space provided and filling in the date of signature, after filling in 
legibly your full name and address.

2)     Please return the completed Form of Proxy after deleting one or other of the alternative words indicated by asterisks in the 
body of the form 

3)     To be valid, completed form of Proxy should be deposited with the Company Secretaries at No.122/37, Kirulapone Avenue 
(Baseline Road), Kirulapone, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting.

4)     If the form of Proxy has been signed by an attorney, the relative Power of Attorney should also accompany the completed 
form of Proxy for registration, if such Power of Attorney has not already been registered with the Company.

5)     If the shareholder is a Company or a corporate body, the Proxy should be executed under its Common Seal  
(where applicable) in accordance with its Articles of Association or Constitution.

6)     If there is any doubt as to how the vote is to be exercised by reason of the manner in which the Form of Proxy has been 
completed, no vote will be recorded.



Name of the Company
Nation Lanka Finance PLC

Former Names of the Company 
Ceylinco Securities & Investments Ltd
Ceylinco Securities & Financial Services PLC
Ceylinco Finance PLC

Legal Status
A Public Quoted Company with Limited Liability incorporated 
in Sri Lanka on 15th July 1987. Approved Credit Agency 
under the Mortgage Act No. 6 of 1949 and Inland Trust  
Receipts Act No 14 of 1990. Registered as a Finance 
Leasing Establishment w.e.f 01/08/2002 under the Finance 
Leasing Act No.56 of 2000 and Registered as a Finance 
Company w.e.f 5th March 2012 under the Finance Business 
Act No.42 of 2011.

Registration Number 
PQ 33

Accounting Year End
31st March 

Tax Payer Identification Number (TIN)
134001518

Registered/Business Office
N0.28, Dickman’s Road
(Sir Lester James Peiris Mawatha),
Colombo 05.
Tel:4760800
Fax: (941) 4760867
e-mail: info@nlfplc.com
web: www.nlfplc.com

Company Secretaries & Registrars
Corporate Arcade Ltd.
No: 122/37, Kirulapone Avenue,
(Baseline Road) 
Kirulapone
Tel: 2514420/ 2514421
Fax: 2513621
e-mail: cal@sltnet.lk

Auditors
M/s KPMG, 
Charted Accountants
P.O. Box 186, Colombo

Lawyers
Ms. P. Katulanda
Attorney-at-Law
No: 42, Guildford Crescent,
Combo 07

Subsidiaries 
Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Ltd.
Millennium Housing  Developers Ltd.
Ceylinco Towers Ltd.
First lanka Treasuries Ltd.
Nation Lanka Capital Ltd.

Associate company
E Futures (Pvt) Ltd

Bankers
Bank of Ceylon
Commercial Bank PLC
Hatton National Bank PLC 
People’s Bank
Seylan Bank PLC 

Branches

Anuradhapura
No: 404/ Maithripala Senanayake Mw, Anuradhapura
Tel: 0254-923800/ 0254923777

Batticaloa
439, Trinco Road, Batticaloa

Chunnakam
No: 160/1/3, K K S Road, Chunnakam
Tel: 0214-920309/ 0214-920313

Dambulla
No. 703, Anuradhapura Road, Dambulla
066-4926490/ 066-4923777

Embilipitiya
No. 106, New Town Road, Embilipitiya
0474-931510/ 0474-931512

Galle
No: 41A 1/1, Sri Devamiththa Road, Galle
Tel: 0914-380110/ 0914-385242

Kandy
No: 190 & 191, Katugodella Street, Kandy
Tel: 0812-236102/ 0814-928200

Kegalle
No: 192, Kandy Road, Kegalle 
0354-924897/ 0354-924898

Kotahena
No: 01, Pickering Road, Kotahena, Colombo 13
Tel: 0114-343844

Kuliyapitiya
No. 275, Madampe Road, Kuliyapitiya
0374-947056/ 0377-4947055

Kurunegala
No. 700 A. Colombo Road, Kurunegala
0372-31303/ 0372-224473/ 0374-927001

Mannar
122 Main Street, Sinnakadal, Mannar

Matale
No. 403, Trincomalee Road, Matale
0664-935024/ 0664-935027

Matara
No. 312, Anagarika Dharmapala MW, Matara
Tel: 0414-922080/ 0412-227781

Mathugama
No. 68, Aluthgama Road, Mathugama
0344-947977/ 0344-947978

Negambo 
No: 229, St.Josephs Street, Negambo
Tel: 0314-874600/ 0314-874602

Nelliady 
No:181, Jaffna Road, Nelliady

Panadura
No: 534, Galle Road, Panadura
Tel: 0384-922328/ 0384922329

Rathnapura
No:30, Bandaranayake MW, Rathnapura
Tel: 0454-922555/ 0452-230805/ 0454-922500

Tincomalee
No: 319/1, Court Road, Trincomalee
Tel: 0264-927858

Vavuniya
No. 71 A, Kandaswami Kovil Road, Vavuniya
024-493-0010/ 024-4930011

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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